
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Committee 
 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date and Time  
of Meeting 
 

TUESDAY 11 NOVEMBER 2014 AT 2.30 PM 
 

Venue  
 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL 
 

Membership 
 
 

Councillor Richard Cook (Chairperson) 
Councillors Boyle, Chaundy, Gordon, Govier, Murphy, Rees and 
Lynda Thorne and one vacancy.  
 
Patricia Arlotte (Roman Catholic representative), Catrin Lewis (Parent 
Governor representative) and Vacant (Church in Wales representative) 
 

 Time 
approx. 

 

1   Apologies   
 

2.35pm 

2   Declarations of Interest - to be made at the start of the agenda item 
in question, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
  
 

2.35pm 

3   Minutes - to note the minutes of the meeting of the Children and 
Young People Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 7 October 2014. 
 

2.40pm 

4   Central South Consortium - Annual Performance Report   
 

(a) Hannah Woodhouse (Managing Director of Central South 
Consortium).will introduce the report 

 
(b) Councillor Julia Magill (Cabinet Member for Education and Skills) will 

be in attendance and may wish to make a statement. 
 

(c) Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) will be 
available to answer any questions members may have. 

 
(d) Questions from Committee Members. 

  

2.40pm 

5   Estyn Monitoring Visit Action Plan - Progress Report   
 

(a) Councillor Julia Magill (Cabinet Member, Education and Skills) will be 
in attendance and may wish to make a statement. 

 

(b) Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning), Carol 
Jones (Assistant Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) and 
Marie Rosenthal, County Clerk and Monitoring Officer, will introduce 
their elements of the report. 

 

3.45pm 

Public Document Pack



 

 

(c) Questions from Committee Members. 

 
6   Cardiff Youth Offending Service - Annual Plan   

 
(a) Councillor Sue Lent (Cabinet Member, Early Years, Children & 

Families and Deputy Leader) will be in attendance and may wish to 
make a statement. 

 

(b) Ingrid Masmeyer (Cardiff YOS Manager) will introduce the report. 
 

(c) Questions from Committee Members 
 
 

 

4.15pm 

7   Way Forward   
 

5.00pm 

8   Date of Next Meeting  - The next regular meeting will be held on 
Tuesday 9 December at 4.30pm. 
 

 

    
  
Marie Rosenthal 
County Clerk & Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:  Wednesday 5 November 2014 
Contact:  Paul Burke,  
029 2087 2412, PaBurke@cardiff.gov.uk 
 



CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

7 OCTOBER 2014 

Present: Councillor Richard Cook (Chairperson), Councillors Boyle, 

Govier, Murphy, Dianne Rees and Thorne. 

  Co-opted Members: Ms C. Lewis (Parent Governor 

Representative) 

Apologies:  Councillors Davis, Gordon and Mrs P. Arlotte (Roman 

Catholic Representative) 

28: DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The Chairperson reminded Members of their responsibility under Part III 

of the Members’ Code of Conduct to declare any interest in general terms 

and to complete personal interest forms at the start of the meeting and 

then, prior to the commencement of the discussion of the item in 

question, specify whether it is a personal or prejudicial interest.  If the 

interest is prejudicial Members would be asked to leave the meeting and 

if the interest is personal, Members would be invited to stay, speak and 

vote.  The following declarations were made: 

Councillor Item  Interest 

Rees Item 6: Budget 

Monitoring Report - 

Education. 

Personal:  Member of 

governing body of 

Pontprennau Primary 

School. 

29: MINUTES OF LAST MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting of 3 September and 9 September were agreed 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairperson. 

30: CSSIW – LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN INSPECTION REPORT

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Lent, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member, Early Years, Children and Families, Tony Young, Director of 

Children’s Services, Debbie Martin-Jones, Operational Manager, Looked 

After Children Services and Pam Clutton, Lead Inspector, Care and 

Social Services Inspectorate Wales. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2

This report provided the Committee with an opportunity to receive the 

inspection report resulting from an inspection undertaken in May 2014 by 

the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), which was 

part of a CSSIW national inspection programme into the Safeguarding 

and Care Planning of Looked After Children (LAC) and care leavers who 

exhibit vulnerable or risky behaviour. 

Pam Clutton gave a presentation on the report. 

The Committee was informed that the CSSIW looked at a sample of 

cases, cases featuring children over the age of ten years and care leavers 

who fall into any one of thirteen categories of vulnerability, such as those 

who have absconded from their placement and those who are in danger of 

sexual exploitation. The CSSIW selected cases where there were multiple 

vulnerabilities and tracked three of these cases, looking at them in depth 

and at policies and procedures.  Cases were analysed using an audit tool 

and a judgement was made about the way the cases had been handled.  

Assessment, care planning and review systems were considered, as well 

as the extent to which the corporate parenting, management and 

partnership arrangements acted to promote improved outcomes for LAC 

and care leavers.  These areas were considered against the following five 

questions: 

1) Did the authority effectively discharge its corporate parenting roles 

and responsibilities promoting the stability, welfare and safety of 

looked after children and care leavers? 

2) Were care and pathway plans informed by relevant assessments, 

including explicit risk assessments, which supported a 

comprehensive response to the needs and experiences of children 

and young people? 

3) Were operational systems and procedures in place that ensured 

responsive coordinated action was taken to mitigate risk and 

achieve safe continuity of care? 

4) Did Independent Reviews and quality assurance arrangements 

promote safe care and best outcomes for young people? 

5) Did care and pathway planning effectively capture and promote the 

rights and voice of the child? 

Pam Clutton advised the Committee that one issue for Cardiff is the size 

of the city and this was taken into account as additional challenge.  The 

inspectors were impressed that social workers were able to talk with a 

Page 2



3

high degree of knowledge about the children and young people on their 

caseloads.  Elected Members had an understanding of the how the work 

of Children’s Services can make a difference in the lives of young people, 

the Chief Executive had a good view of how corporate parenting can be 

done in a holistic way and senior officers in Children’s Services are very 

knowledgeable.  Effective safeguards for children and young people are 

good and well established.  Against each of the questions considered, the 

inspection report gave positive findings as well as areas for improvement. 

The Chairperson invited comments and questions from the Committee. 

The Committee noted that in relation to question 2 it had been found that 

the quality of assessments was inconsistent and asked whether there were 

only slight variations in quality or extremes of variation.  The Committee 

was advised that the quality of assessments was found to be extremely 

variable.  Some assessments had not been updated, which may be due in 

part to the high turnover of staff.  The response to some new templates 

that have been developed has not been good, and they do not provide 

space in which the views of young people can be recorded, which is a 

crucial thing.  The Committee was informed that a new suite of templates 

for CareFirst, the database of service users, has been designed and two 

hundred and forty staff received training in their use in September.  Also, 

ten case files are audited by managers every quarter. 

The Committee noted that when looking at performance although 

inspectors used a system of performance grades, such as Excellent, Good, 

Poor, etc., these were not included in the final report and the Committee 

asked why this was the case, as their inclusion would enable comparisons 

with the performance of other authorities to be made.  The Committee 

was advised that this practice was discontinued when joint reviews were 

discontinued, although there is still some discussion on whether these 

ratings should be included.  When it comes to assessing performance, the 

focus is now much more to do with timelines, which are easier to 

measure. 

The Committee was advised that in the face of budget cuts, growing 

demand and new Welsh Government legislation, one of the main things 

the local authority should ensure is that it recruits, retains and supports a 

good workforce, providing staff with resources and effective supervision 

and providing quality assurance on the work that they do.  

The Committee asked about the provision of housing and supported 

accommodation for care leavers and was advised that Children’s Services 

Page 3



4

has been working with Housing on this.  An audit of what is available and 

what is needed has been carried out and it is thought that care leavers’ 

accommodation needs can be met. 

The Chairperson thanked Councillor Lent, the Director, Pam Clutton and 

officers for attending the meeting, for their presentations and for 

answering questions from Members. 

AGREED: That the Chairperson on behalf of the Committee writes to the 

Cabinet Member highlighting the following issues: 

Members welcomed the overall report and in particular the 

Inspector’s acknowledgement that Safeguarding in Cardiff was 

good.  Members were however concerned and surprised to be 

informed that the report indicated that there were inconsistencies in 

assessments as well inconsistencies in the data being placed on the 

CareFirst system.  Members also noted the number of “Areas for 

Improvement” highlighted in the report, and requested that an 

Action Plan be developed, to address the issues highlighted in the 

report and that a copy be made available to the Committee. 

31: ESTYN MONITORING VISIT ACTION PLAN– PROGRESS 

REPORT  

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Julia Magill, Cabinet Member for 

Education and Skills, Nick Batchelar, Director of Education and Lifelong 

Learning, Carol Jones, Assistant Director of Education and Neil Hardee, 

Head of Performance Resources and Services. 

The purpose of this report was to provide the Committee with an 

opportunity to receive an update on progress being made in the 

implementation of actions to address the following recommendations 

from the Estyn monitoring visit: 

Recommendation 3 - Ensure that the arrangements for delivering 

school improvement services challenge and support schools 

effectively, in order to improve standards for learners in all key stages; 

Recommendation 4 - Improve the effectiveness of joint planning across 

the range of partnership working; 

Recommendation 5 - Improve performance management processes to 

ensure a consistent approach in delivering objectives. 

Page 4



5

The Director gave a presentation.   

The Committee was informed that the three areas covered by these 

recommendations are the ones that Estyn will evaluate first on its 

evaluation cycle.  Recommendation 3 is essentially looking at the work of 

the Challenge Advisors and at the interface between the local authority 

and the South Central Consortium.  There have been some good 

managerial changes within the Consortium.  There have been some 

constructive meetings with the Challenge Advisors, who are very 

experienced people from a range of backgrounds.  Quality assurance on 

the work of the Advisors needs to be strengthened. 

In relation to Recommendation 4, a key focus of the Action Plan is 

sustained attention to those aspects of partnership working that relate to 

outcomes: 

• getting proper engagement with headteachers on school and system 

improvements;  

• outcomes for those young people who are not in employment, 

education or training (NEETs), on which some improvement is 

expected; 

• improving links with universities, on which some positive headway 

has been made and; 

• school engagement in neighbourhoods  

Regarding Recommendation 5, the Committee was informed that a more 

coherent approach for reporting mechanisms is to be developed.  A 

monthly report on performance in schools has been introduced and there 

is a rapid response when barriers to performance improvement are 

detected.   

The Chairperson invited comments and questions from the Committee. 

The Committee asked how the local authority is addressing the issue of 

the performance management of teachers.  The Committee was advised 

that this is the responsibility of headteachers, although the local authority 

could do more on this through its relationship with the governing bodies 

of schools.  Also, the Consortium monitors performance and the local 

authority challenges the Consortium in order to ensure that it does what is 

expected of it.   

Page 5



6

The Committee asked if data is available on the number of teachers who 

have had performance assessments.  The Committee was advised that, as 

with all staff in the local authority, all teachers should have had 

performance assessments.  The Education Strategy Group has looked at 

the management of teachers by headteachers and a plan has been drawn 

up to strengthen this.  Advice and guidance has been drawn up but more 

work is needed on management of teachers. Headteachers are reluctant to 

use the culpability procedures to address poor performance and this 

reluctance should be challenged.  Rather than being a punitive measure, 

the use of the procedures is a way of improving a teacher’s performance.  

Another way of ensuring that there is performance management for 

teachers is to ensure performance management for headteachers, 

something for which the governing bodies of schools are responsible.  

Governing bodies should receive from headteachers reports on the 

performance management of teachers in the school, so that they are aware 

that there are processes in place for this.  Unfortunately, not all 

headteachers provide these reports and not all governing bodies ask for 

them. 

The Committee asked whether it would be possible for it to receive data 

from the Consortium on the number of schools that have a less than 90% 

compliance rate in relation to Personal Performance and Development 

Reviews (PPDRs) for teachers.  The Director advised the Committee that 

it is the responsibility of headteachers, not the local authority, to manage 

schools.  In the past there has been a culture of dependency and blame, 

with poor schools relying too much on the local authority – and being 

able to blame the local authority if things went wrong -  whilst better 

schools were being held back.  The aim is to get away from that culture.  

To ask schools to provide the local authority with performance 

management data would undermine the strategy of delegation that is now 

in place. 

The Committee suggested that there are structural problems regarding the 

governance of schools, and there are not enough school governors.  It was 

suggested that perhaps there should be a two-tier level of governance, 

with some governors recruited against a matrix of skills, the possession of 

which would allow them to monitor the management of the school more 

effectively, and some governors recruited to focus more on the 

community aspects of the role.  

The Committee asked whether there is now clarity for headteachers and 

governors on the respective roles of the local authority and the 

consortium.  The Director advised the Committee that there has been a 

Page 6



7

helpful clarification on this.  Hannah Woodhouse, Managing Director of 

the Consortium, has brought a strategic focus and there is an 

acknowledgement in the Consortium that they key drive for improvement 

has to come from schools themselves.  

  

The Chairperson thanked Councillor Magill, the Director and officers for 

attending the meeting, for their presentation and for answering questions 

from Members. 

AGREED: That the Chairperson on behalf of the Committee write to the 

Cabinet Member highlighting the following issues: 

The Committee welcomed the opportunity to be updated on the 

progress being made in addressing the Estyn inspection 

recommendations and in particular the processes in place to ensure 

that the tasks have a clear impact in improving the educational 

attainment of pupils. 

Members noted with interest the progress being made as well as 

details of what has already been achieved in addressing each of these 

recommendations. Members then focussed their questions on the 

teacher performance and performance management by head teachers, 

as the Committee considered this to be a key area of concern. 

Following advice from the Director, the Members noted that this was 

the responsibility of headteachers and school governing bodies. 

Members considered that effective teaching was crucial to the 

improvement in pupil achievement. Members, during the way forward 

section of the meeting, agreed to ask scrutiny officers to write to all 

headteachers to seek an update on the number of teacher appraisals 

that they had undertaken last academic year. 

Members also requested clarification of the separate roles of the 

Education Department and the Central South Consortium in 

leadership training and school improvement groups. 

32: BUDGET MONITORING - EDUCATION 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Julia Magill, Cabinet Member for 

Education, Carol Jones, Assistant Director of Education and Neil Hardee, 

Head of Performance Resources and Services. 

The Committee agreed during its consideration of the annual work 

programme to review the forecasted financial monitoring position for the 

Page 7



8

Education and Lifelong Learning Directorate at its meeting in October 

2014. This report therefore provided Members with an overview of the 

accepted budgetary proposals together with an opportunity to scrutinise 

the budget position at Month 4. 

The Committee was informed that savings proposals of £6.512 million 

for the Directorate had been accepted by the Full Council in February 

2014.  Included in these are savings proposals of: 

£424,000 –  Education Management – rationalisation of centrally 

employed staff 

£400,000 -  Out of County Special Educational Needs (SEN) 

placements – robust procurement arrangements for new 

and reviewed placements 

£300,000 –  Business Support – restructure of the business support 

function 

The Committee was advised that the Directorate is currently 

overspending by just over £700,000.  It ended the last financial year with 

a small underspend but that won’t happen this year.  The areas of 

overspend include: 

• Rationalisation of Education Management - £177,000 

• Restructure of business support - £200,000 

• Out-of-county Special Educational Needs (SEN) -  £200,000 

Councillor Magill advised the Committee that the report gives an 

appraisal of the savings but does not set out what is being done to address 

the challenges presented by the proposals.  A number of avenues are 

being explored.  Some savings have been made in relation to tendering 

for school transport.  The Directorate is looking creatively at revenue 

budgets, grants and the premises that are used by Education.   

The Chairperson invited questions from the Committee. 

The Committee asked how many people are now employed in the 

Directorate and whether there has been a reduction in the number of staff 

within the managerial component of the workforce.  The Committee was 

advised that between 1500 and 1700 are employed in the Directorate.  It 

had been decided that it would be counter-productive to have a full 

Page 8



9

management restructure while Estyn were visiting, and when the new 

Director took up his post he needed to look at the existing structure, so 

this has caused a delay and  that has had an impact on the savings that 

will be made.  The savings will be realised in 2015/16. 

The Committee asked whether the impact of cuts is monitored.  It has 

been reported to a Committee Member that school buses are now full and 

that children can not get a seat even if their parents are willing to pay.  

This can mean that children have to walk to school and can have an 

impact in terms of lateness and attendance.  The Committee was advised 

that the impact of cuts is monitored and, if possible, adjustments are made 

when necessary.  The provision of some services is now delegated to 

schools through the delegation of budgets.   

The Committee commented that due to the delegation of budgets schools 

are being asked to take on a lot and the Committee enquired what the 

local authority is doing to help schools with their new responsibilities.  

The Committee was advised that all local authorities have delegated 

budgets to schools at a level of 85%.  Some aspects of delegation are 

working well.  Some headteachers of secondary schools would like a 

greater degree of budget delegation but headteachers of primary schools 

are less enthusiastic about that. The local authority provides schools with 

advice on financial management.  

The Chairperson thanked Councillor Magill, the Assistant Director and 

officers for attending the meeting, for their presentation and for 

answering questions from Members. 

AGREED: That the Chairperson on behalf of the Committee write to the 

Cabinet Member highlighting the following issues: 

The Committee welcomed the opportunity to receive an analysis of 

the Directorate’s expenditure over the first four months of the year, 

together with the detailed breakdown of each identified Directorate 

saving.  

Members expressed their concerned that the overspend was currently 

being forecasted at £729,000, and questioned in detail the main areas 

of overspend, in particular focussing on: 

• Rationalisation of Education Management, £177,000 

• Restructure of Business Support, £200,000 

• Out-of-county SEN £200,000 and  

Page 9



10

• the County Hall Nursery, £42,000. 

The Members questioned the reasons for the Cabinet to agree to 

delay the implementation of the rationalisation of education 

management and the resultant changes in business support and 

requested an update on the progress being made in implementing the 

alternative actions to ensure that the Department achieved a 

balanced budget at the year end. 

Members also recommended that the Department must actively 

monitor the impact of the savings on each of the services provided, 

and report back its findings to Committee in March 2015. 

During the way forward section of the meeting, Members requested 

details of the Education Directorate Establishment as at 31 March 

2014 and as at 31 September 2014 so that they could fully appreciate 

the changes made following the rationalisation. The Committee also 

agreed to request that scrutiny officers seek views from headteachers 

on the increasing levels of delegated budget, as it was alleged that 

some school were concerned at the level of delegation being 

increased above 85%. 

33: SCHOOL BALANCES – BRIEFING REPORT 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Julia Magill, Cabinet Member for 

Education, Carol Jones, Assistant Director of Education and Neil Hardee, 

Head of Performance Resources and Services. 

The Committee has expressed concern at the level of negative financial 

balances that some schools had at the end of the financial year. In 

addition, the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee wrote 

the Chairperson of this Committee highlighting its concern at the negative 

balances.  This Committee has therefore included the consideration of a 

briefing paper on school balances in its work programme for this year.  

The purpose of this report was to provide the Committee with a briefing 

on the level of balances across Cardiff’s schools. 

Councillor Magill informed the Committee that the pressure on school 

finances is coming through in the balances and this pressure is also being 

reported by schools.  Some deficits have been agreed with the local 

authority, for instance when a school is undergoing a period of transition, 

and other deficits are being managed down.   

Page 10



11

The Committee was informed that for the last four or five years school 

budgets have been protected by the Welsh Government but that 

protection has reduced over time.  Schools are still affected by growth 

pressures.  Pupil numbers in primary schools are increasing and in time 

that will filter through the whole system.  The Welsh Government is to 

continue the Pupil Depravation Grant and schools will have a two year 

budget settlement. 

The Chairperson invited questions from the Committee. 

The Committee pointed out that schools have to be authorised by the 

Council to go into a positive balance by more than 5% and some schools 

have balances in excess of this.  The Committee was advised that schools 

are not permitted to set a deficit budget without the permission of 

Education and Finance.  The Welsh Government has changed the 

regulations on positive balances and under the new regulations if a school 

has a balance of over £50,000, in the case of a primary school, or 

£100,000, in the case of a secondary school, then the local authority is 

allowed to take the excess and use it for educational purposes.  Where it 

is seen that schools are holding large positive balances the local authority 

asks the school to justify this.  Sometimes schools hold large balances 

when they are planning changes to the school building.  If a school plans 

to improve its buildings or perhaps its IT facilities then the local authority 

does look favourably on that.  The Committee suggested that in such 

cases it would not be unreasonable for the local authority to set schools a 

deadline for spending the funds they have set aside for such improvement 

projects. 

The Chairperson thanked Councillor Magill, the Assistant Director and 

officers for attending the meeting, for their presentation and for 

answering questions from Members. 

AGREED: That the Chairperson on behalf of the Committee write to the 

Cabinet Member highlighting the following issues: 

The Committee welcomed the briefing on the level of school balances 

and noted the reasons for the positive and negative balances and 

expressed their concern to hear that increased pressures on schools 

were impacting on their school balances. 

Members were pleased to be informed of the processes in place to 

manage both the positive and negative balances and in particular the 

four stage process for a school making an application for a licenced 

Page 11



12

deficit, which must include a financial plan to resolve the deficit 

within three years. Members did however wish to encourage the 

Cabinet to closely monitor those schools with large positive balances 

to ensure that the funds are utilised efficiently and effectively as soon 

as possible. 

Finally the Committee wished to thank the Cabinet Member and the 

Director for having progressed the Estyn Action Plan as well as 

having to implement funding reductions across the Department. 

34: BUDGET MONITORING REPORT – CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Lent, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member, Early Years, Children and Families and Tony Young, Director 

of Children’s Services. 

The Committee agreed during its consideration of the annual work 

programme to review the forecasted financial monitoring position for 

Children’s Services. This report therefore provided the Committee with 

an overview of the accepted budgetary proposals for 2014/15, together 

with an opportunity to scrutinise the Directorate’s budget position at 

Month 4. 

The Director informed the Committee that savings proposals amounting 

to £2.655 million were listed in the report and that in the main the 

Directorate was on course to deliver these savings.  The financial position 

in Month 4 has deteriorated and this is mostly attributable to agency costs 

in relation to services for Looked After Children (LAC), but those costs 

are coming down due to the work that has been done on the recruitment 

and retention of social workers.   There has been an overspend in relation 

to adoption fees and allowances as there was a significant increase in the 

numbers placed for adoption the previous year.  But the Director advised 

the Committee that in his view this was money well spent, as the costs to 

the local authority would, in the long run, have been much higher if these 

children had continued to be looked after by the authority.  Since April 

2014 LAC numbers have increased by twenty-two.  The Directorate is 

also paying more for residential placements due to the particular needs of 

the children that have been placed. 

The Chairperson invited questions from the Committee. 

The Committee enquired about the effect that the Workforce Package has 

had on staff.  The Committee was informed that an assessment of 

Page 12



13

remuneration to staff revealed that Cardiff’s position was relatively good 

when compared to other local authorities.  There was some resentment 

about the Package but it does not seem to have an impact on recruitment 

and retention. 

The Committee suggested that if more children have been adopted, 

resulting in extra expenditure on adoption fees and allowances, it would 

still be reasonable to expect that overall costs for the Directorate would 

have fallen, because fewer children were being looked after by the 

authority.  The Committee asked how it can have confidence in the 

Directorate’s projections on overspend.  The Director advised the 

Committee that he can not be confident that the demand for services will 

not rise.  The number of children coming into the system is outstripping 

the Directorate’s ability to make savings.  Children who are placed in 

expensive out-of-county placements tend to be older children, children 

who have been placed after repeated attempts to keep them within the 

care of their own family; the more attempts are tried and then fail, the 

more the children’s problems increase and the more difficult the children 

then become to manage.  Situations in which keeping children within 

their families is not a viable option need to be identified sooner.  But even 

if that is done, it would take several years for the resulting savings to be 

realised.  The demand for services is increasing in both England and 

Wales, and more children are being brought into the system by judges 

who are very proactive. 

The Committee asked the Director whether Children’s Services will be 

requesting another budget contingency.  The Director advised the 

Committee that some things are not within his control and, if the current 

level of demand flows through to the following year, some very difficult 

decisions lie ahead, for both him and the local authority. 

The Committee asked the Director to comment on the matter of 

inappropriate referrals.  The Director advised the Committee that officers 

from Children’s Services have visited the Leeds local authority and seen 

how the co-location of staff from the police, the health service and from 

children’s services departments can help to reduce the number of 

inappropriate referrals.  The Committee was advised that in Cardiff 80% 

of children that are the subject of referrals do not end up coming into the 

system.  What is needed is a model of prevention that stops cases even 

getting referred to Children’s Services in the first place, a model based on 

early intervention that addresses the need before it becomes a problem.  

There is no right figure for numbers of LAC.  What is true for Cardiff, 

though, is that when compared to other local authorities in Wales its rate 

Page 13



14

of admissions is lower than one would expect.  What is needed is to find 

the right preventative strategy.  

The Chairperson thanked Councillor Lent and the Director for attending 

the meeting, for their presentation and for answering questions from 

Members. 

AGREED: That the Chairperson on behalf of the Committee write to the 

Cabinet Member highlighting the following issues: 

The Committee welcomed the opportunity to receive a detailed 

analysis of the Directorate’s expenditure over the first four months of 

the year, together with the detailed analysis of each identified 

Directorate saving. 

The Members expressed concern that an overspend was currently 

being forecasted at £365,000, after the transfer of £950,000 from the 

Council’s Corporate Contingency Budget. Members considered that 

the corporate contingency may not be available in future years and as 

such Children’s Service’s expenditure must to be monitored 

extremely closely to ensure that future expenditure remains within 

budget. 

The Committee focussed on the three main areas of overspend, 

namely: 

• Placement of Looked After Children - £725,000 

• External legal advice and Court Fees – £279,000 

• Adoption fees -£290,000 

Members noted the Director’s comments that these were demand 

driven and difficult to control, however there was a clear commitment 

to identifying alternative preventative models to help manage 

expenditure. The Committee requested that the Director provide a 

briefing report on the various initiatives being developed. In addition, 

the Committee recommended that alternative uses for Thornhill Road 

and Suffolk house must be identified as soon as possible to minimise 

the ongoing maintenance and security costs. 

35: DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be held on Tuesday 11 November 2014 at 2.30pm 

in Committee Room 1. 

Page 14



15

The meeting closed at 6pm.   

Signed   ________________________________ Date  ____________ 

Chairperson

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL         AGENDA ITEM: 4 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:  
11 NOVEMBER 2014 

CENTRAL SOUTH CONSORTIUM – ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 2014 

Reason for the Report 

1. To enable Members to receive a report on the Central South Consortium’ 

performance and budgetary position, and help contribute to the development of next 

years business plan. The report will also enable the Committee to judge the 

Consortium’s progress in addressing those actions identified to address the 

recommendation within the Estyn Monitor visit letter. 

Background 

2. The Welsh Government ‘s  National model for regional working, published in 

February 2014  includes a section on Scrutiny and liaison between local authorities 

and regional consortia, which states: 

“Regional consortia will nominate a senior officer to liaise with the each 

authority’s lead officer. It shall be for the respective officers to agree on the scope 

and frequency of their meetings, with contact being more intensive the greater 

the number of schools in the authority that come into one of the categories of 

concern. A note of meetings, recording issues discussed and decisions agreed, 

will be made. 

Each Local Authority and their respective regional consortium will make 

arrangements for robust democratic scrutiny of the consortium business plan and 

activities as it relates to individual local authority area. Each authority’s scrutiny 

committee for education services will also need sufficient information to consider 

the performance of their schools. 

Local authorities undertake to be reasonable in their expectation of consortia 

staff and resources and ensure that senior leaders are not required to spend a 

disproportionate amount of their time on reporting and scrutiny work”. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 17



3. The Central South Consortium’s business plan refers to the scrutiny arrangements 

and states that the Managing Director of the Consortium will be expected to provide 

a report to each scrutiny committee of each local authority on the performance and 

budgetary position of the consortium and the future business plan proposals. This 

would ideally take place in the autumn term to inform Business planning. 

  

4. Cabinet at its meeting on 9 October 2014 approved a report on the National Model 

for Regional School Improvement Working in Wales – Central South Education 

Consortium, which included within the agreement that “The Parties have agreed the 

Managing Director shall provide a report to each local authority scrutiny committee with 

responsibility for education on the performance and budgetary position of the CSC and 

the future business plan proposals. This would likely take place during the autumn term 

so as to inform business planning”.

5. The Committee considered the Consortium’ business plan at its meeting on 10 June 

2014 as part of its consideration of the Education Business plan. The Committee 

considered in detail the new role of the School Challenge Advisors, and looked 

forward to seeing the impact that these advisors are making in fostering steady 

progress of the School Improvement Groups and ensuring school wisely use any 

Pupil Deprivation Grant. 

6. The Committee also agreed that as part of its work programme, this Committee 

would undertake the scrutiny of the Consortium to ensure that it provides the 

support and guidance and challenge needed to enable Cardiff’s Schools to improve 

and improve the outcomes of Cardiff ‘s Pupils. 

Issues 

7. The Managing Director of the Central South Consortium, Hannah Woodhouse, 

supported by Stuart Sherman ands Debbie Lewis, Consortium Challenge Advisors, 

will be in attendance and has provided a briefing on the Central South Consortiums 

contribution to raising standards in Cardiff Schools, copy attached at Appendix A.  

Page 18



The briefing cover the following elements: 

a. Changes to Central South Consortium 

b. Performance in the region in 2014; 

c. Consortium’s business and priorities 

d. The Central South Wales Challenge 

e. The role of Challenge Advisors and the Challenge Framework in Cardiff; 

f. How is the consortium supporting Cardiff Schools

g. Budgetary Position 

h. Accountability and Quality Assurance 

i. Issues to be developed further, 

8. In addition, Estyn in its letter following the latest Monitoring visit, provided a number 

of comments on the arrangements for delivering school improvement services, 

challenge and support to all schools. In particular Estyn highlighted the following 

issues which needed to be  addressed by the Consortium, these include: 

a. Improved arrangements to identify and intervene in underperforming 

schools and that this work is now having an impact;

b. Challenge Advisers are of a high quality and  have clear guidance to 

support  them in challenging schools, with robust and up to date 

information; 

c. quality assuring process for Challenge Advisers have been strengthened, 

and are now secure to bring a rigorous challenge to schools; 

d. that school underperformance is recognised quickly with the consistent 

use of the assessment criteria and actions are put in place as soon as 

possible; 

e. that Challenge Advisers have access to the consortiums support and 

challenge framework to classify schools according to risk and to plan 

appropriate interventions; 

f. That there is clear link between the category of the school and the 

performance of its pupils; 

g. That all annual school performance reports contain clear messages for 

schools to know how to improve and explain clearly any shortcomings; 

Page 19



h. Help school governors become more effective in identifying area for 

improvement and monitoring the improvements actions. 

Scope of Scrutiny 

9. This report will provide the Committee with an opportunity to gain an understanding 

and test that the operation of the Consortium in its support to Cardiff schools 

together with the Council to, improve learner’s outcomes, deliver high quality 

teaching and learning and support and empower school leaders. 

10. It will also enable Members to enquire that: 

i. the Consortium is performing well in its activities and within budget 

ii. the changes being implemented by the Consortium are helping either 

improve or make services for pupils in Cardiff more effective? 

iii. The actions being implemented by the Consortium will fully address the 

concerns raised by Estyn. 

Way Forward 

11. At the meeting.  Hannah Woodhouse, Managing Director of the Central South 

Consortium and Stuart Sherman and Debbie Lewis, Challenge Advisors, will be in 

attendance to present the briefings on the Consortium’s performance budget and 

comment on issues raised by Estyn in its monitoring visit letter. 

12. At the meeting Councillor Julia Magill (Cabinet Member for Education and Skills) and 

Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong Learning) will be in attendance to 

answer any questions Members may wish to ask. 

13. Members may wish to note the information contained in the report and determine 

whether there are any issues or comments which they would like to pass on to the 

Page 20



Managing Director of the Consortium, Cabinet Member or Director of Education and 

Lifelong Learning. 

Legal Implications

14. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 

without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes 

to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 

behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances. 

Financial Implications 

15. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 

relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if 

and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

modifications.  Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

Page 21



Recommendations 

The Committee is recommended to:  

I. consider the information provided in the report, appendix and presentation;  

II. consider whether they have any observations, comments or recommendations 

they wish to make; and 

III. consider a way forward with regard to any future scrutiny of the issues raised. 

MARIE ROSENTHAL 

County Clerk and Monitoring Officer 

3rd November 2014 

Page 22



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

Central South Consortium and its contribution to raising standards in Cardiff 

Schools 

Paper for Cardiff Scrutiny Committee  

November 2014 

Introduction  

1. A report has been requested by the Cardiff Scrutiny committee from Central 

South Consortium following a presentation to the committee in June 2014.  

The report was required to address the performance and budgetary position 

of the Consortium as well as how well the Consortium is addressing the 

recommendations from Estyn raised in February 2014.

Changes to Central South Consortium 

2. Central South Consortium covers 406 schools and approximately 30% of 

Wales’ children from across the five authorities of Bridgend, Cardiff, Merthyr 

Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of Glamorgan.     Since its beginning 

in 2012 the Consortium has undergone a period of rapid change.   In January 

2014 schools across the region led the establishment of the ‘Central South 

Wales Challenge’, a self improving school system across the region where 

increasingly schools are encouraged and enabled to lead improvement across 

the system working together with other schools and drawing capacity from 

each other.    

3. In 2014 Welsh Government produced the ‘National Model for Consortium 

working’ and required each consortium to produce a business case 

demonstrating how it meets the national model.   As a result there was further 

significant restructure of the consortium.  Significant among this was the 

ending of the LINKS traded service, the appointment of a new literacy and 

numeracy team as well as new lead roles for leadership and teaching and 

learning.  The appointment of all challenge advisers was reviewed, the total 

number of posts reduced, a number of challenge advisers left the service and 

a further group of seconded headteachers were appointed to the service on a 

part or full time basis.  A third of challenge advisers are now successful 

Page 23



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

recently retired or practicing headteachers. The senior tier of Senior 

Challenge advisers changed significantly to recognise the increasingly 

effective partnership working between local authorities and the consortium.  

4. Significant changes have been made to the governance of the consortium 

from September 2014.  The Joint Committee which is responsible for the 

consortium’s performance has been slimmed down and strengthened, lead 

roles reviewed, an Executive Board established with representation from 

headteachers and external experts and a governor steering group set up to 

complement the headteachers steering group.  Cardiff Council are now well 

represented in the governance structure: Paul Orders is the lead Chief 

Executive for the region this year, Julia McGill Cabinet Member for Education 

and Learning chairs the Consortium’s Executive Board.   

5. The  consortium is not currently responsible for providing support to 

governors, 14-19 curriculum advice to secondary schools and colleges or for 

HR specialist advice to schools.  However, working closely with the directors 

of education, the consortium has established a regional governors’ steering 

group comprised of five expert governors within the governance structure. 

This group is working with the consortium to develop a programme that will 

provide support in those areas of governance where further development is 

required. This will include support for governors’ role in self-evaluation and 

improvement planning and in fulfilling their role as a school’s critical friend, all 

of which are key in a self-improving school system.   Over the longer term the 

consortium will be working with the five authorities to support the provision of 

consistent and high quality HR services, governor support and 14-19 services 

for schools in each authority.  These arrangements will feature in the 

consortium business plan 2015/16. 

Performance in the region in 2014 

6. Since 2012 standards have improved across the region at every key stage.  In 

2014 outcomes demonstrate significant improvement across the Central 

South region, outstripping that of other regions and national improvements at 

the foundation phase, key stages 2, 3 and 4.  

Page 24



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

7. Headline performance indicators demonstrate: 

a. At the Foundation phase schools achieved a 3.2% point improvement, 

against a national improvement of 2.2% at the expected level. In 

Cardiff Foundation Phase results role by 2.8% against the Foundation 

Phase Indicator. 

b. At Key Stage Two outcomes at level 4+ improved across the region 

from 82.3% to 85.8%  (nationally 86.1%) – a rise of 2% points against 

1.8% points nationally. KS2 results rose in Cardiff by 2.5% at level 4+ 

against the core subject indicator (CSI). 

c. At Key Stage Three results rose from 76.1% at level 5+ to 80.3% (81% 

nationally) a rise of 4.2% points against 4% points nationally. On 

average results rose by 3.7% in Cardiff against the CSI. 

d. At Key Stage Four (provisional), all five authorities improved at L2+ by 

more than the national level of improvement leading to a regional 

average improvement of 4.6% points vs the national of 2.2% points. 

Cardiff schools improved by 3.8% (provisional). 

e. In mathematics in particular L2 improvement at KS4 in the region was 

4.4% points (56.3% to 60.4%) on average against a national average 

improvement of 1.4% points (60.3 to 61.4%).  Cardiff schools L2 

mathematics outcomes improved by 3.1%. 

f. Attendance also improved in both phases taking the region to the 

national average at secondary level for the second year (93.6%). In the 

primary sector attendance was at the Welsh average in 2012-2013 and 

improved by a further 0.8% overall in 2013-2014. Attendance has 

improved in Cardiff by 3.4% since 2011 in secondary schools and by 

2% (provisional) in primary schools.  

8. Most significantly the performance of pupils claiming free school meals (FSM) 

has improved faster than the national average at the Foundation Phase and 

key stages 2 and 3. The rate of improvement has been between 3%-4% 

greater than for non e-FSM pupils. As a result the gap in performance has 

begun to narrow. In Key Stage 4 in contrast the gap between the performance 

Page 25



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

of e-FSM pupils and non e-FM pupils widened by around 1% across the 

region as whole. However, in Cardiff the gap was reduced by 2.6%.   

9. These improvements notwithstanding there is much to do to improve 

outcomes at each key stage. In some cases the improvements in 

performance have started from a low base and, even though the gaps with the 

Welsh averages have reduced considerably, there is a need to improve 

performance further so that the region’s pupils can compete successfully with 

their peers across Wales, the UK and beyond.   

10. Cardiff Scrutiny Committee received a verbal report on the educational 

performance of Cardiff schools on the 8th September and will receive a full 

performance report from officers in January following the availability of final 

published data.  The headline data for Cardiff show improvement at each key 

stage. However, even though there was more substantial improvement at key 

stage 4 than previously, the rate of improvement has not yet matched that of 

some other authorities in the region. In particular, there are still variations in 

performance between similar schools at key stage 4 that inhibit improvement 

overall at a fast enough rate.  

Central South Consortium: Business case and priorities 

11. The 2014/15 Consortium Business Case establishes seven priority areas for 

the Consortium to demonstrate impact. These are: 

I. To close the gap in outcomes between children receiving free school meals 

and those not whilst improving both groups; 

II. To improve literacy in English/Welsh; 

III. To improve numeracy; 

IV. To improve outcomes at the Level 2+ threshold (five GCSEs A-C including 

English/Welsh and mathematics; 

V. To improve teaching; 

VI. To improve leadership; 

VII. To improve attendance. 

Page 26



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

12. The Consortium 13/14 Business Case sets stretching and ambitious targets 

against each priority based on those set in each authority and reflecting the 

outcomes of schools’ target setting.  Each LA has agreed a local authority 

annex which indicates targets for that local authority which reflect those set in 

the post-inspection action plan  or corporate education plan.  The local 

authority reviews performance against the annex following a performance 

report received by the end of the autumn and spring terms.  

The Central South Wales Challenge 

13. The Business Case also establishes the strategic ambition to develop and 

support a self improving school system which is enquiry led and built around 

effective self evaluation and improvement planning.  This is called  the 

Central South Wales Challenge.  The Central South Wales Challenge is 

about improving outcomes against the priorities through leadership of a self-

improving school system.   It is based on the evidence about what works in 

systems internationally and uses six indicators.   The table below sets out the 

current position against each and how we will measure impact.  

Indicator Impact measured by 

A focus on capacity and leadership of 

teaching and learning through the 

development of school improvement hubs

resourced in September to provide leadership 

and teaching and learning support across the 

region; 

Clear criteria for hub schools. 

Numbers of teachers completing 

OTP/ITP, teaching and 

learning/leadership indicator in 

Estyn reports and externally 

accredited. 

School Improvement Groups (SIGs) set up 

in April which include all schools in the region 

within 43 groups. They each deliberately 

include a range of schools with differing levels 

of capacity, need and from different parts of 

the region.   

SIG plans received with impact 

measures, challenge framework 

monitoring impact on schools, 

CAs badged against schools, 

external evaluation 

commissioned from Nov 14. 

Page 27



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

30 Pathfinder partnerships established in 

February across the region on a school to 

school basis.  Funding provided against plan. 

Phase two in development.  

Initial evaluation in September 

14 reported significant impact on 

school capacity to improve.  

Family/community: Closing the gap case 

study schools identified and built on/invested 

in to share expertise. Pledge developed to 

identify and share cultural capital access to all 

children in the region. 

Case study schools identified 

from data and reviewed by Ipsos 

Mori by Jan 2015. 

Leadership: Peer reviews piloted across the 

region with a view to developing offer for all 

green/yellow schools from 2015/16. 

External training provided to 

peer reviewers who must meet 

criteria and Estyn involved in 

training.  

LA/Consortium role: Improved Challenge 

framework for CA role focused on building 

capacity for self evaluation in schools, 

improved engagement with governors and 

increasingly using school led support models 

(as above). Sharper more consistent LA 

function including consistent intervention 

model. 

Improved QA of challenge 

adviser function and challenge 

framework expectations.  

Focus on Estyn monitoring of 

challenge and support. 

14. Good progress has been made in moving to a school-led strategy but it is 

recognised that further work will need to be done to evidence the impact of 

the Challenge on standards, teaching and leadership. Headteachersin Cardiff 

are very well involved in influencing the direction of this work through the 

headteachers’ strategy group. Most, but not all schools, are now active 

participants in the collaborative work of their school improvement groups.    

This work is reported regularly through the governance structure of the 

consortium and will develop further in the 2015/16 consortium business case.  

Page 28



�����������

	���	 
 � � �

�

The role of Challenge Advisers and the Challenge Framework in Cardiff  

15. Effective school self-evaluation and improvement planning are at the centre of 

the vision of a self-improving school system.  The Consortium acknowledges 

the basis of the February 2014 Estyn findings in the Cardiff inspection which 

recognised the sound basis provided by the challenge framework but  

highlighted the need to improve the challenge and support provided to 

Cardiff’s schools. It has been clear that despite good work in some areas 

professional practice and performance management have needed 

improvement to bring greater consistency to the quality of the challenge and 

support.  

16. As a result there have been a number of significant changes. These include: 

close working with the newly appointed head of achievement and inclusion in 

Cardiff;  changes to the arrangements at senior challenge adviser level for the 

authority; the appointment of a senior challenge adviser to oversee the work 

of challenge advisers in secondary schools; the coordination of the  work of 

the secondary schools in the Schools Challenge Cymru through a senior 

officer; implementation of performance management that makes a link 

between the work of challenge advisers and the progress made by the 

schools to which they are attached; quality assurance of challenge advisers’ 

work through accompanied visits to schools and scrutiny of written reports.   

17. There is now earlier engagement with schools where the need to improve is 

greatest and a clearer identification of strengths and areas for improvement. 

Arrangements for assessing and reporting the progress of these schools are 

also now more systematic.  Cardiff Council’s self evaluation of progress 

against Estyn recommendations indicates the progress of this work so far: 

‘Improved support and challenge can be seen in the improvement in 

outcomes overall: at level 2+ the 4% improvement is the highest year on year 

gain in Cardiff since this measure was introduced. However the variability 

between schools in similar contexts suggests that more work needs to be 

done to ensure consistency in challenge and support.’ Cardiff Council 

Commentary on progress in addressing Estyn’s recommendation.  Nick 

Page 29



�����������


���	 
 � � �

�

Batchelar. Director of Education and Lifelong Learning. Sept 14. 

18. It will be important to continue efforts to bring greater consistency and rigour 

to the processes for supporting and monitoring the work in these schools so 

that progress occurs as needed. The consortium has already brought to the 

attention of the local authority schools where there are concerns about 

performance. The local authority is responding by taking action concerning 

the use of its statutory intervention powers.  

19. The consortium has also worked hard to improve the Framework For 

Challenge And Support ands the consistency with which it is applied by 

challenge advisers. This makes clearer the expectations of the challenge 

advisers concerning the key aspects of their work, and starts to shift the 

responsibility for school self- evaluation and improvement to the headteacher 

and governors, supported or challenged by the challenge adviser.   Each 

challenge adviser works with the school to agree a report that summarises the 

view of strengths and areas for improvement in standards and the school’s 

ability to improve. The report also confirms the level of support required by the 

school. The challenge adviser supports the school to identify improvement 

priorities and access support, increasingly  from other schools but also from 

providers based within the consortium or commissioned elsewhere.  The 

framework has brought forward the timescale of engagement with vulnerable 

schools so that challenge advisers can proceed more swiftly from the start of 

the autumn term to identify priorities and provide support.  

20. It will be important also that there is greater  focus on working collaboratively 

with those services that remain within the local authority and which also have 

a significant bearing on school improvement. These include inclusion 

services, support for vulnerable learners such as looked after children as well 

as officers working in HR, finance and school organisational planning. The 

collaboration between the senior challenge advisers and head of achievement 

and inclusion will be particularly important in overseeing procedures that lead 

to effective working between challenge advisers and relevant officers based in 

the local authority. It will be important that there is a tight grip on monitoring 

Page 30



�����������

����	 
 � � �

�

progress and improvement planning with Cardiff schools, as highlighted 

above, with a focus on schools making insufficient progress.  This will be a 

priority for the organisation during the year and the consortium’s senior staff 

will need to work closely with the authority’s senior staff in this respect.  

21. The work of the challenge advisers is underpinned by the new national 

categorisation model which is now in place for all primary schools and is 

underway for secondary schools.  The Welsh Government places each school 

in a standards group (1-4) as step 1 of the process and the challenge adviser 

then agrees with each school a judgement about its ability to improve 

(categories A-D) at step 2. These two judgements are then brought together 

to agree the most appropriate level of support for the school from green, 

through yellow, amber and then red (most intensive support)    This approach 

which involves the challenge adviser in validating or challenging the school’s 

view of itself  has been welcomed by schools across the region. The impact of 

these changes has been evident in Cardiff in the earlier identification of 

schools causing concern and closer collaboration with the local authority to 

take swifter action and support as highlighted above. It will be important that 

this underpins a better consistency of practice across the region and that 

there is evidence that improvement is taking place more robustly through the 

regularly progress reviews. 

How is the consortium supporting Cardiff schools? 

22. Cardiff Local Authority contribute £1,534,519 of the total £4,416,486 core 

funding for the Consortium function.  The consortium provides twelve full or 

part time Challenge advisers working with Cardiff schools plus support for 

Schools Challenge Cymru advisers and two senior challenge adviser posts – 

primary and secondary.   In addition to the consortium leadership team, data 

team and business support and core costs, all schools in the region have 

access to core funded support from strategic advisers for literacy and 

numeracy (primary and secondary), leadership, teaching, ICT, foundation 

phase, Welsh and Welsh second language.    The CSW strategy group is 

funded from core funding as is the pathfinder programme - 13 Cardiff primary 

Page 31



�����������

�����	 
 � � �

�

schools and 5 secondaries have been part of the first tranche of the CSW 

pathfinder programme.  

23. Retained School Effectiveness Grant partly funds literacy and numeracy 

support to schools most in need. This includes 22 Cardiff primary schools in 

receipt of intensive literacy and numeracy support. 15 secondary schools are 

receiving secondary maths and English interventions.   SEG also funds 

School Improvement Groups and our data indicates that all Cardiff schools 

bar a small minority are engaged in SIGs.  

24. Latest data indicates that 34 middle or senior leaders in Cardiff accessed 

leadership provision from the consortium last year and so far 27 have 

committed to leadership programmes this year.    95 teachers from 40 Cardiff 

schools have been part of the Olevi accredited Outstanding Teacher 

Programme and Improving Teacher Programme (OTP/ITP) which was offered 

across the Consortium from January 2014.  Cardiff High School is leading on 

the development of the improvement hubs and providing OTP/ITP from 

September.     

25. There are three additional advisers covering the 6 Schools Challenge Cymru 

schools in Cardiff and in addition the Foundation Phase, Welsh in Education, 

Physical Education in School, Hwb+ and Qualified for Life teams are working 

with Cardiff schools as part of their grant funded operation.  

Budgetary position 

26. An updated budget report was recently presented to the Joint Committee of 

the consortium and is publicly available. It demonstrated that the consortium 

is currently showing a slight overspend of less than £40k due to development 

work to design new functions for which the consortium was not funded initially, 

but it is on track to deliver a balanced budget by year end.  In addition the 

annual audit of accounts was presented to show that the financial 

management of budget has been conducted appropriately.  

Page 32



�����������

�����	 
 � � �

�

27. Longer term, the five authorities are working together to agree the principles 

of core consortium budgets and grant arrangements for 15/16 within the 

commitment to minimise turbulence and maximise the effective delegation of 

budgets to schools.  

Accountability and quality assurance 

28. The new leadership and governance structure of the consortium is improving 

but changes are still very recent and will require more time to demonstrate 

sustained impact.  As indicated above Cardiff Council are very significantly 

represented in the new governance and accountability structure– which has 

been in place only from September.  There is a clearer reporting process and 

improvement cycle.  The Director of Education and Cabinet Member hold the 

Consortium to account through a termly progress report at or shortly after the 

end of term.   

29. At an operational level, the interface between Cardiff Council and the 

Consortium has been further strengthened by the recent appointment of the 

new Head of Service and Assistant Director in Cardiff who work closely with 

senior staff in the consortium.  The Head of Service will meet regularly with 

senior challenge advisers to review progress.  As the new structure beds in 

the structures in place need to demonstrate their ability to challenge and hold 

the Consortium to account on outcomes and impact.  

30. In recognition of the need to improve oversight and quality assurance the 

Consortium has taken steps to improve processes as follows: 

a. A performance management framework with clearer expectations about 

objective setting and performance monitoring. Senior Challenge advisers are 

clearer about their line management expectations and are undertaking joint 

visits with CAs as highlighted earlier.  

b. A professional development framework to support capacity building within 

the service is being developed in addition to national training. The framework 

includes collaborative action research, reflection about practice and 

Page 33



�����������

�����	 
 � � �

�

coaching. In combination these are intended to ensure that all challenge 

advisers are well placed to meet the national standards. 

c. An explicit quality assurance model including regular review of inspection 

outcomes against categorisation and pre inspection reports, progress 

against the framework, progress of vulnerable schools as well as budget 

monitoring.  In addition a school improvement group (SIG) report will be 

provided each term on the progress and impact of SIGs and pathfinders. 

d. A report will be provided to each LA each term on the implementation of the 

framework, inspection outcomes against categorisation and progress of 

vulnerable schools.  The Director of each authority will review progress with 

the Managing Director of the consortium and senior staff. 

e. The consortium has commissioned two independent evaluations of progress 

of the implementation of our Central South Wales challenge framework and 

a further externally led survey of the use of PDG in Central South Schools.  

Issues to be developed further 

31. There are a number of issues which the consortium needs to make fast 

progress on: 

• sharp pace and urgency to focus on the achievement of children 

eligible for  free school meals in particular across the region; 

• alignment with Schools Challenge Cymru to ensure a clear focus and 

impact on the schools that are part of the Challenge  and across the system 

using the significant resources, high visibility and high quality advisers 

working in the programme;   

• analysis of key stage 2 and 3 tests indicates some variation of teacher 

assessment and moderation. All consortia are reviewing how they support 

cluster schools to effectively moderate assessment;   

Page 34



�����������

�����	 
 � � �

�

• deepening joint practice development work across all SIGs and 

pathfinders through the development of evaluative practice training and 

joint practice development tools; 

• building further capacity in teaching and learning and leadership 

through hubs and peer review work. This work is particularly strong in Cardiff 

where a number of hub and specialist schools are developing. This 

programme has significant potential to build sustainable high quality capacity 

for all schools in the region built on evidence based practice about effective 

teaching and leadership; 

• work  with all HR and governor support teams to embed consistency and 

quality advice for schools regardless of where they are in the region; 

• improving the supply and recruitment of high quality teachers into the 

region through work with Teach First and exploring other direct recruitment 

models; and 

• improved use of information IT systems across the region through the 

development of the Portal as a single point of information for schools, 

authorities and consortium colleagues across the region. 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL        AGENDA ITEM: 5  
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11 November 2014 

Estyn Inspection Action Plan - Progress Monitoring report 

Purpose of the Report  

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an opportunity to 

receive an update on progress being made in implementation the actions to 

address the next set of  recommendations from Estyn monitoring visit: 

(i) Recommendation 2 - Reduce exclusions and reduce the proportion of young 

people who are not in education, employment or training post 16; and 

(ii) Recommendation 6 - Improve the scrutiny of local authority education service 

and partnership working. 

Background 

2. As reported to Committee at its meeting in April 2104 the Estyn Monitoring Revisit 

letter revised the previous recommendations made by the Inspectorate, to bring 

about the necessary improvements in a timely manner. The letter sets out six new 

recommendations for the Council to address, namely:

(i) Raise standards, particularly at Key Stage 4; 

(ii) Reduce exclusions and reduce the proportion of young people who are not in 

education, employment or training post 16; 

(iii) Make sure that the arrangements for delivering school improvement services 

challenge and support schools effectively, in order to improve standards for 

learners in all key stages; 

(iv) Improve the effectiveness of joint planning across the range of partnership 

working; 

(v) Improve performance management processes to ensure a consistent 

approach in delivering objective; and 

Agenda Item 5

Page 37



(vi) Improve the scrutiny of local authority education service and partnership 

working. 

Estyn Monitoring Revisit Action Plan – Progress Monitoring 

3. The Action Plan sets out the key objectives to deliver the Estyn recommendations 

and is referenced to the objectives of the Education Development Plan. The plan 

has also been aligned with the Council’s key planning frameworks relevant to 

Education. 

4. The implementation and delivery of the action plan’s objectives are being 

rigorously monitored by the Education Improvement Group, the Education 

Development Board, the Cabinet and the Cardiff Partnership Board. In addition the 

Chief Executive has written to all staff, explaining that delivering a quality 

education for the children and young people of Cardiff is a major organisational 

priority. As well as setting out the many and varied positive developments taking 

place in schools the Chief Executive’s message also acknowledged the challenges 

facing education in Cardiff.

5. Estyn has indicated that they will undertake further monitoring visits on areas 

judged to be in need of significant improvement. In autumn 2015 they will review 

Recommendation 2 and 6. The rationale to be used during the monitoring visit is:

Recommendation 2 

(i) Nearly all of the 11 objectives stated, as per action plan, are to be achieved 

by December 2014

(ii) All of the stated objectives will have been completed by the Spring 2015; and

(iii) The LA will have two years of verified data available on exclusions and 

NEETs.

Recommendation 6 

(i) The one objective stated, as per action plan, will have been completed by 

August 2014; and 

Page 38



(ii) There should be sufficient evidence of the impact of the objective by Autumn 

Term 2015. 

Issues 

6. A commentary on the progress made in addressing recommendation 2 is attached 

at Appendix A and recommendation 6 at Appendix B.

Scope of Scrutiny 

7. This monitoring report will enable Committee to review, assess and challenge the 

implementation of all actions and thereby the delivery of high quality education and 

improved outcomes for children and young people in Cardiff’s Schools. Members 

may also wish to pass any comments, concerns or recommendations to the 

Cabinet Member and or Director of Education. At this meeting Committee can 

scrutinise:

(i) the progress being made to undertake each task identified to address each 

objective; 

(ii) the milestones and timescales for delivering the objectives; 

(iii) the resources available to deliver these commitments; 

(iv) the outputs and outcomes identified to evidence the success of the objective; 

(v) any identified project risks and the appropriateness of the proposed 

countermeasure; 

(vi) the quality and analysis of the performance information presented to 

Committee; 

(vii) That the rationale set out by Estyn for their future monitoring visits will be 

achieved within the given timescale. 

Partnership Scrutiny  

8. It was reported to Committee in October that a key action for this Committee is to 

update the scrutiny and reporting protocol between the Cardiff Partnership Board’s 

Scrutiny Panel and this Committee, however funding for the Scrutiny Officer 

support for the Cardiff Partnership Board’s Scrutiny Panel was withdrawn earlier 

this year.

Page 39



9. The Council’s Operational Manager for Scrutiny Services wrote to the Chair of this 

Committee in August 2014 to ask if, while the review of the Cardiff Partnership 

Board Scrutiny Panel was being progressed, the Children and Young People 

Scrutiny Committee would be prepared to ensure effective scrutiny of partnership 

issues relating to the delivery of services for children and young people in Cardiff, 

including Education. 

10. As a result all future partnership work relating to children and young people will be 

presented to this Committee for scrutiny.  

Way Forward 

11. This report will enable Members to receive a copy of the progress report on those 

objectives identified for recommendations 2 and 6 from Estyn Inspection 

Monitoring Revisit, attached at Appendix A & B. 

12. Councillor Julia Magill (Cabinet Member for Education and Skills), Nick Batchelar 

(Director of Education and Lifelong Learning), and Marie Rosenthal (County Clerk 

and Monitoring Officer)  will make a presentation on progress being made to 

implement those actions to address Estyn recommendations 2 and 6, as well as 

the management and leadership proposals to address any areas of concern. 

Legal Implications 

�

13. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet will set out any legal implications arising from 

those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must 

(a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

Page 40



exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable 

and proper in all the circumstances. 

Financial Implications 

�

14. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications 

at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with 

or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that 

goes to Cabinet will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the progress being made to implement the objectives relevant to achieving 

recommendations 2 and 6. attached at Appendix A & B;

2. Identify any particular objectives for further detailed investigation; 

3. Assess the quality and analysis of the performance information presented to 

Committee; and 

4. Provide any comments or recommendations to the Cabinet Member for 

Education and Skills and the Director of Education and Lifelong Learning. 

MARIE ROSENTHAL 

County Clerk and Monitoring Officer 

5 November 2014

Page 41



��������	
��
������������� � � � � � �������
����
�

 3 Nov 2014   Authorised: Phil Norton 1 of 1 

�

����������������� � ������������������	������

�������� !"��� �����������	
�������� #��$%���!"%��
������������������������������

����
��������������������
�

���&
�'%� ����� �� ('�'���

������� �����)� �������

��
%�������
������
���� ���������������������  �������
���� ������������������� �
� � �

�����*�"+��� ����*�"+���,--.� �����*�"+���

������������'�
&���  �!����"���#�$������� ����������%�&�������� �

�

� � �

��������/!�!����� '���������� ���"+��*0����� ��"+��*0�����,-.� ���"+��*0�����

����������!���� �� ���!������������� ��!��
���*���
�
!�
���������� ���
&��1�������� ���%
��� �
� � �

��0����� �0�����,2.� ��0�����

�

-3�������� ����4�������(���������������� ��(��

�������� �

�

53�(� � ����� �����*���//� ����

(�

�

63������������0������

���
�&�����
%�������
������
���� ���
�&�"���%��'��
�����������������
������
����

� � � 	���)����*���+�+�������������� ����+������!�� ������������������������

�)���� )�������� ����!������ �� ��������,� ������� �&'�� *��� -��#�

���)��!� ����������� ������ ��� )�� ��.���� 	!&�� "��� %��
��� ��!�����

��&
%��%7� !������ �!�!� ��� +�� '%��� !��� !��!����� "���
��� -83-53-2� ���

!����������%���%�9
���!�%1%��"%��!���%3�

�  !��������*�����!�������������������������$�������'��������������

���������������������������&
%����!��%���������!���!����%�!������

+��!������9
�����!
�%��:�0�&�����%3�

 ���!��
�&�����
%�������
������
����

� 	���)����*���+�+������������������+������!�� ������������������������

�)���� )�������� ����!������ �� ��������,� ������� �&'�� *��� -��#�

���)��!���������������������)����.����

�  !���� �� ��*�����!��� ��������� ��������� ���� $���� ��� '����� ������ ���

������������������������(���&
%���!��
���
��'��!������!��
����!��

23�;�<���������/������ ����

���/� "�,�0��������
-�������

������,������

� 1�

�������

'��2������

������,������
+��������

� 1���������������!��������!����� 3��,������ G � �
+����������������!�������!�������������������

�����!������

�
4�������!��������*��������!����������

����)�������
���������� G� � -��!����!���������������������

�  ��������������,����'�5�� 3��������� G� � +��������

� &����������������������!���� ��������6� G� � �

� &���������������,����"��������"��� ��������6� G� � �

�

83� �#�*���0 �(��� ������� ������������������

&���������
�����

������
&���������������

&��������

�������
+�������������7�89+����!���,�

+����������

�������

&�����

:*����

� ��(�;(���  !�������������*�$�������'�����'�������� � +�������,�����*�!�������� � �

�

=3� �#�*���0 �(��� ������� �������������;���

��.�����
�����

������
��.�����������

&��������

�������
+�������������7�89+����!���,�

+����������

�������
��.�:*����

� � ����� � � � �

�

>3���������/� �0�����//� ����

<������.�����!���������������*�����!�������������������������$�������'���������������������������������������������������

�

?3������@���*���0 A�((��

�!���!����&���+1�����������!���� ���
%
�����:��

�

Page 42



��������	
��
������������ � � � � ������
����
�

Issue 1.0 13 June 2014   Authorised: Simon Morris 1 of 2 

�

����������������� � ������������������	������

�������� !"���

�����������	
������	�����

������������
������	����

�����	������������	���

	����������	����

#��$%���!"%��

��������������	���	�

�����	������������	��

	�������� !!"#� ���#�

�

���&
�'%� ����� �� ('�'���

������ ������ ������

��
%�������
������
���� �$����	�%�&�'���(�&�  �������
���� &�'��%���)����(�&� �
� � �

�����)�"*��� �����)�"*��� �����)�"*���

������������'�
&��� �!�!��+�,
� �

�

� � �

��������+!�!����� �
"���+���
%� ���"*��),����� ���"*��),����� ���"*��),�����

����������!���� �� ���!������������� ��!��
���)���
�
!�
���������� ���
&��-�������� ���%
��� �
� � �

��,����� ��,����� ��,�����

�

./�������� ����0�������(���������������� ��(��

����'��� �

�

1/�(� � ����� �����)���++� ����

*����+�,�����	�������	�������������������������������(�&-�����

!�.���������������������������/�	
�!��������	��0����	��%�������	����1��������	����	������	������������������	�����	
�	
���!�.�2���	�	������	
��	�������

�

2/������������,������

���
�&�����
%�������
������
���� ���
�&�"���%��'��
�����������������
������
����

� 3�	���� ��� 	
��� ������ 
���� ����� �����	���� ���������4� ��	�����
����

����
���
�� �������� ��������	� �� ��	�� �
������ ����������	���

���������	������	������������,�����	
�����������	���	
�������

��,��������

� �

 ���!��
�&�����
%�������
������
����

� ����	������� ����� ������ ��	
� ����	����� �����	� ������� � "
��� ����� ���

�����	�,���������	���	
��530��������	�������(�&�

�

3/�4�5���������+������ ����

���6� 7���8����	���
9��������

)��������)�	��

�3:�

�	�	���

0�;��	���

)��������)�	��
2����	��

�
5����������	��3��������	�0������

���������������������������
���
���	��(�&� G�� ���	��(�&�

��������	�����������	�����������������������
������

���	�������(�&����	��������������	���$�	��������������

�
8��	�<3������'���
���
��0��	����
���

0��������	�����
�����������	�����
�(�&� G�� �(�&�

8��	�<�������'���
���
��0������
���������

��	�����
���������2��������

�
!����������������
�����2�������

���	��������	
��������������������
�(�&� A/G�� =�����(�&�

3���������	�������	����	���	
���;�����������	�

�����������������	������
����������������������	����

� "���,�����	���	��>���	�����
��� �(��� R��
���	������

�(���

'���������	���	�������	����?<�&�"��,�����.����
�

������	������	�����
����+���
�:�������	�	�	�,��	
��

�������	
�����������������������

�
/�	
�:�����	����������	�	�������������

����������2���������
�(��� A/G�� @�	�����(���

"
���������;��	�	�	
������������	
�����	���	
�2�������

+�����	���������	��������	
�����	�����������������	�

�������	
����	
�������	�����	��������3�����	����	�

	
������������	
�����	�	����������
������'�������

�(�&���	����	�����������������	�,������	����������������

��,���������	���'���
���
��0��	����
���������

�

6/� �#�)���, �(��� ������� ������������������

����������
)�	��

�������
������)������	���

��
����	�

�	�	���
2��	��������� �#-2�	��������

2�	������

�	�	���

������

@�����

� �

*��,����������	���������	����	������������

����	���,������	��>��������	��������������	
�

��������������������!�@*��3*'����

�

0��������������	�	�)����	������'�������

	����������	
���������	���������	
�����,�

����������	�������������2�������	����	�

	
����������	���"�������

� �

�

7/� �#�)���, �(��� ������� �������������4���

���,�����
)�	��

�������
���,�)������	���

��
����	�

�	�	���
2��	��������� �#-2�	��������

2�	������

�	�	���
���,�@�����

� � '��� � � � �

�

8/���������+� �,�����++� ����

�

�

9/������:���)���, ;�((��

Page 43



��������	
��
�����������

Filepath: 
\\ccfile1a\SCCommittee\Scrutiny Committees\Scrutiny Committees 2014-2015\Children and Young People Scrutiny\Reports\11 
November 2014\Item 5 - Estyn\Project Highlight Report for EIG R2b appen A.doc Print Date: 05/11/2014 

4.PQA.203 Issue 4.0 1
st
 May 2013 Process Owner: TMO  Authorised: OM - TMO 2 of 2 

�!���!����&���*-�����������!���� ���
%
�����<��
�

Page 44



��������	
��
����������� � � � � ������
����
�

Issue 1.0 16 June 2014   Authorised: Paul Keeping 1 of 1 

�

����������������� � ������������������	������

�������� !"���

��������	
���
������������

����������������
���������


�	��
����������
�����

���������

#��$%���!"%��

����������	
�

�
��������
�

�����
�
�������

�

�

���&
�'%� ����� �� ('�'���

������ ������ ������

��
%�������
������
���� ����
����� �!�	��"� �  �������
����  �!�	�����#
���"� � �
� � �

�����)�"*��� �����)�"*��� �����)�"*���

������������'�
&��� +!�
����%����!� �

�

� � �

��������+!�!����� �!'�,���
��� ���"*��)-����� ����"*��)-����� ���"*��)-�����

����������!���� �� ���!������������� ��!��
���)���
�
!�
���������� ���
&��.�������� ���%
��� �
� � �

��-����� ��-����� ��-�����

�

/0�������� ����1�������(���������������� ��(��

���!��
������
� �

�

20�(� � ����� �����)���++� ����

!����������$�
�

�

30������������-������

���
�&�����
%�������
������
���� ���
�&�"���%��'��
�����������������
������
����

� %������

����

���������������
����&����

�����

� #������������������
��$�������
��

� #
����
���������������
����

������
����������

��

�����

� '�������������������

�(����$
��
	
���
������������
��

� )��
�����	
����
�����

����������������
�����������������������������

���
��
 ���!��
�&�����
%�������
������
����

�

40�,�5���������+������ ����

�
�*� +
��&��
���
�
,�
���
�

#
��	
���#��
�
�)-�������

.��/
��
��

#
��	
���#��
�
%���
���

� 0��������������.��������.�$���
�� �"� � A/G� 12�"� �
.����
����������������
�3������������$

��

�����������!�������
���

�������	
�$

��������
��

�
���������%������

�4����.�������
�

���

��
�"� � A/G� 12�"� � 4������������
����

������
��
�$
���

�����

�
'��������.�������
��������������

%������

�&
�$
���
��	
�
��
�"�5� A/G� "�2�5�

4������������
��
��������

�������
	
�����������

�������������������������
��������������
�

�

60� �#�)���- �(��� ������� ������������������

��
��
��
#��
�

���
��
��
�#
���������

���
�
���

������
%����
��
���
672%������
����

%�������
��

������

��
�

8��
��

� � � � � � �

�

70� �#�)���- �(��� ������� �������������,���

�����
��
#��
�

���
��
����#
���������

���
�
���

������
%����
��
���
672%������
����

%�������
��

������
����8��
��

������ ���"��
.
���������
	�
�����.����
����������������

%�������
R/A�

9�������������%������

����
�

�
����$������������
������������
�����

��������
����:4����&���
�;������.�).�

��	��������	
�	�
���

A/G� &��

�

80���������+� �-�����++� ����

)������������
��������
����

�

90������:���)���- ;�((��

�!���!����&���*.�����������!���� ���
%
�����<��

Page 45



Appendix C 

Cardiff Local Authority

Review of progress in addressing Estyn recommendations October 2014

Recommendation 2

Reduce exclusions and reduce the proportion of young people who are not in
education, employment or training post-16

What has been done?

Action has focused on:

Developing provision within schools at step 3 (in-school inclusion facility, 

nurture provision, “withdrawal” support) and step 4 (alternative appropriate 

curriculum, usually off-site) 

Identifying young people most at risk of disengagement through the 

implementation of the Vulnerability Assessment Profiling tool

Developing and deploying targeted support through the role of ‘lead worker’ 

focusing on pupils most at risk of becoming NEET

What has improved?

There have been improvements in nearly all performance indicators, the exceptions 
being the proportion of pupils leaving school without a qualification and the number 
of fixed term exclusions in secondary schools per 1000 pupils for 5 days or fewer.

What more needs to be done?

Improve the quality of provision in schools for steps 3 and 4. This should then lead to 
a further reduction in the number of fixed term exclusions in secondary schools of 5 
days or fewer.

Strengthen the accountability of interventions and provision through more rigorous 
tracking of pupils’ progress and engagement. Ensure appropriate, education, training 
and re-engagement provision are in place, especially for vulnerable learners.

Strengthen employer engagement with the new Welsh Baccalaureate and assist 
them in offering opportunities to pupils that support the four “challenges” (community, 
individual project, global citizenship, enterprise and employability).

1 

 Page 46



Appendix C 

Recommendation 6

Improve the scrutiny of local authority education services and partnership 
working

What has been done?

The quality of reporting to the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny 
Committee on school performance has improved with better analysis and 
clearer more up to date and evaluative information.  There is a more detailed 
exchange of letters between the Committee Chair and the Cabinet member 
following each meeting.

A revised arrangement is now in place for the Children and Young People 
Scrutiny Committee to take full responsibility for scrutinising educational 
performance and partnership activity. The Managing Director of the 
Consortium now attends the Committee on a regular basis to report on the 
performance of the education service.

The Committee’s forward work programme has been published for 2014/15 
showing a clear focus on school performance.

A programme of training and development activities has been established for 
the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny committee covering educational 
performance, analysis and assessment linking to best practice with education 
scrutiny elsewhere in the UK.

A programme has been agreed to scrutinise the Education Directorate’s 
delivery of its Monitoring Review Action Plan which addresses Estyn’s 
recommendations to improve educational performance in Cardiff schools.

What has been improved?

Improved analysis and evaluation in reports has strengthened the quality of 
enquiry at Committee.

There is a clear focus in the Committee Forward Plan on educational 
attainment.

A revised approach to the scrutiny of partnership working has been 
established which clarifies the role of the Children and Young People’s 
Scrutiny Committee

What more needs to be done?

Learning from education scrutiny conducted across the core cities network will 
form part of a Phase 2 training session

2 

 Page 47



Appendix C 

A cross service Scrutiny Improvement Study will be conducted between 
October 2014 and April 2015 which will seek to gain a shared understanding 
of the effectiveness and relevance of current scrutiny arrangements in Cardiff 
against a range of criteria agreed by scrutiny practitioners across Wales, and 
governed through the Centre for Public Scrutiny.

Continuing to embed the new education collaborative and partnership scrutiny
work and ensure that Scrutiny Chairs come together to form an overview of 
partnership working.

Nick Batchelar
Director of Education and Lifelong Learning

3 

 Page 48



THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL    AGENDA ITEM: 6 
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

11 NOVEMBER 2014 

CARDIFF YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE – ANNUAL PLAN 2014 - 2015 

Background 

1. The Cardiff Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a statutory partnership set 

up under The Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The YOS Partnership is 

staffed by seconded social work and education staff from Cardiff Council, 

police officers seconded by South Wales Police, probation officers from 

South Wales Probation Service, and health workers seconded by the 

Cardiff and Vale University Health Board. 

2. The service is provided across a number of teams: 

• Court and Case management Team 

• Prevention and early intervention team 

• Prevention Co-ordinator 

• Intensive Intervention Team 

• Careers Wales Team 

• Business support Team 

Purpose of the Report 

3. The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with a copy of the 

Youth Offending Service’s Annual Plan 2014-15 (attached at Appendix A) 

which includes an update on the Youth Offending Team’s progress in 

achieving its key objectives utilising the Results Based Accountability 

(RBA) methodology.  Copies of the RBA cards are attached at Appendix 3 

– 11 of Appendix A). 

Agenda Item 6

Page 49



Issues 

4. The newly established Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) Alun 

Michael is keen to develop close working relationships with South Wales 

Youth Offending Services. Cardiff YOS agreed to set aside £78,700, over 

which the Commissioner now has direct control. Whilst discussions are 

ongoing that this year’s funding can be reclaimed and utilised as ‘business 

as usual’ it is not at all clear whether this will be the case next year, nor is 

it certain whether reductions will be made in future.  

5. The Welsh Government funding stream: Youth Crime Prevention Fund has 

as one of its conditions that monies be spent in a regional and joined up 

way in line with the ‘Regional Footprint’, which in our case comprises 

Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan Council areas.  

6. Increased collaboration with the Vale YOS is now in place in respect of a 

number of projects and initiatives, but caution must be applied as 

financially our colleague YOS is not as well resourced, and there is an 

ongoing risk that the Vale YOS will benefit disproportionately from 

enhanced joint service delivery. 

7. The Service’s principal aims are to prevent offending and re-offending by 

children and young people. The YOS works to six Youth Justice Board key 

indicators that measure its performance. These are:

• the number of First Time Entrants into the Youth Justice System; 

• the number of young people receiving substantive outcome who re-

offend; 

• the number of young people receiving a custodial sentence 

• The level of engagement of young people in education, training or 

employment 

• The number of young people in suitable accommodation 

Page 50



• The number of young people who, following assessment, receive 

timely substance misuse intervention. 

8. Attached to this report at Appendix 3 - 11 of the Annual Report are a 

number of Results Based Accountability report cards which offer 

considerable detail about how the YOS works towards achieving the above 

indicators. 

9. Also attached are RBA report cards in respect of YOS prevention work: 

• Triage Project (Page 37 of the Report) 

• Youth Inclusion Support Projects (Page 38 of the Annual Report) 

• Staysafe (Page 40 of  the report) 

• Neighbourhood Resolution panels (Page 41of the report 

• Victim Work (Page 43 of the report)).  

10. The Youth Offending Service has a clear management and governance 

structure. It has a multi-agency Management Board that is accountable to 

the Youth Justice Board for England and Wales, whose role it is to monitor 

the performance of the youth justice system and advise relevant 

Westminster ministers accordingly. 

10. The Youth Offending Service is managed by the local authority and 

performance information about the service is therefore included in the 

quarterly performance reports provided by Children’s Services to the 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee.  In addition the 

Committee’s annual work programme includes consideration of the Annual 

Youth Justice Plan prepared by the YOS so that its plans, initiatives and 

performance are publicly scrutinised. 

11. Councillor Sue Lent, Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children & Families 

will attend Committee, and may wish to make a statement. Ingrid 

Page 51



Masmeyer (Cardiff YOS Manager) will present the report and be available 

to answer any questions Members may have. 

Previous Scrutiny Comments 

�

12. Committee considered last years Annual plan at its meeting on 8 October 

2013, following consideration of the report the Members agreed to write to 

the Cabinet member stating that Members were impressed with the plans 

set out by Ingrid Masmeyer, and feel that the good work of the Youth 

Offending Service should be applauded. 

13. Members also highlighted a number of key points, namely: 

• While they can see the value of reporting via RBA Report Cards, 
Members were aware that the quality of the report cards was variable.  
We understood and supported Ingrid’s to empower her teams to report 
in this way, and to build and standardise the capacity of her managers 
to provide quality report cards.   

• We were pleased to note that the cessation of funding to the YISP 
Project was not creating difficulties for the Service, and Ingrid’s 
confidence that the service users would not suffer as a result of the end 
of funding.  As you will note from the comments contained in the next 
item, the ability to confidently and effectively manage funding 
reductions without significantly impacting the service is likely to be an 
important pre-requisite for managers in coming years. 

• We are concerned at the potential for partners to reduce their 
commitment to the Youth Offending Service to a statutory minimum, 
particularly noting the potential loss of capacity regarding CAMHS.  We 
have been made aware that Dr Claire Ball recently met the Council’s 
Corporate Parenting Panel, and we may programme some future 
scrutiny around this issue. 

• We are similarly uneasy that – at the same time as there is a threat to 
mental health support from Health – education resources are also 
being reduced to the YOS Team and more generally through 
reductions in the number of schools nurses, making it more difficult to 
diagnose dyslexia, hearing and visual impairments which might have 
links to future offending behaviour. 

• In response to a Member’s question about the disproportionate level of 
young Muslims engaged with the criminal justice system, we noted 
Ingrid’s offer to revisit links between ethnicity, culture, offending 

Page 52



behaviour and culturally appropriate interventions.  We would like to 
revisit this when next considering YOS performance.

In conclusion you will be aware that we firmly believe in the early 
intervention, preventative and restorative agenda that you are undertaking, 
but that it is facing risks and uncertainties in the current financial climate.  
If we have one overarching recommendation for you, it is that you work 
effectively with Councillor Julia Magill and Health colleagues in coming 
months to generate solutions across service area and organisational 
boundaries, so that the effective work of the YOS (and more generally of 
Children’s Services) can be protected.  

Way Forward 

�

14. Members may wish to comment or make recommendations to the YOS 

Management Board on the RBA report cards, attached at Appendix A. 

Legal Implications 

�

15. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions.  As the recommendations in 

this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal 

implications.  However, legal implications may arise if and when the 

matters under review are implemented with or without any modifications. 

Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council 

will set out any legal implications arising from those recommendations.  All 

decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal 

powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising 

powers of behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the 

procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be 

taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) 

be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances. 

Page 53



Financial Implications 

16. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in 

this report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. 

However, financial implications may arise if and when the matters under 

review are implemented with or without any modifications. These financial 

implications will need to be considered before any changes are 

implemented. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

    That Members note the information contained in Appendix A and submit 

any comments or recommendations to the Youth Offending Service 

Management Board and the YOS Manager. 

Marie Rosenthal 

County Clerk and Monitoring Officer 

5 November 2014 

Page 54



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

	
�

� �
� � � �

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	


�
�
�	

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��


�

�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

� � � � �

Page 55



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�



�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

� ��
��
�
�
�
 �
!�
�
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
�#
�

$
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
�$

'
(
*
'
�+
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
�

�
"�
�
��
�
 �
�
�'
+,
�&
�
-
'
��
%
�
 '

�%
�
�
�.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
�0
�

)
"�
�
'
+�

�
� 
!�
&
,�
-
%
1�
'
�2
�
��
(
�
�
'
3
�%
�
�
��
!+
4
��
2�
2�
��
�'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
"�
5
�

�
"�

�
/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�
!�
+�
��
!(

'
�
�
��
%
�
�+
�6
�
�

7�
��
��
/
'
��
�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
"�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
"�
9
�

�
"�

�
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
#
�

#
"�

�
�
+�
�
�
3
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
"�
�
9
�

�
"�


�
�
 %

�!
�
�
,�
��
%
!�
!�
&
�%
�
�
�'
(
.
1�
3
(
'
�
��
6

�

7�
�
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
13
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
�
�

�
"�

�
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
��
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
13
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
0
�

0
"�

�
�
*
+�
%
�
 '

�(
!+
�
+'

��
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
13
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
<
�

� �
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
��
��
	
�
��
�%
22
!�
&
��
��
�
 �
�
�'
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
"�#

�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
��
��
!�
%
�
 !
%
1�
�
�%
�'
(
'
�
��
�
'
%
��

�
�
!�
&
��
�
�
#
:�
�
�
�
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
�#
�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
�#
��
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
!�
+�
��
!(

'
�
�
��
%
�
�+
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
"�#

�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
�
+�
�
�
3
�>

��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
�#
�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
�!
%
&
'
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
�#
5
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
�0
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
�
)
��
'
%
(
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
�#
<
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
�5
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
�%
3
�
%
2'
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
�<
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��

'
!&
/
*
�
�
�/
�
�
�
��

'
+�

1�
�!
�
�
��
%
�
'
1+
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
�9
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��

'
+�

�
� 
'
+�
�
'
%
(
�""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
"��

�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
�
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
! 
�!
(
�;

�
�4
�"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
#
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
�
�:
��

'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��
  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
��
%
�'
'
�+
�;

%
1'
+�
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
�
�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
�
��
��
8)

��
��
2!
1!�

&
�
=
'
� 
!+
'
��
�
�
�
��"
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
��
�
�

� �

Page 56



�
�

��
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
/
'
�
�
�
�
�/
�
8�

+�
! 
'
�
�
1%
�
�
!+
�
.
��
�
�
 '

�
�
2�
��
%
�
�
�
+�

*
(
!�
�'
�
�
��
�
�/
'
�
�
�
�
�/
�
8�

+�
! 
'
�
)
�
%
��
�
2�
��

�
&
1%
�
�
�
%
�
�
�
;
%
1'
+�

6�
8)

7,
�
?
/
! 
/
�
(
�
�
!�
�
�+
�
�/
'
�
?
�
�4
�
%
�
�
�

.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

��
2�
�
�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
��
'
�-
! 
'
+,
�%
��
'
+.

�
�
+!
*
!1!
�3
��
�
��
�
'
-
�
1-
'
�
��
�
��
/
'
�;

'
1+
/
��

�
-
'
��
(
'
�
��
6;

�
7"
��

� �
/
'
��
8)

��
�
�1
�
�
&
'
��
.
�'
+ 
�!
*
'
+�
�/
'
�2
�
�(

%
��
�
2�
�/
'
�.
1%
�
�!
�
�1
!�
'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
�


@
��

�
-
'
��
(
'
�
�A
+�
 �

(
(
!�
(
'
�
��
��
�&
�'
%
�'
��
1�
 %

1�
�
'
�'
�(

!�
%
�!
�
�
"�
�
+�
%
� 
�
�
+'

B
�
'
�
 '

,�
�/
!+
�.

1%
�
�!
+�
2�
�(

�
1%
�'
�
�?

!�
/
!�
��
/
'
�2
�%
(
'
?
�
�4
��
2�
�
'
+�

1�
+�
)
%
+'

�
��

  
�
�
�
�%
*
!1!
�3
�6
�
)
�
7�
%
�(

'
�/
�
�
��
2�
.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

��
'
.
�
��
!�
&
�?

/
! 
/
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�/

%
+�
*
'
'
�
�

%
.
.
13
!�
&
��
�
��
/
'
�2
�
11�
�%
�
&
'
��
2�
�
�
��
?
�
�4
�%
�
�
� 
�
(
.
1!%

�
 '

�?
!�
/
��
8)

�@
'
3
��
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

��
�
�
! 
%
��
�+
��
-
'
��
�/
'
�1
%
+�
�2
!-
'
�3
'
%
�+
"�
�

� �
/
'
��
8)

�(
�
�
!�
�
�+
��
	
�
�.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

�%
&
%
!�
+�
�#
�


@
�?

!�
'
�.
�'
+ 
�!
*
'
�
�@
'
3
�.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

��
�
�
! 
%
��
�+
C�

�

•
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

•
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�
�
�	
�
!�
��
�
�


�

•
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

� �
�2
�
��
/
'
��
#
�@
�
�A
+�
%
.
.
13
��
�
��
�
�
�/
��
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��
'
�-
! 
'
+�
!�
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
13
C�

�

•
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
�
"�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

•
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�

•
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
� 
�
�
"�
��
��
�
 
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�"
�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� 
%
 /

��
2�
�/
'
�%
*
�
-
'
�?

!11
�*

'
� 
�
(
(
'
�
�'
�
��

.
�
�
�*

�
�/
�!
�
��
'
�(

+�
�
2�
 �

��
'
�
��
.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

�%
�
�
�2
�
��
�'
�.

1%
�
�
!�
&
"�
	
�
��
'
=
�'
�
+!
-
'
��

�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�
)
�
�D
 %

��
+A
�?

!11
�*

'
�

�
+'

�
��
�
�D
�'
11�
�
�
��
+�
�
�3
A�
%
�
�
�!
11�

+�
�%
�'
�/
�
?
�?

'
�!
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�2
�
��
/
'
��
D�
�
��
��
/
'
� 
�
�-
'
A"
�	

�
��
�
+'

��
2�
�
)
�
� 
%
��
+�
!+
�%
�?

�
�4
�!
�
�.
��
&
�'
++
��
�?

'
�%
�'
��
'
2!
�
!�
&
�*
�
�/
��
/
'
�

.
��
 '

++
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�/
'
��
'
+�

1�
%
�
��
 %

��
+"
��

� �
��

�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
+�
%
22
�%
�'
�!
�
-
�
1-
'
�
�!
�
�.

�
.
�
1%
�!
�
&
��
/
'
��
'
(
.
1%
�'
+�
%
�
�
��
/
!+
�/

%
+�
%
�-
'
�3
�.

�
+!
�!
-
'
�!
(
.
%
 �
��
�
��
/
'
��

�
�
'
�+
�%
�
�
!�
&
��

2�
.
�%
 �
!�
!�
�
'
��
+�
%
22
�%
*
�
�
��
�/
'
�

.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

��
'
B
�
!�
'
(
'
�
�+
��
�
��
/
'
��
	
�
"�

� ��
�%

�
�
!�
!�
�
,�
'
%
 /

��
2�
�/
'
��

	
�
�.

�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�.

��
E'
 �
+�
%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�/
'
�+
�%
��
��
�3
�+
'
�-
! 
'
+�
?
'
�.

��
-
!�
'
�?

!11
�*

'
��

'
+ 
�!
*
'
�
�%

�
�
� 
�
(
(
'
�
�'
�
��

.
�
�
��

�
�
'
��
�/
'
�

�'
1'
-
%
�
��
@
�
�"
�

� �
/
'
�3
'
%
��
�
#
F�

�
�+
%
?
�%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�!
�
��
/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�
!�
+�
��
!(

'
�
�
��
%
�
�+
�!
�
��
��
/
'
��
�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
,�
%
1�
/
�
�
&
/
�%
��
'
�
�
 �
!�
�
�/
%
+�
%
1�
'
%
�
3
��
  
�
��
'
�
��
�
�!
�
&
�

�/
'
�2
!�
+�
�B

�
%
��
'
��
�
2�
�/
'
� 
�
��
'
�
��
3
'
%
��
6�

�
F�

�
7"
��
�
+�
!�
�.

�'
-
!�
�
+�
3
'
%
�+
,�
%
� 
�
�
+'

B
�
'
�
 '

��
2�
�
-
'
�%
11�
(
%
!�
�%
!�
!�
&
�(

�
 /

�1
�
?
'
��
1'
-
'
1+
��
2�
�
�

+�
!+
��
/
%
��
?
'
�/

%
-
'
�

�/
'
� 
/
%
11'

�
&
'
��

2�
�'
+.

�
�
�
!�
&
��
�
��
/
'
��
!+
4
�%

�
�
��

'
'
�
��

2�
%
�+
(
%
11�
&
��
�
.
��

2�
�/
�
+'

�?
/
�
(
�?

'
�/

%
-
'
��

�
��
*
'
'
�
�%

*
1'
��
�
��

!-
'
��
�%

?
%
3
�2
��
(
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�

+3
+�
'
(
"�
�
/
'
3
�%
�'
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
�1
3
��
'
.
'
%
��
�
22
'
�
�
'
�+
,�
?
/
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+!
�
&
13
��
'
B
�
!�
'
�(

�
�'
�!
�
�'
�
+!
-
'
�%
�
�
�+
.
'
 !
%
1!+
��
!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+"
�

Page 57



�
�

	
�
��
%
*
!1!
�3
��
�
�%
 /

!'
-
'
�%
�+
!&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
�'
�
�
 �
!�
�
�!
�
�*
�
�/
��
�
(
*
'
�+
��
2�
�'
:�
22
'
�
�
'
�+
�%
�
�
��
/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�
22
'
�
 '

+�
�/
'
3
� 
�
(
(
!�
�/
%
+�
*
'
 �

(
'
�%
�(

%
E�
��
 /

%
11'

�
&
'
�

�/
%
��
 �

�
�!
�
�
'
+�
��
�*
'
�%
�
�
�'
++
'
�
"�
��
�/
%
+�
*
'
'
�
��
�
��
%
!(

�2
�
��
�/
'
�1
%
+�
��
�3
'
%
�+
��
�
�2
�
 �

+�
�
�
��
/
!+
�&
��
�
.
�%
�
�
��
/
'
��
1%
�
�?

!11
��
'
.
�
��
��
/
%
��
.
��
&
�'
++
�+
�
�2
%
��
/
%
+�
*
'
'
�
�

1!(
!�
'
�
�*
�
��
2�
��
/
'
��
.
1%
�
+�
/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�2
�
�(

�
1%
�'
�
�*
3
�(

'
%
�
+�
�
2�
%
��
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

��
(
.
��
-
'
(
'
�
��
�
1%
�
�2
�
11�

?
!�
&
��
!%
1�
&
�
'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��
�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�)
�
%
��
"�

� �
/
'
�.
%
+�
�3
'
%
��
%
1+
�
�+
%
?
��
/
'
��
�%
&
! 
��
'
%
�/
��
2�
%
�3
�
�
�
&
�(

%
�
�?

/
�
��
�
�
4
�/
!+
��
?
�
�1
!2
'
�%
�
�
�1
%
��
'
�1
3
�/
%
�
�*
'
'
�
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
'
�
�*
3
��
/
'
��
	
�
��
�
�%
��
�
�
�/
��

'
/
%
*
!1!
�%
�!
�
�
�

	
��
'
��
?
!�
/
�%
� 
�
�
�
!�
!�
�
��
�
�%
��
'
�
�
��

�
��
��

�'
�
+!
-
'
��

�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�%
�
�
��

�
�-
'
!11
%
�
 '

�6
��

�
7�
+ 
/
'
(
'
"�
�
/
'
��
�
 %

1�
�
%
2'
&
�
%
��
!�
&
��

/
!1�

�'
�
�)

�
%
��
�?

%
+�
!�
2�
�(

'
�
�%
��

�/
'
�'
%
�1
!'
+�
��

.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
3
�%
�
�
��
/
'
��

�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�)

�
%
��
��
'
 '

!-
'
�
�*

�
�/
�%
��

�!
�!
 %

1�
�
'
%
��
!�
&
��

'
-
!'
?
�%
�
�
�%
�
�

=
�'
�
�
'
�
��
'
%
��
!�
&
��

'
-
!'
?
�6

�
�
7�
%
+�
�'
B
�
!�
'
�
"�

�
/
'
�1
%
��
'
��
!+
�%
  
�
(
.
%
�
!'
�
�*
3
��
/
'
��
	
�
��
'
+.

�
�
+'

��
�
��
/
'
��
'
 �

(
(
'
�
�
%
�!
�
�
+�
(
%
�
'
�!
�
��
/
'
�
�
�
�?

/
! 
/
�!
�
'
�
�!
2!
'
�
�+
�
(
'
��
	
�
�.
��
 '

++
'
+�
�/
%
��
�'
B
�
!�
'
�%
��
'
�
�!
�
�
�

*
�
��

�/
'
�
�'
.
�
��
�
 �

�
 1
�
�
'
�
�
�/
%
��

�/
'
�
�
	
�
�
%
�
�
�
!�
+�

+�
%
22
,�
.
%
��
�
'
��

%
&
'
�
 !
'
+�

%
�
�
�
�
�/
'
�+
�
 �

�
1�
�
�
�
��

/
%
-
'
�
.
�'
�
! 
�'
�
�
�
��

.
�'
-
'
�
�'
�
�
/
!+
�
+�

! 
!�
'
"�
�
/
'
�

!(
.
1'
(
'
�
�%
�!
�
�
��
2�
�/
'
�
�
�
�?

!11
�*
'
��
-
'
�+
'
'
�
�*
3
��
/
'
��
	
�
�$

%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
�%
�
�
��
/
'
��
�
�
)
�!
+�
�%
4
!�
&
�%
�4
'
'
�
�!
�
�'
�'
+�
�!
�
�/
�
?
��
	
�
�.
�%
 �
! 
'
�%
�
�
�.
��
 '

++
'
+�
�

 %
�
�*
'
�'
�
/
%
�
 '

�
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�/
'
�%
.
.
1! 
%
�!
�
�
��
2�
�
�
��
1'
%
��
!�
&
�'
=
.
'
�!
'
�
 '

�!
�
�.
%
��
�
'
��
�
�&
%
�
!+
%
�!
�
�
+"
��

� �
	
�
�+
�%
22
�%
�
�
�(

%
�
%
&
'
�+
�?

/
�
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
'
�
�%
�
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
'
�
��
/
!+
�3
�
�
�
&
�(

%
�
��
-
'
��
%
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
3
'
%
�+
�%
�'
� 
�
(
(
'
�
�
'
�
�2
�
��
�/
'
!�
� 
%
�'
�%
�
�
��
'
�
! 
%
�!
�
�
�?

/
! 
/
�

'
=
�'
�
�
'
�
��
�
�+
�
*
+'

B
�
'
�
��
+�

.
.
�
��
�2
�
��
�/
�
+'

� 
1�
+'

��
�
��
/
'
�*
�
3
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�
�/
'
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
�%
��
'
�
�
'
�
��
/
'
��
�
�
�.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
�%
��
�/
'
��
!(

'
"�
�

� �
/
'
��

%
��
!2
2�
$
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
�/

%
+�
%
1?

%
3
+�
*
'
'
�
� 
/
%
!�
'
�
�*

3
��
/
'
��

!�
'
 �
�
��
�
2�
�
/
!1�

�'
�
��

'
�-
! 
'
+"
��

�
'
��
�
� 
/
%
�
&
'
+�
!�
��
/
'
�+
'
�
!�
��
(
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
+�
��
 �
�
�'
�

%
�
�
�+
�
*
+'

B
�
'
�
��
!�
�'
�!
(
�%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
�!
�
��
/
'
��

�
�
�
 !
1,
��
/
'
�)

�
%
��
�/
%
+�
/
%
�
�!
�
�'
�!
(
��

/
%
!�
+�
%
+�
%
� 
�
�
+'

B
�
'
�
 '

"�
;
!�
/
��
/
'
�.
'
�(

%
�
'
�
��
%
.
.
�
!�
�(

'
�
��
�
2�
�
�
�
3
�

�
�
�
�
&
�%
+�
�
!�
'
 �
�
��
�
2�
�
/
!1�

�'
�
��
'
�-
! 
'
+�
%
�
�
��
/
%
!�
��
2�
�/
'
�)
�
%
��
,�
?
'
�%
�'
� 
�
�
2!
�
'
�
��
�/
%
��
?
'
�/
%
-
'
�'
�
�'
�'
�
�%
�.
'
�!
�
�
��
2�
+�
%
*
!1!
�3
"�

� ��
��
/
'
� 
�
��
'
�
��
 1
!(

%
�'
��
2�
%
�
+�
'
�!
�3
,�
�'
�
�
 !
�
&
�*
�
�
&
'
�+
�*
�
�/
�!
�
��
/
'
��

�
�
�
 !
1�
%
�
�
�!
�
�.
%
��
�
'
��
%
&
'
�
 !
'
+�
?
!11
�%
22
'
 �
��
/
'
��

	
�
�%
�
�
�(

%
4
'
�!
��
!(

.
'
�%
�!
-
'
��
/
%
��
?
'
�

(
%
=
!(

!+
'
��
'
+�

�
� 
'
+�
%
�
�
�'
�
+�

�'
�?

'
�%
.
.
13
�%
�2
1'
=
!*
1'
,�
 �
'
%
�!
-
'
�*
�
��
 �

+�
�'
22
'
 �
!-
'
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

��
�
�%
11�
�
�
��
?
�
�4
��
/
%
��
(
!�
!(

!+
'
+�
�/
'
�!
(
.
%
 �
��
�
��
!�
'
 �
�?

�
�4
�?

!�
/
�

 /
!1�

�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
"�
�
/
'
��
'
.
�
��
�?

!11
�.

��
-
!�
'
�(

�
�'
��

'
�%
!1�
%
*
�
�
��
�/
'
�2
!�
%
�
 !
%
1�
.
�
+!
�!
�
�
��

2�
�/
'
��

	
�
�.

%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�%
�
�
�%

1+
�
�(

%
4
'
��
'
2'
�'
�
 '

��
�
��

�
��

!�
 �
'
%
+!
�
&
� 
�
11%

*
�
�%
�!
�
�
�?

!�
/
��

�
��
 �

11'
%
&
�
'
��

	
�
�!
�
��
/
'
��

%
1'
��

2�
�
1%
(
�
�&
%
�
�?

!�
/
�?

/
�
(
�?

'
�E
�
!�
�1
3
��

'
1!-

'
��
+'

-
'
�%
1�
.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�.

��
E'
 �
+�
%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
+/

%
�'
�

�'
+�

�
� 
'
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
.
��
-
!�
!�
&
�+
'
�-
! 
'
+�
!�
��
/
'
��
�
�
��
+"
��

� �
/
!+
�.
1%
�
�/
%
+�
*
'
'
�
�+
!&
�
'
�
��
22
�*
3
��
/
'
� 
/
%
!�
�%
�
�
�(

'
(
*
'
�+
��
2�
�/
'
�$

%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
"�

� ��
&
�!
�
��
��
�$

%
+(

'
3
'
�,
�

�
	
�
�$

%
�
%
&
'
��

�
�
'
.
�'
(
*
'
��
�
�
�
�
��

Page 58



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


�

#
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
$
�
�
	

�#
�
�
�
�
	�
��

� �
�
�
3
��
�
�
�
&
��
��

!�
'
 �
�
��
��
/
!1�

�'
�
A+
��
'
�-
! 
'
+�
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
�
�
�
 !
1�
6�

/
%
!�
7�

� ��
&
�!
�
�$

%
+(

'
3
'
��
�
��
	
�
�$

%
�
%
&
'
��
��
/
!1�

�'
�
A+
��
'
�-
! 
'
+�
��
%
��
!2
2�
�
�
�
�
 !
1�

�
�
'
��

�
1�
'
��
�
��
�!
�
 !
.
%
1�
	
22
! 
'
��
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�>

��
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
+�
��
�
�
�/
�

;
%
1'
+�
�
�
1! 
'
�

� �
/
'
� 
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
 %

1�

�
�
 %

�!
�
�
��
�
�/
�
�!
�3
��
'
.
�'
+'

�
�%
�!
-
'
�?

!11
�*
'
�1
'
%
-
!�
&
��
/
'
�

�
�
�/
�
�!
�3
�+
/
�
��
13
"�
��
��
'
.
1%
 '

(
'
�
��
�
�
��
/
'
�$

%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
�!
+�
3
'
��
��
�*
'
�

!�
'
�
�!
2!
'
�
"�

�
�%
/
%
(
�)
�
?
�
��
��
%
��
!2
2�
�
�'
%
�$

%
�
%
&
'
��
��
%
�'
'
�+
�;

%
1'
+�

�

)
'
1!�

�
%
��

%
-
!'
+�
�
��
/
!'
2�
�
�
.
'
�!
�
�'
�
�
'
�
�,
��

!-
!+
!�
�
%
1�
�
�
(
(
%
�
�
'
�,
��
�

�
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
1! 
'
�

�

�
�
+'

�;
/
!�
�1
'
��
��
/
!1�

�'
�
A+
��
/
'
�%
.
3
�>

��
�
�'
&
�%
�'
�
��
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
��
'
%
�
,�

�
%
��
!2
2�
>
��
/
'
��
%
1'
�


�
!-
'
�+
!�
3
��

'
%
1�
/
�)
�
%
��
�

�

�
%
113

��
'
?
!+
��
��
'
&
%
1�
$
%
�
%
&
'
�,
��
�
'
��
$
%
E'
+�
3
A+
��
�
�
��
��
'
�-
! 
'
�

�

�
'
�'
��
�
�'
'
�
/
!11
��
��
%
��
!2
2�
�
��
*
%
�!
�
�
��

'
1!-

'
�3
��

'
%
�
,�
�;

%
1'
+�

�
��
*
%
�!
�
�
��
��
+�
�

�

�
1�
�
�$

! 
/
%
'
1�
�
��
�
1! 
'
�>

��
�!
(
'
��
�
(
(
!+
+!
�
�
'
�,
��
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
1! 
'
�

�

Page 59



�
�

%
&�
�
�	
�
�
��
	�
�
"�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
		
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
/
'
�+
�%
22
!�
&
�+
��
�
 �
�
�'
��
2�
�/
'
��

	
�
�!
+�
%
��
%
 /

'
�
�%
+�
�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
"�
�
/
!+
�3
'
%
��
/
%
+�
+'

'
�
�%
�!
�
�'
��

%
1�
%
�
E�
+�
(
'
�
��
��
��
/
'
�+
��
�
 �
�
�'
�%
+�
?
'
�%
*
+�

�*
��
/
'
�1
�
++
��
2�

�
�
'
��
'
%
(
�(

%
�
%
&
'
��
%
+�
%
��
'
+�

1�
��
2�
1�
 %

1�
%
�
�/
�
�!
�3
� 
�
�+
"�

�
�
/
'
�(

'
(
*
'
�+
/
!.
��
2�
�/
'
�$

%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
�!
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
�%
*
�
-
'
"�
$
'
'
�!
�
&
+�
�
2�
�/
'
�)
�
%
��
��
%
4
'
�.
1%
 '

�B
�
%
��
'
�1
3
�%
�
�
�(

'
(
*
'
�+
��
'
 '

!-
'
�*
�
�/
�.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

�
%
�
�
�2
!�
%
�
 !
%
1�
!�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�%
��
'
%
 /

�(
'
'
�!
�
&
"�

�
�
/
'
�+
��
%
�'
&
! 
�%
!(

��
2�
�/
'
�1
�
 %

1�
+'

�-
! 
'
�%
�
�
�.

%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�!
+�
��
� 
�
�
��
!*
�
�'
��
�
��
/
'
��

-
'
�%
11�
�
*
E'
 �
!-
'
��

2�
�/
'
��

	
�
�?

/
! 
/
�!
+�
��
�.

�'
-
'
�
��
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�%
�
�
��
'
:

�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
"�

�
;
'
� 
�
�
��
!*
�
�'
�%

�
�
�.

%
��
! 
!.
%
�'
�!
�
�%

��
%
�
&
'
��

2�
1�
 %

1�
+�
��
 �
�
�'
+�
?
!�
/
��
/
'
�%

!(
��

2�
'
�
+�

�!
�
&
��
/
%
��
�/
'
�-

�
! 
'
��

2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�%

�
�
�3

�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�%

��
�!
+4

��
2�

�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�
%
�
�
�
�/
�
+'

�
?
/
�
�
/
%
-
'
�
�
22
'
�
�
'
�
�
!+
�
/
'
%
��
�
%
�
�
�
�%
4
'
�
�
!�
��
�
 �

�
+!
�
'
�%
�!
�
�
"�
;
'
�
%
�'
�
%
1+
�
�
 �

(
(
!�
�'
�
�
��
�
/
'
1.
�
%
 /

!'
-
'
�
�/
'
�
1�
 %

1�
%
!(

+�
%
�
�
�

�
*
E'
 �
!-
'
+�
�
2�
�/
'
�?

!�
'
��
.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
+,
�?

/
! 
/
�!
�
 1
�
�
'
C�

�
•

��
�'
&
�%
�'
�
��
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�%
�
�
��
'
1'
-
%
�
��
�
��
&
�%
(
(
'
�)
�
%
��
+�

•
�
�'
%
��
1%
�
�
!�
&
�)
�
%
��
�%
�
�
��
'
1'
-
%
�
��
+�

*
�&
��
�
.
+�
�

•
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
�!
(
!�
%
1�
8�

+�
! 
'
��

��
�
.
�

•
�
�
 %

1�
�
%
2'
&
�
%
��
!�
&
��
/
!1�

�'
�
�)
�
%
��
�

•
�
%
(
!1!
'
+�
�
!�
+�
��
�'
'
�!
�
&
��

��
�
.
�

•
$
�
1�
!�
�
&
'
�
 3

�
%
�1
3
��
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�%
�
�
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
��

��
�
.
�

•
�
/
!1�

��
'
=
�
%
1�

=
.
1�
!�
%
�!
�
�
��

��
�
.
�

�
��

��
'
+.

'
 �
��
2�
�/
'
��
'
1%
�!
�
�
+/

!.
�?

!�
/
��
�
��
+�
%
��
��
�3
�.
%
��
�
'
�+
�%
�
�
��
�/
'
��
�
�&
%
�
!+
%
�!
�
�
+�
�/
%
��
 �

�
��
!*
�
�'
��
�
��
/
'
�?

�
�4
��
2�
�/
'
��

	
�
�?

'
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
�?

�
�4
�!
�
�

 �
11%

*
�
�%
�!
�
�
,�
?
/
! 
/
�!
+�
%
11�
�/
'
�(

�
�'
�!
(
.
�
��
%
�
��
!�
��
/
'
� 
�
��
'
�
��
2!
�
%
�
 !
%
1�
 1
!(

%
�'
�?

/
! 
/
�%
22
'
 �
+�
%
11�
.
%
��
�
'
��
�
�&
%
�
!+
%
�!
�
�
+"
�

� •
�
+�
!�
�.

�'
-
!�
�
+�
3
'
%
�+
,�
!�
� 
�
�
+�

1�
%
�!
�
�
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
� 
/
%
!�
��

2�
�/
'
�3
�
�
�/
� 
�
�
��
�*

'
�
 /

��
	
�
�+
�%
22
��

'
1!-

'
�'
�
�#

�%
?
%
�'
�
'
++
��
%
!+
!�
&
�'
-
'
�
�+
��
�
�(

%
&
!+
��
%
�'
+�

%
*
�
�
��
+'

-
'
�%
1�
%
�'
%
+�
�
2�
�
�
��
?
�
�4
"�

•
��

� 
�
11%

*
�
�%
�!
�
�
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��
%
1'
��
	
�
�?

'
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
��
'
1!-

'
��
.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�.
��
E'
 �
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
�
�!
%
&
'
�%
�
�
��
/
'
��

'
!&
/
*
�
�
�/
�
�
�
��

'
+�

1�
�!
�
�
��
%
�
'
1+
"�

•
;
'
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
��
'
&
�
�!
%
�'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��

�
(
(
!+
+!
�
�
'
�A
+�
�
22
! 
'
��
�
� 
�
�
��
!*
�
�'
��
�
��
/
'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
��
2�
%
��
�!
%
&
'
�.
��
E'
 �
�2
�
��
*
�
�/
�(

'
�
�%
�
�
�?

�
(
'
�
�%
&
'
�
��
<
��
�

�
�
�%
+�
.
%
��
��
2�
�/
'
��
-
'
�%
11�
.
!1�

��
.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
�2
�
��
.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
F�

!-
'
�+
!�
�
�2
�
��
�/
'
��
<
��
��
�
�3
'
%
��
�
1�
�.
!1�

�"
�

•
�
+�
�/
'
��

%
�!
�
�
%
1�
	
22
'
�
�
'
��
$
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
�
'
�-
! 
'
��

'
-
'
1�
.
+�
%
��

�!
%
&
'
�2
�
��
?
�
(
'
�
�%
&
'
�
��

<
��

��
�
�?

'
�%
�'
��

22
'
�!
�
&
��

�
��
+�

.
.
�
��
��

�
��
/
'
�*

%
+!
+�
�
2�
�
�
��

'
=
.
'
�!
'
�
 '

"�

•
�
/
'
��
��
*
%
�!
�
�
��
'
�-
! 
'
�/
%
+�
�
�
?
��
�%
�
+2
'
��
'
�
��
/
'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
��
2�
�/
'
�D
�
�
.
%
!�
�?

�
�4
A�
�'
B
�
!�
'
(
'
�
��
2�
��
�
0
�%
�
�
��
5
�3
'
%
��
�
1�
+�
��
��
/
'
��
	
�
"�

Page 60



�
�

•
;
'
�%
?
%
!�
�2
�
��
/
'
��
&
�
!�
%
�
 '

�%
�
�
��
'
 !
+!
�
�
+�
%
*
�
�
��
!�
 �

�.
�
�%
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�8
�
�
!�
��
�
��
'
�
�
%
�
 '

��
'
�
��
'
�2
�
��
/
'
��
!�
��
��
/
'
�?

�
�4
��
2�
�/
'
��
	
�
�?

!�
/
�'
22
'
 �
�2
��
(
�

�
.
�!
1�
�
�
�
�
"�
�
/
!+
��
'
(
%
!�
+�
%
�-
%
1�
%
*
1'
��
'
+�

�
� 
'
�2
�
��
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�%
�
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+!
�
&
13
�2
�
��
�/
'
��
%
1'
��
	
�
"�

•
;
'
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
� 
�
11%

*
�
�%
�'
� 
1�
+'

13
�?

!�
/
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
/
!1�

�'
�
��

'
�-
! 
'
+�
%
�
�
�?

'
�/

%
-
'
��
'
 '

�
�1
3
��
'
2�
'
+/

'
�
��

�
��
��

�'
�2
%
 '

�.
��
��
 �

1,
�%

��
'
?
��

'
(
%
�
�
�

�
��
��
 �

1�
!�
��
/
'
�1
!&
/
��
�
2�
�/
'
��
'
&
%
1�
�
!�
,�
�
'
�
�'
�
 !
�
&
�%
�
�
��
�
�
!+
/
(
'
�
��
�
2�
	
22
'
�
�
'
�+
��

 �
�6
�
�
�
�
7�
%
�
�
�%
��
'
-
!+
'
�
��

'
(
%
�
�
��
��
%
�'
&
3
�2
�
��
!�
�'
��
%
1�
�
+'

�*
3
�

�
	
�
�+
�%
22
"�

•
�
�
��
�
&
�
!�
&
�!
�
!�
!%
�!
-
'
�*

3
��

/
!1�

�'
�
��

'
�-
! 
'
+�
%
�
�
��
/
'
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
�
�
+!
�
&
��

'
.
%
��
(
'
�
��
!+
�+
�
.
.
�
��
'
�
�*
3
��
/
'
��

	
�
�%
�
�
�!
+�
!�
�'
�
�
'
�
��
�
��

'
-
'
1�
.
�%
�E
�
!�
'
�
�

�
.
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

��
�
�/
�
(
'
1'
++
�
'
++
��
2�
�
0
�%
�
�
��
5
�3
'
%
��
�
1�
+"
�

�
$
&�
'
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
"�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
(
��
��
��
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
� 
�
.
3
��
2�
�/
'
�D
'
�
�
:�
2:
3
'
%
�A
�2
!�
%
�
 !
%
1�
+�
%
�'
(
'
�
��
!+
�%
��
%
 /

'
�
�%
+�
�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
"�
�

�
�
/
'
��
	
�
�!
+�
2�
�
�
'
�
�*
3
�%
��
%
�
&
'
��
2�
.
%
��
�
'
��
%
&
'
�
 !
'
+�
%
�
�
�*
'
�
'
2!
�+
�2
��
(
�%
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
&
�%
�
�+
�%
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
�2
!�
%
�
 !
%
1�
+�
%
�'
(
'
�
�"
�

� ;
/
!1+
��
�/
'
��

	
�
�/

%
+�
+'

'
�
��
'
�
�
 �
!�
�
+�
!�
�+
'
 �

�
�
'
�
�+
�%
22
�2
��
(
�.

%
��
�
'
��
%
&
'
�
 !
'
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
�/
'
�.

�
1! 
'
�%
�
�
�/

'
%
1�
/
�!
�
�.

�'
-
!�
�
+�
3
'
%
�+
,�
?
'
�/

%
-
'
��

�
��
*
'
'
�
�

%
22
'
 �
'
�
�*

3
�+
�
 /

��
'
�
�
 �
!�
�
+�
�
�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�.

%
+�
�3
'
%
�"
��

�
?
'
-
'
�,
��
/
'
��

��
*
%
�!
�
�
��

'
�-
! 
'
��

!�
��

�
��
�'
.
1%
 '

�%
�.

��
*
%
�!
�
�
��

22
! 
'
��
?
/
�
�1
'
2�
��
/
'
��

	
�
�!
�
��

.
�!
1�

�
�
�
#
"�
�
+�
%
� 
�
�
+'

B
�
'
�
 '

��
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�?

%
+�
�/
'
�2
!�
+�
�!
�
�;

%
1'
+�
��
� 
�'
%
�'
�%

�D
��
%
�
+!
�!
�
�
A�
.
�
+�
�2
�
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�?

/
�
��
'
%
 /

��
/
'
�%

&
'
��

2�
�
<
�?

/
!1+
��
�
�
�
'
��
�
	
�
�

+�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�%
�
�
��
�%
�
+2
'
��
��
��
/
'
��
��
*
%
�!
�
�
��
'
�-
! 
'
��
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
1! 
'
�.
1%
�
+�
��
��
'
-
!'
?
��
/
'
��
�
1'
��
2�
.
�
1! 
'
��
22
! 
'
�+
�!
�
��

	
�
A+
�(

%
3
�%
22
'
 �
��
/
'
!�
� 
%
.
%
 !
�3
�

��
� 
%
��
3
��
�
��
�%
+4

+�
?
/
! 
/
�/
%
-
'
�%
++
!+
�'
�
��
/
'
�?

�
�4
��
2�
�/
'
��
	
�
�*
�
��
(
%
3
��
�
��
/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�.
%
��
��
2�
�/
'
�D
��
%
�
!�
!�
�
%
1A�
.
�
1! 
'
� 
�
�
+�
%
*
1'
��
�
1'
"�

� �
/
'
��
	
�
��
'
 '

!-
'
+�
%
�&
�%
�
��
2�
�
(
��
/
'
�;

'
1+
/
��

�
-
'
��

(
'
�
�,
��
/
'
��
�
�
�/
��

�!
(
'
��
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
��
�
�
�
,�
?
/
! 
/
�!
+�
%
�2
�
�
�
!�
&
�+
��
'
%
(
��
/
%
��
!+
�'
=
.
'
 �
'
�
��
�
�*
'
�+
.
'
�
��

�
�
�%
��
'
&
!�
�
%
1�
%
�
�
�E
�
!�
'
�
��
.
�?

%
3
�!
�
�1
!�
'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
�D
�
'
&
!�
�
%
1�
�
�
�
�.
�!
�
�A
"�
��

��
�
��
 %

+'
��
/
!+
� 
�
(
.
�!
+'

+�
�
%
��
!2
2�
%
�
�
��
/
'
��

%
1'
��
2�
�
1%
(
�
�&
%
�
�1
�
 %

1�
%
�
�/
�
�!
�3
�

%
�'
%
+"
��

�
�
/
'
��

�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�

�
�
1! 
'
�>

��
�!
(
'
��

�
(
(
!+
+!
�
�
'
�,
��

1�
�
�$

! 
/
%
'
1,
�
 �

�
�!
�
�
'
+�

��
��

'
-
'
1�
.
� 

1�
+'

�?
�
�4
!�
&
��
'
1%
�!
�
�
+/

!.
+�

?
!�
/
��
/
'
��

�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�

�
�
�
�/
�

	
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��

'
�-
! 
'
+"
��

%
��

!2
2�
�
	
�
��
'
 1
%
!(

+�
G
�5

<
,5
�
�
�2
��
(
��
/
'
��

�
(
(
!+
+!
�
�
'
��
�/
!+
�3
'
%
�,
�?

/
! 
/
�!
+�
2�
�
�
!�
&
��
/
%
��
.
�'
-
!�
�
+1
3
� 
%
(
'
��

!�
'
 �
13
��
�
��
/
'
��

	
�
�

2�
�
(
��
/
'
��

8)
�*

�
��
�
�
?
�2
%
11+
��

�
�
'
��
�/
'
� 
�
�
��
�
1�
�
2�
�/
'
��

�
(
(
!+
+!
�
�
'
�,
�%
�
�
�2
�
��
?
/
! 
/
��
/
'
��

	
�
��

�
?
�.

��
�
�
 '

+�
%
�*

�
+!
�
'
++
� 
%
+'

��
/
%
��
(
�
+�
�%
  
�
��
�?

!�
/
�

�/
'
��
�
(
(
!+
+!
�
�
'
�A
+�
�
-
'
�%
11�
.
�!
�
�!
�!
'
+�
%
�
�
��
*
E'
 �
!-
'
+"
�

�
��

�1
!�
'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
�%
�
+�
'
�!
�3
�(

'
%
+�

�'
+�
�
2�
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
�
�
�
 !
1,
��
/
'
��

	
�
�?

!11
�*

'
�+
�
*
E'
 �
��
�
�2
�
��
/
'
��
�'
�
�
 �
!�
�
+�
!�
�!
�+
�2
�
�
�
!�
&
�2
��
(
��
/
'
�1
�
 %

1�
%
�
�/
�
�!
�3
�?

/
! 
/
�

?
!11
��
'
+�

1�
�!
�
��
/
'
�1
�
++
��
2�
.
�%
 �
!�
!�
�
'
��
+�
%
22
"�

�
��

 �
'
%
+'

�
� 
�
11%

*
�
�%
�!
�
�
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��

%
1'
��

	
�
�!
+�
�
�
?
�!
�
�.

1%
 '

�!
�
��
'
+.

'
 �
��

2�
%
��

�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
.
��
E'
 �
+�
%
�
�
�!
�
!�
!%
�!
-
'
+�
*
�
��
 %

�
�!
�
�
�/

%
+�
��
�*

'
�%

.
.
1!'

�
�%

+�
2!
�
%
�
 !
%
113

��
�
��
 �

11'
%
&
�
'
��

	
�
�!
+�
�
�
��
?
'
11�
�'
+�

�
� 
'
�
�%
�
�
��
/
'
�'
�!
+�
%
�
��
�
&
�
!�
&
��
!+
4
��
/
%
��
�/
'
��

%
1'
��

	
�
�?

!11
�*

'
�
'
2!
��
�
!+
.
��
.
�
��
!�
�
%
�'
13
�2
��
(
�'
�
/
%
�
 '

�
�

E�
!�
��
+'

�-
! 
'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
"�

�

Page 61



�
�

��
��
'
+.

'
 �
��

2�
�!
+4

+�
��
�2
�
��
�'
��

'
1!-

'
�3
,�
�/
!+
�!
+�
�
!2
2!
 �

1�
��
�
�%

�
�!
 !
.
%
�'
�?

!�
/
�%

�
3
�%

  
�
�%
 3

"�
��
�!
+�
2%
!�
��
�
�+
%
3
��
/
%
��
�/
'
��

	
�
�/

%
+�
�
�
��
+'

'
�
��
/
'
��

�%
+�
! 
�

�'
�
�
 �
!�
�
+�
!�
�2
�
�
�
!�
&
��
/
%
��
�
�/
'
�+
�!
�
��
/
'
�.

�
*
1! 
�+
'
 �
�
��
/
%
-
'
�+
�
22
'
�'
�
"�
�
1'
%
�1
3
�%

�
3
��
'
�
�
 �
!�
�
+�
!�
�2
�
�
�
!�
&
�?

!11
�/

%
-
'
�%

��
'
&
%
�!
-
'
�!
(
.
%
 �
��

�
�2
�
��
�'
�

+'
�-
! 
'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
"�

Page 62



�
�

)
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
&�

�
�
/
'
��
-
'
�%
11�
�'
�
�
 �
!�
�
�!
�
��
�

+�
!+
��
!�
'
 �
13
��
'
1%
�'
�
��
�
��
/
'
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�?

�
�4
��
/
'
��
	
�
�/
%
+�
*
'
'
�
�'
�
&
%
&
'
�
�!
�
��
-
'
��
�/
'
�1
%
+�
��
�3
'
%
�+
�?

/
! 
/
� 
�
(
.
�!
+'

+C
�

�

•
�
/
'
��
	
�
��
�
�!
��
�
 !
%
1�
)
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
�'
%
(
�6
�
�
)
7�

•
�
/
'
��
�%
3
�
%
2'
�!
�
!�
!%
�!
-
'
�

•
�
/
'
��
�!
%
&
'
�.
��
E'
 �
�

•
�
'
!&
/
*
�
�
�/
�
�
�
��

'
+�

1�
�!
�
�
��
%
�
'
1�
.
��
-
!+
!�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�%
�
$
��
�
�
�
�

� �
/
'
��

�
�!
��
�
 !
%
1�
)
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
6�

�
)
7�
�'
%
(
�?

�
�4
+�
?
!�
/
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
�/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�!
++
�
'
�
�?

!�
/
�?

%
��
!�
&
+�
!�
�%
  
�
��
%
�
 '

�?
!�
/
��
/
'
��

�
)
�1
'
&
!+
1%
�!
�
�
�%
+�
%
�

�'
+�

1�
��
2�
�/
'
!�
�.
��
*
1'
(
%
�!
 �
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
?
!�
/
!�
��
/
'
� 
�
(
(
�
�
!�
3
"�

�
�
/
'
�
�'
%
(
�
�
22
'
�+
�
 �

(
.
�'
/
'
�
+!
-
'
�
%
++
'
++
(
'
�
�+
�
�
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�
.
'
�
.
1'
�
%
�
�
�
�/
'
!�
�
2%
(
!1!
'
+�

�/
%
��
!�
2�
�(

�
!�
�
!-
!�
�
%
113

��
%
!1�

�'
�
�
!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�
.
%
 4

%
&
'
+"
�
�
��
�

%
�
�
!�
!�
�
��
�
��

�
��
%
++
'
++
(
'
�
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�%
�
�
��
/
'
!�
�.

%
�'
�
�+
F 
%
�'
�+
�%
�'
�&

!-
'
�
��
/
'
��

.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
3
��
�
� 
�
(
.
1'
�'
�%
�+
'
12
�%
++
'
++
(
'
�
��
?
/
'
�'
��
/
'
3
�!
�
'
�
�!
23
�

�/
'
!�
��
?
�
��
'
'
�
+"
�

�
�
��
*
1'
(
%
�!
 �
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
!+
� 
/
%
11'

�
&
'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�%
�'
�'
�
 �

�
�%
&
'
�
��
�
��
/
!�
4
�%
*
�
�
��
�/
'
�!
(
.
%
 �
��
2�
�/
'
!�
�*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
�
�
�-
! 
�!
(
+�
%
�
�
� 
�
(
(
�
�
!�
!'
+"
��

� 
�
&
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
?
!�
/
�'

�
�
 %

�!
�
�
�%

�
�
��
�%
!�
!�
&
,�
/
'
%
1�
/
�%

�
�
�+
�
*
+�
%
�
 '

�(
!+
�
+'

,�
2%
(
!13

�+
�
.
.
�
��
�+
'
�-
! 
'
+�
%
�
�
�.

�
+!
�!
-
'
��

!-
'
�+
!�
�
%
�3
�%

 �
!-
!�
!'
+�
?
!�
/
!�
��
/
'
�

 �
(
(
�
�
!�
3
�%
�'
�%
1+
�
�!
�
�'
&
�%
1�
��
��
/
'
�+
�
  
'
++
��
2�
�/
'
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�
�
22
'
�'
�
"�
��

� �
/
'
��

�
:�
��
!�
%
��
��
�
2�
�/
'
�.

��
E'
 �
�%
1+
�
�.

��
-
!�
'
+�
%
�
-
! 
'
�%
�
�
�.

�%
 �
! 
%
1�
+�

.
.
�
��
�!
�
��
'
1%
�!
�
�
��
�
��

'
!&
/
*
�
�
��
�
�
!+
%
�
 '

�!
++
�
'
+�
%
�
�
�/

%
+�
%
++
!+
�'
�
�!
�
��
'
+�

1-
!�
&
�

�
!+
.
�
�'
+�
�/
��
�
&
/
��
/
'
��
+'

��
2�
�'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

'
+"
�

� �
�
11%

*
�
�%
�!
-
'
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�?

�
�4
�/
%
+�
%
1+
�
�*
'
'
�
��
�
�
'
��
%
4
'
�
�!
�
�+
 /

�
�
1+
�?

/
'
�'
�%
�
�!
:+
�
 !
%
1�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
/
%
+�
*
'
'
�
�!
�
'
�
�!
2!
'
�
�%
+�
%
�
�!
++
�
'
"�

�� �
��
�
�
�
��
�

� �
�%
3
�
%
2'
�!
+�
%
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�.
��
E'
 �
��
�
�
�*
3
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�%
�
�
��
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�
�
1! 
'
�%
�
�
�?

�
�4
+�
!�
�.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��

  
!�
'
�
��
>
�
(
'
�&
'
�
 3

��
'
.
%
��
(
'
�
��

6�
�>

�
7,
��

'
=
�
%
1�
�
++
%
�
1�
��

'
2'
��
%
1�
�
'
�
��
'
�6
�
�
�
�
7,
�;

%
1'
+�
�
(
*
�
1%
�
 '

��
��
+�
,�
�
��
'
'
��
�
%
+�
�
�+
,�
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
�
�
�/
��

'
�-
! 
'
�%

�
�
��
/
'
�1
�
 %

1�
%
�
�/
�
�!
�3
��

�%
�
!�
&
�

�
�%
�
�
%
��
+�
F�
�
! 
'
�
+!
�
&
��
'
%
(
"�

�

Page 63



�
	
�
�

�
/
'
�.
��
E'
 �
�!
+�
�
'
(
%
�
�
�1
'
�
�%
�
�
��
�
�
+�
!�
�+
.
'
 !
2!
 �
&
'
�
&
�%
.
/
! 
%
1�
%
�'
%
+�
?
/
'
�'
��
/
'
�'
�%
�'
��
'
.
�
��
'
�
�!
�
 !
�
'
�
 '

+�
�
2�
3
�
�
�/
�%
�
�!
�+
�
 !
%
1�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
�"
�


�!
1!+
!�
&
��
/
'
�

.
�
?
'
�+
��
2�
�
'
 �
!�
�
��
0
��
2�
�/
'
��

/
!1�

�'
�
��

 �
��
/
'
��

�
1! 
'
�%
�'
�%
*
1'
��
�
��

'
�%
!�
�%
�
�
��
'
(
�
-
'
�%
� 
/
!1�

��
�
�%
�.

1%
 '

��
2�
+%

2'
�3
�?

/
'
�
�%
� 
�
�
+�
%
*
1'
�/

%
+�
�'
%
+�

�
%
*
1'
�

 %
�
+'

��
�
�*
'
1!'

-
'
��
/
%
��
%
� 
/
!1�

�?
�
�
1�
��
�/
'
�?

!+
'
�*
'
�1
!4
'
13
��
�
�+
�
22
'
��
+!
&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
/
%
�(

"�
� �
/
'
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�+
�
�
�!
+�
�
22
'
�'
�
�%

�
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�*

3
�%

��
�%
3
�
%
2'
�?

�
�4
'
�,
��

+!
�
&
�$

�
�!
-
%
�!
�
�
%
1�
��

�'
�-
!'
?
!�
&
��
'
 /

�
!B
�
'
+�
��
�1
�
�
4
�%

��
�/
'
�!
�
 !
�
'
�
��
�/
%
��
/
%
+�

*
��
�
&
/
��
�/
'
(
��
�
��
/
'
�%
��
'
�
�!
�
�
��
2�
�/
'
�.
�
1! 
'
�%
�
�
��
�
��
+'

��
/
!+
�D
�'
%
 /

%
*
1'
�(

�
(
'
�
�A
��
�
�!
�
+�
!&
%
�'
� 
/
%
�
&
'
�!
�
��
/
'
!�
�*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
F�
1!2
'
+�
3
1'
"�

� �
�
�
�
&
�
.
'
�
.
1'
+A
�
.
%
�'
�
�+
�
%
�'
�
�
+�

%
113

�
 �

�
�%
 �
'
�
�
%
�
�
�
*
�
�/
�
.
%
�'
�
�+
�
%
�
�
�
3
�
�
�
&
�
.
'
�
.
1'
�
%
�'
�
�
22
'
�'
�
�
2�
��
/
'
��
+�

.
.
�
��
�
2�
�
(
�
�'
+�

�
� 
'
+�

!�
�
�/
'
�
�
�
�
�/
�

	
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��
'
�-
! 
'
,�
�
�
�
�/
��
'
�-
! 
'
��
��
*
3
�(

'
%
�
+�
�
2�
%
��
'
2'
��
%
1�
��
�%
�
��
�
�+
!�
'
�%
&
'
�
 3

"�
�

� ;
/
'
�'
�.
%
�'
�
�+
�%
�'
��
�
%
*
1'
��
�
� 
�
11'

 �
��
/
'
!�
� 
/
!1�

,�
�
�%
3
�
%
2'
�+
�%
22
�(

%
3
�'
+ 
�
��
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�/
�
(
'
�?

!�
/
�%
�.
�
1! 
'
��
22
! 
'
��
��
��
22
'
��
%
�
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�!
�
��
/
'
�

/
�
(
'
"�
�
�%
3
�
%
2'
�+
�%
22
�(

%
3
�%
1+
�
�'
+ 
�
��
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
�
��
>

��
�
�(

'
'
��
.
%
�'
�
�+
�+
/
�
�
1�
��
/
'
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�*
'
�!
�
��
=
! 
%
�'
�
"�
�

� �
	
�
�
�
�

� �
/
!+
�.
��
E'
 �
�!
+�
*
%
+'

�
�!
�
��
/
'
��
%
��
!2
2�
)
�!
�
'
?
'
11�
%
�
�
�%
!(

+�
��
��
!-
'
��
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�2
��
(
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�2
�
11�

?
!�
&
�%
��
'
+�
�2
�
��
%
�2
!�
+�
��
22
'
�
 '

"�
� �
/
'
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
�+
'
�&
'
%
�
��
!�
� 
�
�
E�
�
 �
!�
�
�?

!�
/
��
�!
%
&
'
�+
�%
22
��
'
 !
�
'
+�
?
/
'
�/
'
��
%
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�!
+�
'
1!&

!*
1'
�2
�
��
�/
'
�.
��
E'
 �
C�
�/
'
��
'
 !
+!
�
�
�!
+�
*
%
+'

�
��
�
�*
�
�/
��
/
'
�

�'
1%
�!
-
'
�+
'
�!
�
�
+�

'
++
��
2�
�/
'
��
22
'
�
 '

�%
�
�
�%
�
�!
�
�
! 
%
�!
�
�
��
2�
�'
(
�
�+
'
"�
�
/
'
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�(

�
+�
�%
1+
�
�/
%
-
'
�%
�?

!11
!�
&
�
'
++
��
�
� 
�
:�
.
'
�%
�'
�-
�
1�
�
�%
�!
13
�?

!�
/
�%
�
�

!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
��
/
%
��
!+
��
'
 !
�
'
�
��
.
�
�
��
�
��
/
'
�*
%
+!
+�
�
2�
%
�+
�
*
+'

B
�
'
�
��
%
++
'
++
(
'
�
�"
�

� $
�
+�
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�
%
�'
��
2�
%
�+
/
�
��
��
�
�%
�!
�
�
,�
(
%
3
��
'
+�

1�
�!
�
�%
��
'
2'
��
%
1�
��
�%
��
�
!-
'
�+
%
1�
+'

�-
! 
'
�%
�
�
,�
?
/
'
�'
�.
�
++
!*
1'
�%
�
�
�%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
�?

!11
�*
'
�*
%
+'

�
��
�
�%
�

�'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

��
/
%
��
'
�
+�

�'
+�
-
! 
�!
(
+�
�
2�
�/
'
� 
�!
(
'
+�
%
�'
�1
!+
�'
�
'
�
��
�
�%
�
�
�-
%
1�
'
�
�%
�
�
��
/
'
!�
� 
�
�
 '

��
+�
%
�
�
�?

!+
/
'
+�
%
�'
�2
'
�
�*
%
 4

��
�
��
'
.
%
!�
��
/
'
�/
%
�(

�
 %

�
+'

�
�%
�
�
��
/
%
��
�/
'
�'
�!
+�
%
��
%
�
&
'
��
2�
�'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
�E
�
+�
! 
'
�.
��
 '

++
'
+�
%
-
%
!1%

*
1'
��
�
�(

'
'
��
�/
'
!�
��
'
'
�
+"
�

� *
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�


�'
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�+
�
�
�
��
�

� � �
/
'
��

'
!&
/
*
�
�
�/
�
�
�
��

'
+�

1�
�!
�
�
��
%
�
'
1+
�/
%
-
'
�*
'
 �

(
'
�%
�.
�
?
'
�2
�
1,
�%
�
�
!�
!�
�
%
1�
(
'
%
�
+�
�
2�
�
'
%
1!�

&
�?

!�
/
�1
�
?
�1
'
-
'
1�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�%
�
�
�%
+�
�/
'
3
�%
�'
�!
�
�'
++
'
�
 '

�%
�

�'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
� 
�
�
2'
�'
�
 '

,�
%
�
�
�/
%
-
'
�%
1�
'
%
�
3
�.
��
-
'
�
��
�
�*
'
�-
'
�3
�'
22
'
 �
!-
'
�!
�
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
&
�2
�
��
/
'
��
%
�
�!
�+
�
 !
%
1�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
%
�
�
F�

��
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�!
�
��
�/
'
��
%
�'
%
+�
�
2�

+'
�-
! 
'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
�'
"&
"�
+ 
/
�
�
1+
"�

�
;
'
�%
�'
��
�!
1!+
!�
&
��
/
'
��

�
�
+�
!�
��
/
'
� 
�
�
�'
=
��
�
2�
�/
'
�D
	
�
��
�
2�
�
�
�
��
A�
%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
C�
�
%
�
�!
�
�
+�
%
�
�
��

�
�
�
!�
!�
�
%
1�
�
%
�
�!
�
�
+�
6	

�
��
�
2�
�
�
�
��
��

!+
.
�
+%

1+
��
	
�
�
�
7�
%
+�

?
'
11�
%
+�
.
��
-
!�
!�
&
�%
��
'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
%
+'

��
2�
�
�
�
��
�	

��
'
�+
"�

�

Page 64



�
	
	
�

��
��
'
+.

'
 �
��
2�
�/
'
�	

�
�
�
�?

'
�%
�'
�!
(
.
1'
(
'
�
�!
�
&
�%
� 
�
�
+!
+�
'
�
��
%
�
�
�&
�
�
�
�.
�%
 �
! 
'
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

�?
!�
/
��
/
'
�%
++
!+
�%
�
 '

��
2�
+�
%
22
�!
�
�*
�
�/
��

%
��
!2
2�
%
�
�
��
/
'
��

%
1'
,�
%
+�

?
'
11�

%
+�

�
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�

�
�
1! 
'
,�
��
�'

�
+�

�'
�%

��
!(

'
13
��
'
+.

�
�
+'

��
�
��
/
'
+'

�%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
��
/
%
��
?
!11
� 

�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
�%

11�
?
�%

.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
��

!-
'
�+
!�
�
�2
�
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�

'
�
&
%
&
'
�
�*
3
��
�!
%
&
'
�%
+�
?
'
11,
�?

/
'
�
��
'
1'
-
%
�
�"
�

�
)
&)

�
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
/
'
� 
�
(
*
!�
'
�
�+
'
�-
! 
'
��
'
1!-

'
�3
�%
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
�%
��
%
 /

'
�
��

)
�
� 
%
��
+�
6�

.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
��
�
�<
7�
/
%
+�
/
'
1.
'
�
��
�
�(

%
!�
�%
!�
�%
�
��
-
'
�%
11�
�'
�
�
 �
!�
�
�!
�
��
�
(
*
'
�+
��
2�

�
�

�+
!�
 '

��
�
�
<
F9

�%
1�
/
�
�
&
/
��
/
'
�1
%
+�
�3
'
%
��
+%

?
�%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

��
2�
<
�
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
"�
�
/
'
�2
�
11�

?
!�
&
� 
/
%
��
�.
��
-
!�
'
+�
%
�
��
-
'
�-
!'
?
��
2�
�/
'
�1
%
+�
��
�3
'
%
�+
�%
�
�
�!
�
 1
�
�
'
+�

B
�
%
��
'
��
�
��
2�
�/
'
� 
�
��
'
�
��
2!
�
%
�
 !
%
1�
3
'
%
��
�
�
�
�
F�

�
�?

/
'
�
�%
��
'
 �
'
%
+'

�!
+�
�
�
�'
�
"�

�

�
� � � �

Page 65



�
	


�

)
&,
+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
� 
%
�
�*
'
�+
'
'
�
��
/
%
��
�/
'
�.
%
+�
�3
'
%
��
/
%
+�
+'

'
�
�%
�+
!&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
!�
 �
'
%
+'

�!
�
��
�

+"
�;

/
!1+
��
!�
�?

%
+�
%
�
�!
 !
.
%
�'
�
��
/
%
��
�/
'
�'
 �

�
�
(
! 
� 
1!(

%
�'
�?

�
�
1�
��
'
+�

1�
�!
�
�%
�
�

%
�
-
'
�+
'
�'
22
'
 �
��
�
��
-
'
�%
11�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�1
'
-
'
1+
,�
�/
!+
�!
+�
�/
'
�2
!�
+�
�3
'
%
��
�/
%
��
�/
'
�!
(
.
%
 �
�!
+�
2'
1�
�%
�
�
�!
+�
�
�
��
!�
�1
!�
'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
�'
=
.
'
�!
'
�
 '

�'
1+
'
?
/
'
�'
�!
�
�;

%
1'
+,
�

?
/
'
�'
��
'
�
�
 �
!�
�
+�
!�
��
�

A+
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
��
  
�
�"
��

�
�
/
'
�
!�
��
�
�
�
 �
!�
�
��

2�
�/
'
��

%
�
�!
�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!�
!�
�
%
1�
�
%
�
�!
�
�
!�
&
�
%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
�
!�
�
�
.
�!
1�
�
�
�
#
,�
?
/
! 
/
�
�'
.
1%
 '

�
��
/
'
�
�
'
.
�!
(
%
�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
!�
%
1�
;
%
��
!�
&
�

�
!+
.
�
+%

1+
,�
��
�
4
�+
�
(
'
��
!(

'
��
�
�D
*
'
�
�!
�
A�
%
�
�
��
/
'
�'
�?

%
+�
+�

(
'
� 
�
�
 '

��
��
/
%
��
�/
'
3
�(

!&
/
��
/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
��
/
'
� 
%
�
+'

��
2�
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�!
�
��
�

+�
%
+�
�
�!
%
&
'
�%
+�
%
�
�

�
.
�!
�
�
�(

!&
/
��
/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�*
3
.
%
++
'
�
"�

�
;
'
��
/
'
�'
2�
�'
�%
�
%
13
+'

�
�%
11�
�/
'
� 
%
+'

+�
�
2�
%
11�
�/
'
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
�?

'
�'
�!
++
�
'
�
�?

!�
/
�%
��

%
�
�!
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
!�
!�
�
%
1�
�
%
�
�!
�
�
��
�
�!
�
&
��
�
�
#
F�

�
��
�
�%
+ 
'
��
%
!�
�

?
/
'
�/
'
��
%
�
3
�(

!&
/
��
/
%
-
'
�*

'
'
�
�D
��
!%
&
'
�
A�
!�
+�
'
%
�
�%

�
�
�!
��
 %

�
�*

'
�+
'
'
�
��
/
%
��
%
.
%
��
�2
��
(
��

�
� 
%
+'

+�
!�
�?

/
! 
/
�%

��
'
%
+�

�
�2
�
��
*
3
.
%
++
!�
&
��

�!
%
&
'
�!
+�
�
�
��

�'
 �

��
'
�
,�
�
�
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�*
3
.
%
++
'
�
��
�!
%
&
'
��
�
�
'
 '

++
%
�!
13
"�

�
	
2�
�
�
<
� 

/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
��
'
 '

!-
'
�
� 

%
�
�!
�
�
+�

%
+�

%
�
��

�

,�
�
�
�/

%
�
�.

�'
-
!�
�
+1
3
��
'
 '

!-
'
�
�%

�
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�2
��
(
��
/
'
��

�!
%
&
'
�.

��
E'
 �
"�
�
/
'
��
'
(
%
!�
�
'
��
%
�'
�

'
=
.
1%
!�
'
�
�%
+�
2�
11�

?
+C
�

� 5
�H

��
�
��
'
(
�
�+
'
�

�
�
�H

��
'
2�
+'

�
��
�!
%
&
'
�

9
�H

��
22
'
�
 '

�+
'
�!
�
�
+�

'
++
�

�
�H

��
�
(
'
+�
! 
�-
!�
1'
�
 '

�
�
�H

��
%
 !
%
113

�%
&
&
�%
-
%
�'
�
�

�
�H

�?
'
%
.
�
�
+�

�
�H

�+
'
=
�
%
1�
�
22
'
�
 '

+�
�
�H

�.
�'
-
!�
�
+�
 �

�
-
! 
�!
�
�
+�

0
�H

��
�
)
�!
�
-
�
1-
'
(
'
�
��

�
�H

�(
�
-
'
�
��
�
��
�
2�
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�H

��
�
��
'
%
+�

�
��
�
�2
!1'

�
�
�H

�+
/
�
�
1�
��
�
��
/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�!
�
 1
�
�
'
�
�

� �
�
&
%
!�
+�
��
/
!+
�*
%
 4

&
��
�
�
�
��
/
'
��
	
�
�?

!11
C�

� •
�
'
+�

1-
'
��
'
 �

��
!�
&
��
!+
 �
'
.
%
�
 !
'
+�
6!
"'
��
�
� 
%
+'

+�
?
/
'
�'
��
�
��
'
%
+�

�
��
'
 �

��
'
�
7�

•
�
'
:�
.
'
�
��
/
'
��
'
*
%
�'
�?

!�
/
��
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
.
�
1! 
'
�%
*
�
�
��
D�
�
��
'
(
�
�+
'
� 
%
+'

A�
•

�
'
-
!+
!�
�?

!�
/
��
�!
%
&
'
�+
�%
22
��
/
'
��
'
'
�
��
�
�'
(
.
/
%
+!
+'

��
/
'
� 
�
�
+'

B
�
'
�
 '

+�
�
2�
�'
2�
+!
�
&
��
�!
%
&
'
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
��

Page 66



�
	
�
�

•

�
+�

�'
��
	
�
� 
�
�
��
�+
�%
22
��
'
(
%
!�
�-
!&
!1%

�
��
%
�
�
�(

%
4
'
��
'
.
�'
+'

�
�%
�!
�
�
�!
�
��
'
+.

'
 �
��
2�
%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
� 
%
+'

+�
��
�*
'
��
'
2'
��
'
�
�D
*
%
 4

A�
��
��
�!
%
&
'
��

�

,
&�
�'
�
!�
��
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
/
'
��
	
�
��
'
1!-

'
�+
�!
�+
�+
�%
��
��
�3
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�
��
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�!
�
�%
  
�
��
%
�
 '

�?
!�
/
�%
��
!+
4
:1
'
�
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

��
+�

%
113

��
'
2'
��
'
�
��
�
�%
+�
�/
'
�D
�
 %

1'
�
�

�
.
.
��
%
 /

A"
��
/
'
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

�'
�
+�

�'
+�
�/
%
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
�.
�
+'

�%
�/
!&
/
��
!+
4
��
2�
�'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�%
�
�
F�

��
/
%
�(

��
�
�+
'
12
�%
�
�
��
�/
'
�+
��
'
 '

!-
'
��
/
'
�

(
�
+�
�!
�
�'
�
+!
-
'
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
��
'
&
!(

'
�?

!�
/
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�
�/
%
��
%
�'
�%
!(

'
�
�%
��
�/
'
�/

!&
/
'
+�
�%
�'
%
+�
�
2�
 �
!(

!�
�
&
'
�
! 
��

'
'
�
,�
%
�
�
��
/
�
+'

��
/
%
��
%
�'
�%
++
'
++
'
�
�%

+�
D1�

?
��
!+
4
A�
�'
 '

!-
'
�%
�(

�
�
'
�%
�'
�
�1
'
-
'
1�
�
2�
!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�'
�
+�

�!
�
&
��
'
+�

�
� 
'
+�
%
�'
�%
11�

 %
�'
�
�?

/
'
�'
��
/
'
3
�%
�'
��
'
'
�
'
�
�(

�
+�
"�
�

� 	
�
��
�
 %

1'
�
��

.
.
��
%
 /

�!
+�
+�

.
.
�
��
'
�
�*
3
��
�
��
�
�
�
�6
�
%
+'

��
1%
�
�
!�
&
��
�
��
(
7�
+3

+�
'
(
�?

/
'
�'
��
/
�
+'

�%
++
'
++
'
�
�%
+�
D/
!&
/
:�
!+
4
A�
%
�'
��
!+
 �

++
'
�
��
�
�%
��
'
&
�
1%
��
*
%
+!
+�

?
!�
/
�%

11�
�'
1'
-
%
�
��
.
��
2'
++
!�
�
%
1+
�!
�
-
�
1-
'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
%
+'

,�
?
!�
/
�%

�-
!'
?
��
�
�'

�
+�

�'
�%

�E
�
!�
'
�
��

.
�%

.
.
��
%
 /

��
�
��
'
�
�
 !
�
&
��
/
'
�%

++
'
++
'
�
��
!+
4
�%

�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�+
�
�
�

.
�
+'

+�
%
�
�
�%

�
�
�'
++
�%

�
3
�!
++
�
'
+�
�
2�
-
�
1�
'
�%
*
!1!
�3
��
/
%
��
(
%
3
�/

%
-
'
�*

'
'
�
�!
�
'
�
�!
2!
'
�
"�
�
/
'
�2
�
��
(
�!
+�
 /

%
!�
'
�
�*

3
�%

��
'
%
(
�(

%
�
%
&
'
��
%
�
�
��
/
'
�.

�
1! 
'
�%

1?
%
3
+�

%
��
'
�
�
�+
�
��
/
%
��
%
�
3
�!
�
�'
11!
&
'
�
 '

��
/
%
��
(
%
3
�*
'
��
'
1'
-
%
�
��
!+
�+
/
%
�'
�
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
(
�%
�
�
��
'
+.

�
�
�
'
�
��
�
�*
3
��
/
'
��
	
�
"�

� �
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
+�
��
��

'
1!-

'
��
�/
'
��
�
�'
�
+!
-
'
��

�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�%

�
�
��

�
�-
'
!11
%
�
 '

�.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
�6
��

�
7,
�?

/
! 
/
�!
+�
%
!(

'
�
�%

��
�/
�
+'

�/
!&
/
��
!+
4
�%

�
�
F�

��
.
��
1!2
! 
�

3
�
�
�
&
��
22
'
�
�
'
�+
�?

/
�
�(

!&
/
��
�
�/
'
�?

!+
'
��
'
 '

!-
'
�%
� 
�
+�
�
�
!%
1�
+'

�
�'
�
 '

"�
�
/
'
��
�
�
�.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
� 
�
�
+!
+�
+�
�
2�
�
�
�/
�
�
�+
A�
+�

.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�.
'
��
?
'
'
4
��
/
%
��
!�
 1
�
�
'
+�

%
�
�
�
(
*
'
��

�
2�

'
1'
(
'
�
�+
�
!�
 1
�
�
!�
&
�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��

?
�
�4
,�

�'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
�
E�
+�
! 
'
,�

'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
,�

��
%
!�
!�
&
�
%
�
�
�
'
(
.
1�
3
(
'
�
�,
�
2%
(
!13

�
+�

.
.
�
��
�
%
�
�
�

!�
�'
�.
'
�+
�
�
%
1�
+4

!11
+"
�

� �
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�%
1+
�
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
+�
��
�'
(
.
1�
3
�%
��
'
�
! 
%
�'
�
��
�
�
�6
��

�'
&
�%
�'
�
��

'
+'

��
1'
(
'
�
��
�
�
.
.
�
��
7�
?
�
�4
'
��
?
/
�
,�
!�
�%
�
�
!�
!�
�
��
�
��
/
'
�+
�%
�
�
%
��
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
��
�
�

�
! 
'
�
 '

,�
�
22
'
�+
�%

�
�
!�
!�
�
%
1�
+�

.
.
�
��
��
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�!
�
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
�%
�
�
�2
�
11�

?
!�
&
��
'
1'
%
+'

"�
	
�
��
 �

+�
�
�
3
�2
!&
�
�'
+�
 %

�
�*

'
�+
'
'
�
��

�
��
/
'
��
'
1'
-
%
�
��
�
)
�
� 
%
��
�

6�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
7"
�

�
)
&-
�
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
/
'
�(

'
%
+�

�'
��
'
1%
�'
+�
��
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
+'

��
22
'
�
 '

+�
1'
%
�
��
�
�%
�+
�
*
+�
%
�
�!
-
'
��

�
� 
�
(
'
�!
�
�%
�
3
�&

!-
'
�
�3
'
%
�"
��

/
'
� 
�
/
�
��
�6
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�+
�
*
E'
 �
��
�
�%
�

+�
*
+�
%
�
�!
-
'
��
�
� 
�
(
'
�*
'
�?

'
'
�
�8
%
�
�
%
�3
�%
�
�
�$

%
� 
/
7�
!+
��
/
'
�
��
�%
 4

'
�
�2
�
��
%
�3
'
%
�,
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
�.
��
.
�
��
!�
�
��
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
,�
%
�
�
��
/
'
�%
-
'
�%
&
'
�

�
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�
22
'
�
 '

+�
.
'
��
�
22
'
�
�
'
��
*
'
!�
&
�
�'
.
�
��
'
�
�
-
!%
�
�
�
�
�
6�

�
1! 
'
�
�
%
�!
�
�
%
1�
�
�
(
.
�
�'
�7
"�
�
/
!+
�
!�
 1
�
�
'
+�

3
�
�
�
&
�
.
'
�
.
1'
�
�'
 '

!-
!�
&
�
*
�
�/
�
1�
?
�
1'
-
'
1�

�
�
� 
�
(
'
+,
� 
�
(
(
�
�
!�
3
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�/
�
+'

��
�
�1
! 
'
�
 '

�2
�
11�

?
!�
&
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
"�
�

� )
'
1�
?
�!
+�
�/
'
�(

�
+�
��
.
��
�
��
%
�'
� 
/
%
��
"�

� � �

Page 67



�
	
�
�

�
� ;
/
'
�
� 
�
(
.
%
�!
�
&
�8
�
13
��

�
�
�
��

�8
�
�
'
��

�
�
�
�?

!�
/
�8
�
13
��

�
�
�
��

�8
�
�
'
��

�
�
�
��
/
'
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
 3

��
2�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�
�2
��
(
��

"�
�
��
�
��

"0
5
"�
�
�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�+
%
(
'
�

.
'
�!
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�/
'
�'
�?

%
+�
!�
 �
'
%
+'

�!
�
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
 3

��
2�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�2
��
(
��
"�
#
��
�
��
"�
�
�%
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
/
'
�?

/
�
1'
��
2�
;
%
1'
+�
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�2
��
(
��
"�
�
�

��
��
"�
5
"�

� �
/
'
�*
!�
%
�3
��
%
�'
�2
�
��
�
%
��
!2
2�
!�
 �
'
%
+'

�
�2
��
(
��
�
"#
I

��
�
��
<
I

"�
�
/
'
��
%
�'
�2
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
/
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�
�2
��
(
�#
9
I

��
�
��
�
"�
I

�%
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
/
'
�?

/
�
1'
��
2�

;
%
1'
+�
2�
�
(
�#
0
I

��
�
�#
0
"5
I

"�
�

�
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�'
%
+�

�
+�
 %

�
�%
  
�
�
�
��
2�
��
�/
!+
C�

�
♦

�
+�
�/
'
��
	
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+!
�
&
13
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
'
+�
'
%
�1
3
�!
�
��
��
'
��
��
�.
�'
-
'
�
��
'
+ 
%
1%
�!
�
�
�!
�
��
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
,�
�/
�
+'

�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
��
�
�&
�
��
�
�

��
�
 �

(
(
!�
�
2�
��
/
'
��
�
22
'
�
 '

+�
%
�'
�
1!4

'
13
�
��
�
*
'
�
�/
'
�
(
�
+�
�
.
��
*
1'
(
%
�!
 �

3
�
�
�
&
�
.
'
�
.
1'
�
?
/
�
�
�'
B
�
!�
'
�
�/
'
�
(
�
+�
�
!�
�'
�
+!
-
'
�
!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�

!2
�
�/
'
!�
�

�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
!+
��
�
� 
'
%
+'

"�
�

�
♦

�
�'
B
�
'
�
�1
3
��
/
'
+'

�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�.

�'
+'

�
��
%
+�
%
��
%
� 
�
�
+!
�
'
�%
*
1'
��

!+
%
�
-
%
�
�%
&
'
"�
�
/
!+
� 
%
�
�*

'
�!
11�

+�
�%
�'
�
�*

3
��
/
'
��
'
+�

1�
+�
�
2�
%
�.

��
2!
1!�

&
�'

=
'
� 
!+
'
�

 %
��
!'
�
��
�
��
!�
��
�
�
�
�*
3
��
/
'
��
�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�)
�
%
��
�%
��
�
�
��
�'
B
�
'
+�
"�
�
/
!+
�/
%
+�
*
'
'
�
��
'
.
�
��
'
�
�!
�
�.
�'
-
!�
�
+�
�
	
�
�.
1%
�
+�
%
�
�
�!
+�
�
�
 '

�(
�
�'
�%
��
%
 /

'
�
�%
+�

�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
�
"�

� �
�
��
'
�
�1
3
,�
�/
'
��

	
�
�.

�
� 
/
%
+'

+�
+'

�-
! 
'
+�
2�
�
(
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
�!
+�

�
��
�
�'
�
+!
 �
�
+3

 /
�
1�
&
3
��

'
.
%
��
(
'
�
��
!�
��

��
'
��
��
��

22
'
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�?

/
�
�'
=
/
!*
!�
�+
'
�!
�
�
+�
(
'
�
�%
1�

/
'
%
1�
/
��
!2
2!
 �

1�
!'
+�
%
�
�%
++
'
++
(
'
�
��
%
�
�
��
'
 '

++
%
�3
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�
%
!(

'
�
�%
��
�
22
'
�!
�
&
�*
�
�/
��
�'
%
�(

'
�
��
%
�
�
��
'
�
�
 !
�
&
��
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
�"
�

�
/
!+
�.
��
-
!+
!�
�
�!
+�
��
�*
'
�'
=
�'
�
�
'
�
�*
3
�(

'
%
�
+�
�
2�
%
�.
%
��
��
!(

'
�+
'
 �

�
�
(
'
�
��
�
2�
%
�.
+3

 /
�
1�
&
!+
��
�
2�
�/
'
��
�!
+�

�
��
�
�'
�
+!
 �
�
+3

 /
�
1�
&
3
��
'
.
%
��
(
'
�
��
?
/
�
+'

�?
!11
�

*
'
��
�
�.
��
-
!�
'
�+
�
.
.
�
��
�%
�
�
� 
�
�
+�

1�
%
�!
�
�
�2
�
��
 %

+'
�(

%
�
%
&
'
�+
�?

/
�
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
'
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
�'
=
/
!*
!�
�1
'
++
�+
'
�!
�
�
+�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
�+
"�

Page 68



�
	

�

�
��
%
�?

!�
'
�,
�+
��
%
�'
&
! 
�1
'
-
'
1�
�/
'
��

	
�
�(

%
�
%
&
'
��
!+
�.

%
��
3
��
�
��

!+
 �

++
!�
�
+�
?
!�
/
��
/
'
�


�
)
�?

/
! 
/
�%
�'
�(

%
4
!�
&
�+
!&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
.
��
&
�'
++
��
�
?
%
��
+�
�
'
+!
&
�
!�
&
�%
�(

'
�
�%
1�

/
'
%
1�
/
�+
'
�-
! 
'
�2
�
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
/
%
��
?
!11
��
'
1!-

'
��
+'

�-
! 
'
+�
!�
�%
��
%
�
! 
%
113

��
!2
2'
�'
�
��
(
%
�
�
'
��
2�
�
(
��
/
'
� 
�
�
-
'
�
�!
�
�
%
1�
�
�
$
�
�
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

"�
�

)
%
+'

�
��
�
��
/
'
�1
%
�'
+�
��
�
�
�!
�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
,�
�
�
�!
�
&
�8
�
13
��
�
�
�
��
�8
�
13
��
�
�
�
,�
�
�
��
�
2�
�
�
9
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
��
9
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
'
�
� 
�
(
(
!�
�!
�
&
�%
��
�
�%
1�
�
2�
0
�
#
� 
�!
(
'
+"
��

�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�

3
'
%
��
8�

13
��
�
�
�
��
�8
�
�
'
��
�
�
�
��
/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�/
%
�
��
'
�
�
 '

�
��
�
�#
�
#
,�
�
2�
?
/
�
(
��
�
13
��
�
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
'
�
� 
�
(
(
!�
�!
�
&
��
#
9
�

�
22
'
�
 '

+�
!�
��
�
�%
1"
�

� �
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�
/
%
+�

�
�
?
�
*
'
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�!
1!+
'
�
�/
'
�
�
8)

�
�'
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�
��
�
14
!�
�
?
/
! 
/
�
.
�
.
�
1%
�'
+�

?
!�
/
�
�
8$

��
�
6�

�
�
�/
�
8�

+�
! 
'
�
$
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
��

2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�
�
3
+�
'
(
7�

!�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
,�
�
+�

%
113

� 
�
�
+!
�
'
�'
�
��
�
�*
'
�(

�
�'
�%
  
�
�%
�'
��
/
%
�
��
�
�
�+
�%
�!
+�
! 
+"
��

�
�

�

Page 69



�
	
�

� �
�
�
	

�
��

�
�
�
��
�.
�
��
�
�

.
�
��
�
�

%
�
	
��
,
/
/
0
��
�
�#
�
	�
�
�,
/
/
1
�2
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

9
9
�
�

#
�
<
�
�

9
�
9
#
�

+
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
� 
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�


�

#
<
I

6#
5
5
7�

#
#
"<
I

�
#
#
"�
I

�

%
�
�
	�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
2
��
�
�


�
	�

�
"#
�

�
"9
<
�

�
"<
9
�

%
�
	�
,
/
/
1
��
�
�#
�
	�
,
/
/
3
�2
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

9
�
0
�

#
�
�
9
�

<
0
�
#
�

+
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
� 
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�


�

#
9
"0
I

�6
#
5
�
7�

#
�
"9
I

�
#
#
"�
I

�

%
�
�
	�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
2
��
�
�


�
	�

�
"�
�
�

�
"�
�
�

�
"9
�
�

%
�
	�
,
/
/
3
��
�
�#
�
	�
,
/
)
/
�2
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

5
<
�
�

�
0
�
�
�

5
�
�
9
�

+
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
� 
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�


�

#
0
"<
I

�6
�
<
<
7�

#
�
"�
I

�
#
#
"�
I

�

%
�
�
	�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
2
��
�
�


�
	�

�
"�
<
�

�
"�
#
�

�
"9
0
�

%
�
	�
,
/
)
/
��
�
�#
�
	�
,
/
)
)
�2
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

�
0
�
�

�
9
�
�
�

�
#
5
#
�

+
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
� 
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�


�

�
#
"�
I

�6
�
�
�
7�

#
5
"0
I

�
#
�
"9
I

�

%
�
�
	�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
2
��
�
�


�
	�

�
"#
<
�

�
"�
5
�

�
"�
�
�

%
�
	�
,
/
)
)
��
�
�#
�
	�
,
/
)
,
�2
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

#
0
#
�

�
�
<
�
�

�
�
0
5
�

+
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
2
��
�
�


�
	�
� 
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�


�

�
5
"5
I

�6
�
5
#
7�

�
�
"0
I

�
#
5
"�
I

�

%
�
�
	�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
2
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
2
��
�
�


�
	�

�
"5
#
�

�
"#
�
�

�
"�
9
�

Page 70



�
	
�

� ��
��
'
+.

'
 �
��
2�
�/
�
+'

� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
��
/
'
�'
�!
+�
%
+�
3
'
��
�
�
��
.
:�
�
:�
%
�'
�!
�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�%
-
%
!1%

*
1'
"�
�
/
'
��

8)
��

�
(
(
�
�
!�
3
��

!-
!+
!�
�
�J

�
%
��
'
�1
3
�

�
'
-
!'
?
��
�J

�
%
��
'
��
�
��
�
�
#
:�
�
�
�
�6
�
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��

7�
�
22
'
�+
��
/
'
�2
�
11�

?
!�
&
� 
/
%
��
�?

/
! 
/
�!
�
�
! 
%
�'
+�
�/
%
��
�/
'
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
 3

��
2�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�/

%
+�
!�
 �
'
%
+'

�
�

?
/
'
�
� 
�
(
.
%
�!
�
&
�8
�
13
��
�
�
�
��
�8
�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�6
�
"�
�
7�
?
!�
/
�8
�
13
��
�
�
�
��
�8
�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�6
�
"0
5
7"
��

� �

�
� � �
�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�+
%
(
'
�.
'
�!
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�/
'
�'
�?

%
+�
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�!
�
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
 3

��
2�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�2
��
(
��
"�
#
��
�
��
"�
�
�%
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
/
'
�?

/
�
1'
��
2�

;
%
1'
+�
�/
'
�'
�?

%
+�
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�2
��
(
��
"�
�
��
�
��
"�
5
"�

�
/
'
�*
!�
%
�3
��
%
�'

�
�/
%
+�
!�
 �
'
%
+'

�
�2
��
(
��
�
"#
I

��
�
��
<
I

�2
�
��
�/
'
�+
%
(
'
��
!(

'
�.
'
�!
�
�
�!
�
��

%
��
!2
2"
��

/
'
��
%
�'
�2
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
/
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�
�2
��
(
�

#
9
I

��
�
��
�
"�
I

�%
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
/
'
�?

/
�
1'
��
2�
;
%
1'
+�
2�
�
(
�#
0
I

��
�
�#
0
"5
I

"�
� �
/
'
��
'
.
�
��
�.
�
!�
�+
��
�
��
�/
%
��
!�
�8
�
13
��
�
�
�
��
�8
�
�
'
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
2�
�
�
9
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
��
9
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
'
�
� 
�
(
(
!�
�!
�
&
�%
��
�
�%
1�
�
2�
0
�
#
��
22
'
�
 '

+"
��

�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�

3
'
%
��
8�

�
'
��
�
�
�
��
�8
�
13
��
�
�
�
��
/
'
��

�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�/

%
�
��
'
�
�
 '

�
��
�
�#
�
#
��
2�
?
/
�
(
��
�
13
��
�
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
'
�
�

 �
(
(
!�
�!
�
&
��
#
9
��
22
'
�
 '

+�
!�
��
�
�%
1"
�

� ��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

1
�
/
'
�*
!�
%
�3
��
%
�'
�!
+�
%
�(

'
%
+�

�'
��
2�
�'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�6
!"
'
"�
�/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
�'
=
.
�'
++
'
�
�%
+�
%
�.
'
� 
'
�
�%
&
'
��
2�
%
�&
!-
'
�
� 
�
/
�
��
7"
��
�
/
'
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
 3

��
%
�'
�

(
'
%
+�

�'
+�
�/
'
�%
-
'
�%
&
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�'
:�
22
'
�
 '

+�
.
'
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
�
/
�
��
"�

Page 71



�
	
�

�
/
'
�%
�
�/
�
��
 �

�
 1
�
�
'
+C
�D
�
/
!+
�+
�
.
.
�
��
+�
�/
'
�%
�&
�
(
'
�
��
�/
%
��
�/
�
+'

�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
�
?
�1
'
2�
�!
�
��
/
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�%
�'
��
/
'
�(

�
+�
�.
��
1!2
! 
�%
�
�
� 
�
(
.
1'
=
�

3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
A"
�

� �
�
?
'
-
'
�,
��
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�/
%
+�
�
�
?
�.
�
.
�
1%
�'
�
��
/
'
��
8)

�D
��
�
14
!�
A�
%
�
�
��
/
'
�+
�
*
+'

B
�
'
�
��
%
�
%
13
+!
+�
!+
��
'
.
�'
+'

�
�'
�
�*
'
1�
?
C�

�
� �
/
!+
� 
/
%
��
�!
�
�
! 
%
�'
+�
�/
%
��
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
��

�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�2
!�
%
�
 !
%
1�
3
'
%
��
�
.
�!
1�
�
�
�
�
��
�$

%
� 
/
��
�
�
�
�.

'
�2
�
�(

'
�
�*
'
��
'
��
�/
%
�
��
/
'
�


@
��

%
�!
�
�
%
1�
�'
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��
%
�'
�!
�
�

%
11�
 �

/
�
��
+"
�

� )
&4
�+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
/
%
��
�/
'
�
�
�
�
�
6�

�
1! 
'
�
�
%
�!
�
�
%
1�
�
�
(
.
�
�'
�7
�
�
%
�%
�
�
!2
2'
�+
�
2�
�
(
�
�/
'
�
1�
 %

1�
�
8$

��
�
!�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�
!+
�
%
�
1�
�
&
+�
%
�
�
!�
&
�
.
��
*
1'
(
�
?
/
! 
/
�
%
11�

�
�
�
�/
�
8�

+�
! 
'
�

.
��
2'
++
!�
�
%
1+
�%
�'
�%
?
%
�'
��
2,
�%
�
�
��
8$

��
�!
�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�!
+�
�
+�

%
113

� 
�
�
+!
�
'
�'
�
��
�
�*
'
�(

�
�'
�%
  
�
�%
�'
��
/
%
�
��
�
�
��
%
�%
"�

�

Page 72



�
	
�

�
�
�?

!�
/
+�
%
�
�
!�
&
�%
�
3
��

2�
�/
'
�%
*
�
-
'
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�?

!11
,�
!�
�1
!�
'
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��
'
 �

(
(
'
�
�
%
�!
�
�
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
�%
�
%
13
+!
+�
.
��
�
�
 '

�
�*

3
��
/
'
��

8)
,�
2�
11�

?
!�
&
��
/
'
�

!�
!�
!%
1�
 �

(
.
1'
�!
�
�
��
2�
�/
'
��
8)

��
�
�
14
!�
�6
�
�'
+'

�
�%
�!
�
�
�:
��
.
.
'
�
�
!=
��
7,
��
�
�
'
��
%
4
'
��
�
C�

�

•
�
�
�
4
�!
�
�&
�'
%
�'
��
�
'
.
�/
�%
��
�/
'
��
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��
2�
�
5
�3
'
%
��
�
1�
+"
�

�
/
'
��
3
.
'
�%

�
�
�2
�'
B
�
'
�
 3

��
2�
�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�!
�
��
/
!+
�%

&
'
�&

��
�
.
�?

!11
�!
�
2�
�(

��
+�
%
*
�
�
��
 �

��
'
�
��
��
'
�
�
+�
!�
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
%
�
�
�'

�
%
*
1'
��

+�
��
�2
�
�(

�
1%
�'
�%

�
�

%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
��
'
+.

�
�
+'

"�
�

•
�
�
�
4
�%
��
�/
'
��
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�.
%
��
'
��
+�
�
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�2
��
(
��
�/
'
��
'
�/
�
! 
�&
��
�
.
+�

;
/
!1+
��
�
�
��
/
!&
/
1!&

/
�'
�
�%
+�
%
(
�
�
&
��
/
'
�.
��
1!2
! 
��
22
'
�
�
'
�+
,�
?
'
�%
�'
�%
?
%
�'
��
2�
%
�
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

�!
�
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�2
��
(
�
%
+�
'
��
�
�
��
.
'
� 
�
(
!�
&
��
�
��
�
��
%
��
'
�
�!
�
�
�%
�
�
�%
�

(
�
�'
��
.
��
�
��
%
�'
�*
�'
%
4
�
�
?
�
��
2�
'
�/
�
! 
!�
3
�%
�
�
��
/
'
��
3
.
'
+�
�
2�
�
22
'
�
 '

+�
�/
'
3
� 
�
(
(
!�
�?

!11
�*
'
�/
'
1.
2�
1"
�

�

•
�
�
(
'
+�
! 
�*
�
�&
1%
�3
�

�
/
'
�%

�
%
13
+!
+�
!�
�
! 
%
�'
+�
�/
%
��
�
%
��
!2
2�
(
%
3
�/

%
-
'
�%

�&
�'
%
�'
��
�
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
� 
�
(
(
!�
�!
�
&
��

22
'
�
 '

+�
�
2�
*
�
�&
1%
�3
��
/
%
�
�'

1+
'
?
/
'
�'
"�
�2
�(

�
�'
��

.
:�
�
:�
%
�'
�

!�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
+�
��
�!
�
�
! 
%
�'
��
/
!+
,�
�/
'
��
	
�
�?

!11
��
'
'
�
��
�
� 
�
�
+!
�
'
��
?
/
%
��
+.

'
 !
2!
 �
%
 �
!�
�
+�
 %

�
�*
'
��
%
4'

�
��
�
�?

�
�4
�?

!�
/
��
/
!+
�&
��
�
.
��
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
"�

�

•
;
'
�?

!11
�.
�
.
�
1%
�'
��
/
'
��
8)

��
�
�
14
!�
�?

!�
/
�(

�
�'
��
'
 '

�
��
!�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�

�
/
!+
�?

!11
�'

�
%
*
1'
��

+�
��
�%

�
%
13
+'

�1
%
+�
�3

'
%
�A
+�
6�

.
�!
1�
�
�
�
#
��

�$
%
� 
/
��

�
�
�
7�
 �

/
�
��
��

2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 

�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�!
�
��

��
'
��
��
�2
�
�(

�
1%
�'
�%

�
�

%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
��
'
+.

�
�
+'

��
�
��
/
'
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�2
!&
�
�'
+"
�

�

,
�
�
�
��


�
��

� �
�
+�
�
�
3
��
'
(
%
!�
+�
D�
/
'
�1
%
+�
��
'
+�

��
A�
!�
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�%
+�
!�
�%
22
'
 �
+�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�%
�
�
�!
�
��

%
��
!2
2�
�/
'
�'
�!
+�
+�
��
�
&
�'
-
!�
'
�
 '

��
�
�

+�
.
.
�
��
��
/
!+
"�

�
/
'
��

	
�
�.

��
-
!�
'
+�
/
!&
/
�B

�
%
1!�
3
�.

�'
:+
'
�
�'
�
 '

��
'
.
�
��
+�
%
�
�
�!
��
!+
�'
-
!�
'
�
��
�/
%
��
�
�
��
E�
�
&
(
'
�
��
%
+�
�/
'
�(

�
+�
�%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
��

!+
.
�
+%

1�
!+
��
'
+.

'
 �
'
�
�%
�
�
��
'
1!'

�
�

�
.
�
�
"�
��
�
��
'
 '

�
��
3
'
%
�+
�?

'
�/
%
-
'
�%
+4

'
�
��
/
'
�(

%
&
!+
��
%
�'
+�
�/
'
!�
��
.
!�
!�
�
�*
3
�(

'
%
�
+�
�
2�
%
�B
�
'
+�
!�
�
�
%
!�
'
�%
��
%
 /

'
�
��
�
�%
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�'
.
�
��
+�
%
�
�
��
/
'
�2
'
'
�
*
%
 4

�
/
%
+�
!�
-
%
�!
%
*
13
�*
'
'
�
�.
�
+!
�!
-
'
"�

�

Page 73



�


�

�
/
'
��

	
�
��
�&
%
�
!+
'
+�
�'
&
�
1%
��
'
-
'
�
�+
�2
�
��
(
%
&
!+
��
%
�'
+�
�/
%
��
%
!(

��
�
�'
�
+�

�'
��
/
%
��
�/
'
3
�%
�'
�?

'
11�
!�
2�
�(

'
�
�%
*
�
�
��
�
�
��
!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+,
�!
�
 1
�
�
!�
&
�%
1�
'
��
%
�!
-
'
+�
��
�

 �
+�
�
�
3
�+
�
 /

�%
+�
�
�
��
��

�'
�
+!
-
'
��
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
+�
%
�
�
��
�
��
?
�
�4
�?

!�
/
�-
! 
�!
(
+�
�
2�
 �
!(

'
"�
�

� �
/
!+
�3

'
%
��
/
%
+�
+'

'
�
��

�E
�
!�
��
��
%
!�
!�
&
�'

-
'
�
�+
,�
�
�
'
�%

��
�
�
�
� 
�
(
(
�
�
! 
%
�!
�
�
��

'
'
�
+�
%
�
�
�1
'
%
��
!�
&
�+
�3
1'
+�
�
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�%

�
�
�%

�+
'
 �

�
�
��

�
��

'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
�

�
.
.
��
%
 /

'
+"
��
�
�
��
/
'
��
'
-
'
�
�+
��
/
%
��
?
!11
�!
�
2�
�(

�(
%
&
!+
��
%
�'
+�
%
*
�
�
��
�
�
��
!�
�'
�
+!
-
'
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�?

�
�4
�!
+�
+ 
/
'
�
�
1'
�
��
�
��
%
4
'
�.
1%
 '

�1
%
�'
��
�/
!+
�3
'
%
�"
�

�
;
'
�/
%
-
'
�%
�&
�
�
�
��
'
1%
�!
�
�
+/

!.
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��
/
%
!�
��
2�
�/
'
�3
�
�
�/
�*
'
�
 /

,�
?
/
�
�?

!�
/
�/
'
��
�
'
.
�
�3
�%
��
'
�
�
��
/
'
��
	
�
�(

%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
(
'
'
�!
�
&
��
�
�%
��
'
&
�
1%
��
*
%
+!
+"
��

� �
,
&)

�
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

� � ;
/
!1+
��
�
�
��
�'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��
%
�'
��
'
(
%
!�
+�
/
!&
/
,�
�/
'
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
��
%
�'
�!
+�
'
=
��
'
(
'
13
�1
�
?
�!
�
��
%
��
!2
2�
%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
%
 �
�
++
�;

%
1'
+"
��
/
'
�&
�%
.
/
�*
'
1�
?
�!
11�

+�
�%
�'
+�
�/
!+
"�

� �

�
�

�

Page 74



�


	

�
�
�*

'
�+
.
'
 !
2!
 �

%
*
�
�
��
�/
'
��
'
%
+�

�
+�
?
/
3
��
/
!+
�+
/
�
�
1�
�*

'
�+
�
�!
+�
�
!2
2!
 �

1�
�%

�
�
� 

%
�
�
�
��
*
'
��
'
1%
�'
�
��
�
�%

�
3
��

�
'
� 
%
�
+%

1�
2%
 �
�
�"
��

�
?
'
-
'
�,
�+
�
(
'
��
'
�
�%
�!
-
'
�

+�
&
&
'
+�
!�
�
+�
 %

�
�*
'
�(

%
�
'
C�

�

•
��
�!
+�
�
�
��
�
�
�
+�

%
1�
2�
��
�/
'
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
�
�.
��
E'
 �
+�
��
�'
�
&
%
&
'
�?

!�
/
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
�/
%
-
'
� 
�
(
(
!�
�'
�
�%
 �
+�
�
2�
%
�
�!
�+
�
 !
%
1�
*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
��
%
�
�
F�

��
-
'
�3
�1
�
?
�1
'
-
'
1�

�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
,�
%
*
�
�
��

?
/
�
(
�
�/
'
�'
�
%
�'
�
+'

�!
�
�
+�

 �
�
 '

��
+�

!�
�
�'
+.

'
 �
�
�
2�
�/
'
!�
�
?
'
12
%
�'
�
%
�
�
�
.
'
�+
�
�
%
1�
 !
� 
�
(
+�
%
�
 '

+"
�

%
�1
3
�
!�
'
�
�!
2!
 %

�!
�
�
�
%
�
�
�

%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
�+
!&
�
:.
�
+�
!�
&
��
�
��
�
!-
'
�+
%
1�
+'

�-
! 
'
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
�
/
!1�

�'
�
A+
��
'
�-
! 
'
+�
%
�
�
��

�
�
$
�
�(

%
3
�.
�'
-
'
�
��
�/
'
+'

� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�2
��
(
�*
'
 �

(
!�
&
�-
'
�3
�/
!&
/
�

�!
+4

�3
�
�
�
&
��
22
'
�
�
'
�+
�-
'
�3
�B
�
! 
4
13
�%
�
�
�'
+ 
%
1%
�!
�
�
��
�
�%
� 
�
+�
�
�
!%
1�
+'

�
�'
�
 '

"�
�

•
;
'
� 

�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
�/

%
-
'
��
/
'
� 

�
�
2!
�
'
�
 '

��
2�
�/
'
� 

�
�
��
+�
%
�
�
� 

/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
�.

�'
-
!�
�
+1
3
�(

!&
/
��
/
%
-
'
�*

'
'
�
��

!+
.
�
+'

�
��

2�
*
3
�(

'
%
�
+�
�
2�
%
� 

�
+�
�
�
!%
1�

+'
�
�'
�
 '

�%
�'
�(

�
�'
�1
!4
'
13
��
�
��
'
 '

!-
'
�%
� 
�
(
(
�
�
!�
3
�+
'
�
�'
�
 '

�
�

)
'
1�
?
�!
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
��
/
'
��
3
.
'
��
2�
�
22
'
�
 '

+�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
��
'
 '

!-
'
�
� 
�
+�
�
�
!%
1�
+'

�
�'
�
 '

+�
2�
�C
�

� � �

	
22
'
�
 '

��
3
.
'
�

�
�
�
9
F�

�
�

�
�
�
�
F�

�
�

�
�
�
�
F�

�
�

�
�
�
�
F�

#
�

�
�
�
#
F�

�
�

�
�
*
*
'
�3
�

�
�
�

�
�

5
�

�
�

5
�

)
�
�&
1%
�3
�

�
�
�

0
�

0
�

�
�
�

5
�

�
22
�%
3
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

)
�'
%
 /

��
2�
�
��
'
��

�
#
�

�
#
�

�
9
�

5
�

�
�

�
++
%
�
1�
�

�
�

<
�

0
�

�
�

0
�

�
�
.
.
13
!�
&
��
��
&
+�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�'
%
 /

� 
%
+'

�%
��
'
�
�
 �
!�
�
�/
%
+�
�
  
�
��
'
�
,�
%
.
%
��
�2
��
(
�%
++
%
�
1�
�?

/
! 
/
�?

%
+�
/
!&
/
'
��
!�
��
/
'
�1
%
+�
�3
'
%
�"
��

� � ,
&,
�+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

� � ;
'
�?

'
1 
�
(
'
��
/
'
�'

+�
%
*
1!+
/
(
'
�
��
�
2�
�/
'
��

�
�
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
�
'
+'

��
1'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
� 
/
%
!�
'
�
�*

3
�+
'
�
!�
��
.
�
1! 
3
��

22
! 
'
�+
�2
��
(
��
/
'
��

�
�
�/
�8
�
+�
! 
'
�)

�
%
��
�!
�
�;

%
1'
+"
�

�
/
'
��

'
+'

��
1'
(
'
�
��
)
�
%
��
�%
!(

+�
��
�*
�!
�
&
��
�
&
'
�/
'
��
�/
'
�+
��
%
�'
&
! 
�1
'
%
�
+�
2�
��
 �
�
 !
%
1�
+�
%
��
��
�3
�+
'
�-
! 
'
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
�
'
%
1�
/
�%
�
�
��
�
 !
%
1�
�
%
�'
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�/
'
��
/
!�
�
�

�
'
 �
�
��
%
�
�
��
22
'
��
%
�D
��
.
:�
�
?
�
A�
%
.
.
��
%
 /

��
�
�'
�
+�

�'
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
��
'
 '

!-
'
�%
� 
�
+�
�
�
!%
1�
+'

�
�'
�
 '

�%
�'
�&
!-
'
�
��
/
'
��
!&
/
��
1'
-
'
1�
�
2�
+�

.
.
�
��
��
�
��
'
1'
%
+'

"�
�

Page 75



�





�
�
�'

1'
(
'
�
��
�
2�
�/
'
�%

*
�
-
'
�.

��
E'
 �
�!
+�
��
�'

+�
%
*
1!+
/
�(

�
1�
!�
%
&
'
�
 3

�.
%
�
'
1+
��
/
%
��
 �

�
+!
�
'
��
%
11�
 /

!1�
�'
�
��
�
�*

'
��
'
1'
%
+'

�
�2
��
(
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
�%

�
�
�%

��
!-
'
�%

��
E�
!�
�1
3
�

�
?
�
'
�
��
'
+'

��
1'
(
'
�
��
.
1%
�
+"
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
	
�
�/
%
+�
!�
�.
1%
 '

�%
�1
�
�
&
:+
�%
�
�
!�
&
�%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
��
?
/
'
�'
*
3
�?

'
� 
�
�
-
'
�
'
�%
��

%
+'

��
1%
�
�
!�
&
��
�
��
(
,�
 /

%
!�
'
�
�*
3
�%
��
'
%
(
�

(
%
�
%
&
'
�,
�?

/
! 
/
��

!+
 �

++
'
+�
�
�
��
�
�
13
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�!
�
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
�*

�
��
%
1+
�
�%
11�
/
!&
/
��
!+
4
� 
%
+'

+�
!�
��
/
'
� 
�
(
(
�
�
!�
3
"�
�
11�
�'
1'
-
%
�
��
.
��
2'
++
!�
�
%
1+
�%
�'
�!
�
-
!�
'
�
��
�
��
/
'
�

�
�
��
(
�%
�
�
� 
�
�
��
!*
�
�'
��
�
�%
�E
�
!�
��
+�

.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�.
1%
�
�2
�
��
'
%
 /

� 
/
!1�

"�
�

�
1+
�
��
'
+ 
�!
*
'
�
�%
*
�
-
'
�!
+�
�
�
��
 �

(
(
!�
(
'
�
��
��
�+
�
.
.
�
��
��
/
'
�1
�
 %

1�
 �

11%
*
�
�%
�!
�
�
��
�
�'
�
/
%
�
 '

��
/
'
�D
(
'
�
�
A�
�
2�
%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�2
�
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
C�
!�
��
'
(
%
!�
+�
%
�

 �
�
 !
%
1�
2%
 �
�
��
!�
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
&
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
"�

�
��
��
��
�

	
�
��
�'
 '

�
��
%
*
!1!
�3
�
��
�
�
�!
1!+
'
�
�/
'
�
�
8)

�
�
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
��
�
�
14
!�
�
'
�
%
*
1'
+�

�
+�

��
�
1�
�
4
�
!�
�
(
�
 /

�
(
�
�'
�
�
'
�%
!1�

%
��
�/
!+
�
&
��
�
.
�
%
�
�
�
2�
�(

�
1%
�'
�
%
�
�
%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
�

�'
+.

�
�
+'

"�

�


�
�
�
�
�
�
"�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
5
�.
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

� �
/
!+
�(

'
%
+�

�'
�1
�
�
4
+�
%
��
�/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
/
�
�
�+
�%
� 
/
!1�

��
'
 '

!-
'
+�

�

�%
��
�/
'
�'
�
�
��
2�
%
�
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
�6
�/
'
�1
%
+�
�2
�
11�
?
'
'
4
7�
 �

(
.
%
�'
�
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��
�
(
*
'
��
%
��
�/
'
�

+�
%
��
�6
�/
'
�2
�
11�
?
'
'
4
�*
'
2�
�'
��
/
'
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
� 
�
(
(
'
�
 '

+7
"�
��
/
'
�(

'
%
+�

�'
�!
+�
�
!-
!�
'
�
�!
�
��
��
/
�
+'

��
2�
+�
%
��
��
�3
�+
 /

�
�
1�
%
&
'
�%
�
�
��
/
�
+'

�%
*
�
-
'
"�

� 	
�
��
%
*
!1!
�3
��
�
�1
!%
!+
'
�?

!�
/
�+

 /
�
�
1+
�!
+�

(
�
 /

�
'
�
/
%
�
 '

�
�*

3
��
/
'
�.

�'
+'

�
 '

�!
�
��
/
'
��

	
�
��

2�
%
�?

�
�4
'
��
+'

 �
�
�
'
�
�2
��
(
��
/
'
�1
�
 %

1�

�
�
 %

�!
�
�
��

'
.
%
��
(
'
�
�"
�

�
�
?
'
-
'
�,
�!
��
!+
��
�
��
%
1?

%
3
+�
'
%
+3

��
�
�2
%
 !
1!�
%
�'
��
/
'
��
'
��
��
��
�
�+
 /

�
�
1�
�
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�?

/
�
�'
!�
/
'
��
/
%
-
'
��
�
��
%
��
'
�
�
'
�
�*
3
� 
/
�
! 
'
��
��
?
/
�
�/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�'
=
 1
�
�
'
�
"�

�
;
'
�.
�'
-
!�
�
+1
3
�(

%
�
%
&
'
�
�%
�+
(
%
11�
'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
��
�
!�
�+
�%
22
'
�
�*
3
�%
��
'
%
 /

'
��
%
�
�
��
?
�
��
'
%
 /

!�
&
�%
++
!+
�%
�
�+
�2
�
�
�
'
�
��
�
��
�
2�
�/
'
��
�
?
��
'
2�
�
 �
��
3
(
�
��
/
��
�
�
�
"�
�
/
!+
�

�'
+�

�
� 
'
�/
%
+�
�
�
��
*
'
'
�
��
�%
�
+2
'
��
'
�
�!
�
��
��
/
'
��
'
?
��
%
(
!1!
'
+�
�
!�
+�
�%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
�%
�
�
�!
+�
%
�1
�
++
��
�
��
/
'
��
	
�
"�

�
-
&)
&�
�
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
�

� )
'
1�
?
�!
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
�%
� 
/
%
��
�!
�
�
! 
%
�!
�
&
�%
�
��
-
'
�%
11�
�
�
?
�
?
%
��
��
�'
�
�
C�

�
� � � � � �

�
6
)
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�
6
,
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�
6
-
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�

6
4
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�

�
�
��
��
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
+
��
��

�
��
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

)
3
�

)
0
�

0
�

)
,
�

8
8
�

%
�
&�
*
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
+
��
!�
�
��
	�
��
	

�
	�

,
)
&0
�

)
3
&4
�

)
0
&)
�

)
)
&1
�

)
1
&,
�

%
�
&�
*
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
+
��
!�
�
�


��
	

�
	�

,
/
&4
�

)
9
&8
�

1
&/
�

)
/
&9
�

)
8
&8
�

Page 76



�


�

-
&,
�+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

� �
/
'
��
	
�
�?

!11
��
'
+.

�
�
�
�*
3
C�

�

•

�
+�

�!
�
&
��
/
%
��
?
'
�%
-
�
!�
�%
�
3
�!
�
 �

�
+!
+�
'
�
 !
'
+�
!�
��
'
 �

��
!�
&
"�
�	

�
13
��
/
'
��
	
�
�'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
�?

�
�4
'
��
?
!11
��
.
�
%
�'
��
	
�
��
'
 �

��
+�
?
!�
/
�!
�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�2
��
(
�

�/
'
�1
�
 %

1�
'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
�%
�
�/
�
�!
�3
�%
*
�
�
��
�/
'
��
�
(
*
'
�+
��
2�
/
�
�
�+
�%
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�+
.
'
�
�
+�
!�
�'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
"�
�

�

•
�
�
�
4
!�
&
�
%
��
�/
'
�
/
�
�
�+
�
�
2�
'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�
%
�'
�
�
22
'
�'
�
,�
?
/
'
�
�
'
=
 1
�
�
'
�
,�
%
�
�
�
��
�
 �

11%
�'
�
�/
!+
�
!�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
�
%
1�
�
&
+!
�
'
�
�/
'
�
1'
-
'
1+
�
�
2�

%
��
'
�
�
%
�
 '

"�
�
/
!+
�.
��
-
!�
'
+�
%
�(

�
�'
�%
  
�
�%
�'
�.

! 
��
�'
��
2�
%
��
'
�
�
%
�
 '

�%
�
�
�.

�'
:'
(
.
�+
��
/
'
�!
�
�'
�
�!
�
�
��
2�
�/
'
��

8)
��
�
�%
(
'
�
�
��
/
'
�'
=
!+
�!
�
&
�@

�
��
+�

�

�/
%
��
!�
�?

!11
�!
�
 1
�
�
'
��
/
!+
�!
�
2�
�(

%
�!
�
�
"�

�

•

=
.
1�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�.
�
++
!*
!1!
�3
��
2�
��
%
�
+2
'
��
!�
&
��
�
��
 �

��
'
�
��
.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�?

!�
/
��
&
�
�'
�
��
�
��
/
'
��
$
�
�
�?

/
�
�%
�'
�%
*
1'
��
�
��
22
'
��
'
1'
(
'
�
�+
��
2�
B
�
%
1!2
! 
%
�!
�
�
+�

?
/
! 
/
� 
%
��
3
�%
�&
�'
%
�'
��
-
%
1�
'
�2
�
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

'
�?

�
�4
�?

!�
/
"�
��
�!
+�
�
�
��
!�
�'
�
�!
�
�
��
�
��
�%
!�
�+
�
(
'
�<
�.
�%
 �
!�
!�
�
'
��
+�
%
22
�%
 �
�
++
��
/
'
��
	
�
��
'
%
(
+�
%
+�

!�
�'
��
%
1�
-
'
�!
2!
'
�+
��
2�
'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
��
�
!�
+�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�(

%
3
�/
%
-
'
� 
�
(
.
1'
�'
�
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
�%
++
!+
�%
�
 '

��
2�
�/
'
!�
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
&
� 
%
+'

�(
%
�
%
&
'
�"
�

�

•
�
!(

�
��
�
&
!-
'
�
�
�
��
%
*
!1!
�3
�
��
�
%
++
!+
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�
!�
�
�/
!+
�
%
�
&
�'
%
�'
��
.
��
2!
1'
,�
%
�
�
�
!�
�'
�
�
�
��
�
+�

.
.
�
��
�
�/
'
�
�
$
�
�
�
!�
�
�/
'
!�
�
?
!+
/
�
��
�
��
11�

�
�
��
�/
'
!�
�

.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
��
2�
%
  
�'
�
!�
'
�
�'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
��
�
!�
+�
(
�
�'
�?

!�
'
13
�!
�
��

%
��
!2
2�
?
!�
/
�%
�-
!'
?
��
�
�(

%
4
'
��
/
!+
�%
�(

�
�'
�D
.
�
��
%
*
1'
A�
(
'
%
�
+�
2�
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
�
�

%
 B

�
!�
'
�%
�B
�
%
1!2
! 
%
�!
�
�
"�

�

•
�
�
�
�!
�
�
'
�
��
�
'
�
&
%
&
'
�
?
!�
/
�
�/
'
�
�
%
��
!2
2�
�
�
�
�
 !
1�
?
!�
'
�
!�
!�
!%
�!
-
'
,�
�/
%
��
/
%
+�

 �
�
++
�
�
!�
'
 �
�
�%
�'
�
 �

(
(
!�
(
'
�
�,
�
%
�
�
�
!�
�
.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�
?
!�
/
�
�
�/
'
��

�
�&
%
�
!+
%
�!
�
�
+,
��
�
��
'
-
'
1�
.
�%
��
�
*
�
+�
,�
+�
�%
�'
&
! 
��
'
+.

�
�
+'

��
�
��
/
'
�.
��
*
1'
(
��
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
�?

/
�
�%
�'
��



�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
!�
3
"�

� � -
&-
��
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�

� �
+�
2%
��
%
+�
�
1�
'
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�%
�'
� 
�
�
 '

��
'
�
��
�
��
.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

�%
1+
�
�2
1�
 �
�
%
�'
+�
*
�
��
!+
�!
(
.
��
-
!�
&
"�
�
�
?
'
-
'
�,
��
/
!+
��
'
(
%
!�
+�
*
'
1�
?
��
/
'
��
'
 �

(
(
'
�
�
'
�
�

�
0
�/
�
�
�+
A�
'
�
&
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
.
'
��
?
'
'
4
"�

Page 77



�


�

�
�

6
)
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�
6
,
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�
6
-
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�

6
4
�,
/
)
-
7
)
4
�

�
�
��
��
�

*
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
+
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

,
)
�

,
8
�

)
1
�

,
9
�

3
/
�

%
�
&�
*
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
+
��
!�
�
��
	�
��
	

�
	�

)
-
&-
�

)
-
&-
�

)
,
&)
�

)
-
&1
�

)
-
&,
�

%
�
&�
*
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
+
��
!�
�
�


��
	

�
	�

)
0
&4
�

)
)
&8
�

1
&-
�

)
4
&,
�

)
-
&/
�

� 	
�
��
�
�
&
�
!�
&
�.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�?

!�
/
��

%
�'
'
�+
�;

%
1'
+�
!+
�!
�
-
%
1�
%
*
1'
"�
;
'
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
��
�
�'
(
.
1�
3
��
� 
%
�'
'
�+
�%
�
-
!+
�
�+
�?

/
�
�%
�'
�%
*
1'
��
�
��
22
'
��
!�
�'
�
+!
-
'
�+
�
.
.
�
��
��
�
�

2%
 !
1!�
%
�'
�'
�
��
3
�%
�
�
��
�
&
�
!�
&
�.

%
��
! 
!.
%
�!
�
�
�!
�
�'
!�
/
'
��
��
%
!�
!�
&
��
��
'
(
.
1�
3
(
'
�
��
%
�
�
�'
�
&
'
�
�
'
��
1�
�
&
��
'
�(

� 
%
�'
'
��
(
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
+4

!11
+"
��
�
�
?
'
-
'
�,
��
/
'
3
�

��
�
�%

�'
�?

�
�4
!�
&
�?

!�
/
�%

�&
��
�
.
��

2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
�/

%
-
'
�(

�
 /

�/
!&
/
'
��
+�

.
.
�
��
��

'
'
�
+�
�/
%
�
�!
�
�.

�'
-
!�
�
+�
3
'
%
�+
"�
�
�
*
+�
%
�
 '

�(
!+
�
+'

,�
�
�
+�
%
*
1'
�

%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�%
�
�
�1
%
 4

��
2�
�
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
3
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
!+
+�

'
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
%
�1
%
 4

��
2�
+'

12
:'
+�
'
'
(
�/
%
-
'
�/
%
�
�%
�+
!&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
!(

.
%
 �
��
�
��
�
� 
�
(
'
+�
!�
��
�
�

"�
�

� ��
�%
�
�
!�
!�
�
,�
�
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�
2�
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
��
�
�'
�
&
%
&
'
�?

!�
/
�'
�
�
 %

�!
�
�
�%
�
�
��
�%
!�
!�
&
�/

%
-
'
��
'
�
�
 '

�
�%
+�
%
� 
�
�
+'

B
�
'
�
 '

��
2�
�/
'
�!
�
 �
'
%
+'

��
2�
?
%
!�
!�
&
�

�!
(
'
+�
2�
��
%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
��
�%
!�
!�
&
,�
%
�
�
�.
��
&
�'
++
!�
�
��
�
�
�'
+�
%
�'
�1
!(

!�
'
�
,�
?
/
! 
/
��
'
+�

1�
+�
!�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�*
'
 �

(
!�
&
��
!+
'
�
&
%
&
'
�
"�
��
%
 4

��
2�
'
�
&
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
!�
�

��
%
!�
!�
&
�!
+�
%
�+
��
�
�
&
�2
%
 �
�
��
!�
��
'
:(

�
�!
-
%
�!
�
&
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
"�
��

� �
/
'
��
'
 '

++
!�
�
�/

%
+�
/
%
�
�%
�+
!&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
!(

.
%
 �
��
�
�'
(
.
1�
3
(
'
�
��
�
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�
2�
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�?

/
�
�2
!�
�
��
/
'
(
+'

1-
'
+�

 �
(
.
'
�!
�
&
�%
&
%
!�
+�
� 
%
�
�
!�
%
�'
+�
?
!�
/
�(

�
�'
�?

�
�4
�'
=
.
'
�!
'
�
 '

�%
�
�
�B
�
%
1!2
! 
%
�!
�
�
+"
�

� ��
!�
!%
�!
-
'
+�
+�

 /
�%
+�
8�

*
+�
�
��
?
�/
�;

%
1'
+�
/
%
-
'
�*

'
'
�
�?

'
1 
�
(
'
�
,�
%
1�
/
�
�
&
/
��

�
 '

�%
&
%
!�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�!
�
� 
�
�
�%
 �
�?

!�
/
��
/
'
��

	
�
�2
!�
�
��
/
'
(
+'

1-
'
+�
�
�
��

(
'
'
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�E
�
*
��
'
B
�
!�
'
(
'
�
�+
,�
%
�
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
'
�
�-
%
 %

�
 !
'
+�
%
�'
�2
'
?
�!
�
��
/
'
��

%
��
!2
2�
%
�'
%
"�
��
�
��
�/
'
�(

%
!�
�.

%
��
,�
��
%
!�
!�
&
�.

��
-
!�
'
�+
�%
�'
�!
11�
'
B
�
!.
.
'
�
��
�
�

?
�
�4
�?

!�
/
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

!�
/
�+
�
 /

� 
�
(
.
1'
=
��
'
'
�
+,
�?

/
! 
/
�1
'
%
�
+�
��
�%
�*
�'
%
4
�
�
?
�
��
2�
�/
'
�.
1%
 '

(
'
�
�"
�

� )
�
�
&
'
��
�'
+�
�!
 �
!�
�
+�
!�
��

%
�'
'
��
;
%
1'
+�
/
%
-
'
��
'
+�

1�
'
�
�!
�
�%

�1
�
++
��

2�
.
��
-
!+
!�
�
�%

��
�
1%
(
%
�
A+
��

'
%
��
!�
&
�2
�
��
�
!2
'
��

'
�
��
'
�?

/
! 
/
�?

%
+�
.
�'
-
!�
�
+1
3
�%

�
�!
�
'
%
1�

+�
'
.
.
!�
&
�+
��
�
'
�2
�
��
�
	
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�!
�
��
�(

%
!�
+�
�'
%
(
��
�%
!�
!�
&
"�
��
/
!+
�.
��
-
!+
!�
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
'
�
�%
+�
(
%
�
3
�%
+�
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
-
'
��
%
��
�
�(

�
�
�/
�.
'
�!
�
�
"�

� �
�
?
'
-
'
�,
�
�'
 '

�
��
�
'
-
'
1�
.
(
'
�
�+
�
+�

 /
�
%
+�

�/
'
�
!�
��
�
�
�
 �
!�
�
�
�
2�
�/
'
�
�
3
(
�
�
��

(
1%
'
�
F$

�
-
!�
&
�
�
�
�?

%
��
�
.
��
E'
 �
�
/
%
-
'
�
*
'
'
�
�
%
�
.
�
+!
�!
-
'
�
+�
'
.
�
��
?
%
��
+�

!(
.
��
-
!�
&
�
�

��
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�
��
&
'
�/
'
��
?
!�
/
��
/
'
��
'
?
�K
�
��
!4
'
�+
L�
.
��
&
�%
(
(
'
�?

!�
/
��
%
��
!2
2�
�
!�
3
��
�
�
�*
%
11�
�
1�
*
"�
�

�
'
2'
��
%
1+
��
�
��
/
'
+'

��
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�
%
�
�
��
�/
'
��
+/

�
��
� 
�
�
�+
'
+�
*
'
!�
&
��
�
�
�%
 �
�
++
��
/
'
� 
!�
3
�+
/
�
�
1�
��
'
+�

1�
�!
�
�%
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
�
�!
(
.
��
-
'
(
'
�
��
!�
��
/
'
�.
�
+�
��
0
�
�

�

2!
&
�
�'
+�
�
-
'
��
�/
'
� 
�
(
!�
&
�3
'
%
�"
�

Page 78



�




� � -
&4
&
+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
	
�
��
%
*
!1!
�3
��
�
�(

%
4
'
��

+'
��

2�
�/
'
�+
'
�-
! 
'
+�
�
2�
�/
'
��
�
�'
�
+!
 �
�
+3

 /
�
1�
&
3
��

'
.
%
��
(
'
�
��
!�
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
�!
+�

�
,�
%
1�
'
%
�
3
��

'
+ 
�!
*
'
�
,�
!+
�1
!4
'
13
��
�
�%
++
!+
��
�
+�
!�
�*

'
��
'
��

�
�
�
'
�+
�%
�
�
!�
&
�%
�
3
��

!2
2!
 �

1�
!'
+�
�/
%
��
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�(

%
3
�/

%
-
'
��
/
%
��
.
�'
-
'
�
��
�/
'
(
�2
��
(
�'
�
&
%
&
!�
&
"�
�
�'
B
�
'
�
�1
3
,�
%
+�
%
��
'
+�

1�
��

2�
.
��
1�
�
&
'
�
�%
*
+'

�
 '

�2
��
(
�

+ 
/
�
�
1,
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�!
�
��
/
'
� 
�!
(
!�
%
1�
E�
+�
! 
'
�+
3
+�
'
(
�/

%
-
'
��

�
��
*
'
'
�
�%

++
'
++
'
�
�2
�
��
.
�
�'
�
�!
%
1�
1'
%
��
!�
&
��

!2
2!
 �

1�
!'
+"
�;

'
�/

�
.
'
��
/
%
��
?
'
� 
%
�
�'

�
 �

�
�%
&
'
�(

�
�'
�

 /
!1�

�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
��
�
�(

%
4
'
��
+'

��
2�
1'
%
��
!�
&
�%
�
�
�'
(
.
1�
3
(
'
�
��
�
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�
?
!�
/
��
%
�&
'
�'
�
�%
�
�
�?

'
11�
!�
2�
�(

'
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
"�
�

� ;
'
�?

!11
�%
1+
�
,�
?
!�
/
��
/
'
�%
++
!+
�%
�
 '

��
2�
�
�
��
�'
%
(
��
2�
�
%
�'
'
�+
�%
�
-
!+
�
�+
,�
�
'
-
'
1�
.
�&
�
�
�
�.
�%
 �
! 
'
�!
�
��
'
+.

'
 �
��
2�
'
�
/
%
�
 '

�
��
'
2'
��
%
1�
��
�
�'
+�
%
�
�
��
/
'
�+
�%
22
�?

!11
�*
'
�

'
=
.
'
 �
'
�
��
�
��
'
2'
��
'
-
'
�3
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�2
�
��
 %

�'
'
�+
�!
�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
"�
�
/
!+
��
'
'
�
+�
��
�*
'
�'
(
*
'
�
�
'
�
�!
�
��
�%
11�
.
�%
 �
! 
'
"�

� �
%
�'
'
�+
�+
�%
22
�%
�'
��
�
?
�2
�
113

��
�%
!�
'
�
�!
�
��

'
+�
�
�%
�!
-
'
��

.
.
��
%
 /

'
+�
%
�
�
�(

'
�
��
�!
�
&
�%
�
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
�!
+�
*
'
!�
&
��
'
1!-

'
�'
�
��
+!
�
&
��
/
'
+'

�.
�!
�
 !
.
1'
+"
��

/
!+
�(

'
�/
�
�
��
2�

?
�
�4
!�
&
�!
+�
�
�
?
�*
'
!�
&
�%
.
.
1!'

�
�!
�
�;

�
�4
:)

%
+'

�
��
'
%
��
!�
&
�+
'
��
!�
&
�?

!�
/
��
	
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�+
�
+�
%
!�
!�
&
�.
1%
 '

(
'
�
�+
�?

/
! 
/
��
/
'
3
�?

�
�
1�
�/
%
-
'
�.
�'
-
!�
�
+1
3
�1
�
+�
��
�
'
��
�
�

�/
'
!�
�%
��
!�
�
�
'
+�
%
�
�
�*
'
/
%
-
!�
�
�+
"�

�
;
�
�4
!�
&
�%
1�
�
&
+!
�
'
��
/
'
��

	
�
�

�
�
 %

�!
�
�
�?

�
�4
'
��
?
'
�2
�
 �

+�
(
�
�'
��

2�
�
�
��
?
�
�4
�%
��
�
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�(

%
4
!�
&
�%
��
�%
�
+!
�!
�
�
�2
��
(
��

'
%
��
�
�
�!
�
��
�%
�.

�
+!
�!
-
'
�

%
�
�
�+
�
+�
%
!�
%
*
1'
�.
�
+�
��
0
��
�
� 
�
(
'
"�

�
�
�
&
'
�/
'
��
?
!�
/
��

%
��
!2
2�
%
�
�
��
/
'
��

%
1'
��

�
11'

&
'
�?

'
�%
�'
��
'
-
'
1�
.
!�
&
�%
�+
��
�
 �
�
�'
�?

/
'
�'
*
3
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
A+
��
�%
�
+!
�!
�
�
�2
��
(
� 
�
+�
�
�
3
�!
�
��
� 
�
11'

&
'
�!
+�
+'

%
(
1'
++
"�

�
/
!+
�!
+�
�
�
13
�'
22
'
 �
!-
'
��
/
��
�
&
/
�%
�(

'
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�/
'
� 
%
�'
'
�+
��
'
%
(
�?

�
�4
!�
&
�!
�
�.
%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�?

!�
/
��

$
�
��
%
� 
��
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
��
/
'
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�!
�
�+
'
��
!�
&
��
�
��
�/
'
�


�

�+
'
 �
!�
�
��
2�
�/
'
!�
��
'
+'

��
1'
(
'
�
��
.
1%
�
"�
�

�
�
/
'
��
'
%
(
�/
%
+�
%
�+
��
�
�
&
��
�
&
�
!�
&
��
'
1%
�!
�
�
+/

!.
�?

!�
/
� 
�
��
'
�
��
��
%
!�
!�
&
�.
��
-
!�
'
�+
�!
�
��

%
��
!2
2�
�
%
(
'
13
��

�
�
,�
��


�
�%
�
�
��

%
�/
*
�
�
'
"�
�
/
!+
��
'
1%
�!
�
�
+/

!.
�!
+�
-
!�
%
1�
!�
�

�
��
'
��
��
�2
%
 !
1!�
%
�'
�%
�+
'
%
(
1'
++
�'
�
��
3
�!
�
��
��
�%
!�
!�
&
�%
�
�
��
�
�(

%
!�
�%
!�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
A+
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
�
�
+�
'
�
&
%
&
'
(
'
�
�"
�

�
;
'
�
 �

�
�!
�
�
'
�
��
�
'
�
&
%
&
'
�
?
!�
/
�
�
�/
'
��

�
�&
%
�
!+
%
�!
�
�
+�

�%
�&
'
�'
�
�
?
!�
/
�
%
�
�
�'
++
!�
&
�
�/
'
�
�


�
�
%
&
'
�
�
%
�
?
!�
/
�
%
�
-
!'
?
�
��
�
+�

�
� 
!�
&
�
%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
�
��
%
!�
!�
&
�

�
.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�
2�
��
�
	
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
"�

�

Page 79



�


�

4
&
%
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�5
�.
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

� �
/
!+
�+
'
 �

�
�
�;

%
1'
+:
�
�
13
�(

'
%
+�

�'
�1
�
�
4
+�
%
��
�/
'
�%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�+
�%
��
+�
�
2�
%
�3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�+
�
�
�%
��
�/
'
�*

'
&
!�
�
!�
&
��
2�
�/
'
!�
��

�
�
��
�	

��
'
��
%
�
�
� 
�
(
.
%
�'
+�
?
!�
/
�

�/
%
��
%
��
�/
'
�'
�
�
"�
�

� ;
/
!1+
��
�/
!+
�(

'
%
+�

�'
� 
1'
%
�1
3
�/

%
+�
%
�
�'

1'
(
'
�
��
�
2�
+�

*
E'
 �
!-
!�
3
�%

��
%
 /

'
�
��
�
�!
�,
��
/
'
��

'
2!
�
!�
!�
�
��

2�
D+
�
!�
%
*
1'
�%

  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
A�
'
=
 1
�
�
'
+�
*
'
�
�%

�
�
�*

�'
%
4
2%
+�
�

%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�%
�
�
�%
�
3
�1
!-
!�
&
�%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
��
�/
%
��
(
%
4
'
+�
%
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
�(

�
�'
�-
�
1�
'
�%
*
1'
"�

�
�
�(

�
�'
��
'
1'
-
%
�
��
!+
+�

'
�!
+�
�/
%
��
(
'
%
+�

�'
+�
+�

 /
�%

+�
�/
'
+'

��
�
��

�
��
.
��
-
!�
'
�%

�
�!
�
�
! 
%
�!
�
�
��

2�
�/
'
�%

  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�+
�%
��
+�
�
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
��

�
�!
�
&
��
/
'
�

!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
,�

%
�
�
�
2�
��

%
�
�
�
(
*
'
��

�/
!+
�
!+
�
+�

*
E'
 �
�
��
�
 /

%
�
&
'
,�

?
!�
/
�
�'
&
�
1%
��

'
.
!+
�
�
'
+�

�
2�

/
�
(
'
1'
++
�
'
++
�
%
�
�
F�

��
.
'
�!
�
�
+�

�
2�

-
'
�3
�
�
�
+%

�!
+2
%
 �
�
�3
�

%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
"�

�
�
+�
%
1�
'
%
�
3
�!
�
�
! 
%
�'
�
�%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�!
+�
%
�+
!&
�
!2
! 
%
�
��
2%
 �
�
��
!�
�.
�'
-
'
�
�!
�
&
��
22
'
�
�
!�
&
�%
�
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
!�
&
"�

� 4
&)
�
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
/
'
�%
-
%
!1%

*
!1!
�3
��
2�
+�

!�
%
*
1'
�%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�!
+�
�
�
��
�
�
�
'
��
�
�
��
 �

�
��
�
1�
*
�
��
!�
�!
+�
 1
'
%
��
�/
%
��
�
�
��
(
�
 /

�+
(
%
11'

��
 %

+'
1�
%
�
��
2�
(
�
�'
� 
/
%
11'

�
&
!�
&
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�

?
/
�
�'
=
.
'
�!
'
�
 '

�%
�1
�
��
(
�
�'
��
!2
2!
 �

1�
!'
+�
!�
��
*
�%
!�
!�
&
�+
%
2'
�%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
"�
�

� �
/
'
��

	
�
� 
�
�
�!
�
�
'
+�
��
�?

�
�4
�!
�
�.

%
��
�
'
�+
/
!.
�?

!�
/
��

1%
(
%
�
�!
�
�.

��
-
!�
!�
&
��

�+
�
.
.
�
��
'
�
�%

  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
��

�
!�
+�
!�
��
/
'
��

1!-
'
��

��
'
'
��
.
��
E'
 �
,�
(
%
�
%
&
'
�
�*

3
�

�
1%
(
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
*
'
/
%
12
,�
�
22
'
�!
�
&
�%
  
�
(
(
�
�
%
�!
�
�
�%
+�
?
'
11�
%
+�
�/
'
�&
�
!�
%
�
 '

�%
�
�
�+
�
.
.
�
��
��
'
'
�
'
�
��
�
�.
�'
.
%
�'
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�2
�
��
!�
�
'
.
'
�
�
'
�
��
1!-

!�
&
"�

� )
'
1�
?
�!
+�
�
�
�1
!�
'
�
��
�
��
�'
 '

�
��
.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

"�

Page 80



�


�

�
� �

4
&4
&
+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
'
2'
�'
�
 '

�/
%
+�
%
1�
'
%
�
3
�*
'
'
�
�(

%
�
'
��
�
��
/
'
�E
�
!�
��
�
/
!1�

�'
�
A+
��
'
�-
! 
'
+,
��

�
�
+!
�
&
�%
�
�
��
	
�
� 
�
11%

*
�
�%
�!
�
�
��
�
��
%
4
'
�%
�(

�
�'
�+
��
%
�'
&
! 
�%
.
.
��
%
 /

��
�
��
/
'
�

/
�
�
+!
�
&
��
'
'
�
+�
�
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�%
�
�
��
/
'
�!
�
�'
�
�!
�
�
��
�
�'
=
.
%
�
�
�%
�
�
�'
�
/
%
�
 '

��
/
'
�D
(
'
�
�
A�
�
2�
%
-
%
!1%

*
1'
�/
�
�
+!
�
&
�2
�
��
�
0
�%
�
�
��
5
�3
'
%
��
�
1�
+"
��

�

Page 81



�


�

8
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�5
�.
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

� �
/
!+
�(

'
%
+�

�'
�%
.
.
1!'

+�
��
�%
11�
�/
�
+'

� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
�/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
��
'
2'
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
+�

*
+�
%
�
 '

�(
!+
�
+'

�?
�
�4
'
�+
�2
�
��
%
�+
.
'
 !
%
1!+
��
%
++
'
++
(
'
�
�"
��
/
'
�(

'
%
+�

�'
�1
�
�
4
+�

%
��

�!
(
'
�
2�
%
(
'
+C
�
%
++
'
++
(
'
�
�+
�
(
�
+�
�
 �

(
(
'
�
 '

�
?
!�
/
!�
�
�
�
�
%
3
+�

�
2�
�'
2'
��
%
1�
%
�
�
�
+/

�
�
1�
�
��
'
%
�(

'
�
�F
 �

�
�
+'

11!
�
&
�
*
'
�
 �

�
+!
�
'
�'
�
�
%
.
.
��
.
�!
%
�'
�
+�

 /
�

!�
�'
�-
'
�
�!
�
�
+�
(
�
+�
� 
�
(
(
'
�
 '

�?
!�
/
!�
��
�
�?

�
�4
!�
&
��
%
3
+�
2�
11�

?
!�
&
�%
++
'
++
(
'
�
�"
�

� �
/
!+
�(

'
%
+�

�'
��
'
11+
��
+�
1!�
�1
'
�%
*
�
�
��
!(

.
%
 �
�%
�
�
��
�
13
�%
*
�
�
��
.
��
 '

++
"�

� 8
&)

�
�
		
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
+�
 %

�
�*

'
�+
'
'
�
�2
��
(
��
/
'
� 
/
%
��
�*

'
1�
?
��
�
��
.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

�/
%
+�
�
'
�'
�!
�
�%
�'
�
"�
;
/
!1+
��
�/
'
�'
�%
�'
�!
++
�
'
+�
�/
%
��
�
'
'
�
�%
�
�
�'
++
!�
&
�6
+'

'
�*

'
1�
?
��

�
�
'
��
�
1%
�
+�
2�
��

2�
��
�'
�.
'
�2
�
�(

%
�
 '

7�
!�
�!
+�
%
1+
�
��
/
'
� 
%
+'

��
/
%
��
?
'
�%
�'
��
�
?
�?

�
�4
!�
&
�?

!�
/
�%
�+
(
%
11'

�,
�(

�
�'
� 
/
%
11'

�
&
!�
&
�&
��
�
.
��
2�
3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�?

/
�
�%
�'
�(

�
�'
��
!2
2!
 �

1�
��
�
�

'
�
&
%
&
'
�%
�
�
�?

/
�
�%
�'
�1
'
++
�1
!4
'
13
��
�
�%
��
'
�
�
�%
.
.
�
!�
�(

'
�
�+
�%
�
�
��
/
'
�'
�?

!11
�*
'
�%
��
�
(
*
'
��
%
(
�
�
&
+�
��
/
!+
�&
��
�
.
�?

/
�
�?

!11
�/
%
-
'
�*
'
'
�
�%
++
'
++
'
�
�*
'
2�
�'
�?

/
'
�
�

+�
*
E'
 �
��
�
�.
�'
-
!�
�
+�
�
�
�
��
�	

��
'
�+
�%
�
�
��
/
'
�'
2�
�'
�1
'
++
� 
�
(
(
!�
�'
�
��
�
�%
��
'
�
�
"�

� ��
�!
+�
!(

.
�
��
%
�
��
��
�.
�
!�
��
�
�
��
�/
%
��
?
/
'
�
�%
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�+
�
�
��
�
'
+�
'
�
&
%
&
'
��
/
'
��
�
:�
%
3
��
'
%
�
1!�

'
�2
�
��
 �

(
(
'
�
 !
�
&
��
�'
%
�(

'
�
��
!+
�%
1(

�
+�
�!
�
-
%
�!
%
*
13
�(

'
��
69

<
I

7"
�

� �
/
'
��

	
�
�+
�
*
+�
%
�
 '

�(
!+
�
+'

�?
�
�4
'
�+
�%

�'
�*

�
�/
�+
'
 �

�
�
'
�
,�
2�
�
(
��
�
��
%
�
+�
%
�
�
��

�
��
6�

�!
(
'
��

'
�
�
 �
!�
�
��
�
!�
!%
�!
-
'
7"
��

�
'
��
�
��
/
'
�2
�
�
�
!�
&
�%

��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
��
2�
��

�/
!+
�.
�
+�
�6


�
)
7�
�/
'
��
�
��
%
�
+�
?
�
�4
'
��
/
%
+�
*
'
 �

(
'
�%
�(

'
(
*
'
��
�
2�
�/
'
��

�'
%
��
1%
�
�
!�
&
�)
�
%
��
A+
�+
'
�-
! 
'
�2
�
��
 /

!1�
�'
�
�%
�
�
�3
�
�
�
&
�.
'
�
.
1'
�D
��
A+
�


.
��
�
�


A"
�;

/
!1+
��

!�
�!
+�

�'
 �

&
�
!+
'
�
��
/
%
��
/
'
��
(
%
!�
�?

�
�4
1�
%
�
�?

!11
��
'
(
%
!�
��

	
�
�2
�
 �

++
'
�
��
/
'
�.

��
E'
 �
�?

!11
��

22
'
��
'
�
/
%
�
 '

�
��

.
.
�
��
�
�
!�
!'
+�

2�
��
��
%
�
+2
'
��
!�
&
�3

�
�
�
&
�.

'
�
.
1'
�

2�
11�

?
!�
&
��
	
�
�+
�
.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�%
�
�
�*
'
��
22
'
�'
�
��
�
&
�
!�
&
�+
�
.
.
�
��
�%
+�
.
%
��
��
2�
%
�
�'
=
!�
�+
��
%
�'
&
3
�2
��
(
��
	
�
�!
�
-
�
1-
'
(
'
�
�"
�

� �
+�
.
%
��
��
2�
�
�
��
�'
+.

�
�
+'

��
�
��
�
'
��
2�
�/
'
��
'
 �

(
(
'
�
�
%
�!
�
�
+�
!�
��
/
'
�%
2�
�'
(
'
�
�!
�
�
'
�
�

�
�
,�
�/
'
��

�
)
�/
%
+�
.
��
.
�
+'

�
��
/
%
��
%
11�
�/
'
�+
�
*
+�
%
�
 '

�(
!+
�
+'

�?
�
�4
'
�+
�

?
!11
��
'
 '

!-
'
� 
1!�

! 
%
1�
+�

.
'
�-
!+
!�
�
�!
�
�%
�
�
!�
!�
�
��
�
��
/
'
� 
�
��
'
�
��
(
%
�
%
&
'
(
'
�
��
%
��
%
�
&
'
(
'
�
�+
"�

�

Page 82



�


�

�
�

8
&4
&
+
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

� � �
+�
%
��
�
(
*
'
��
�
2�
 /

!1�
�'
�
��
'
:�
22
'
�
�
��
/
'
3
�?

!11
�*
'
��
'
2'
��
'
�
�%
��
�/
'
�+
�%
��
��
2�
'
%
 /

��
'
?
�	

��
'
��
%
�
�
��
/
'
�1
!4
'
1!/

�
�
�
��
2�
%
��
'
�
�
!�
&
�%
�(

'
'
�!
�
&
�?

!�
/
�%
�+
�
*
+�
%
�
 '

�
(
!+
�
+'

�?
�
�4
'
��
�
'
 1
!�
'
+"
�

� �
/
'
��
	
�
��
'
+.

�
�
+'

�?
!11
�*
'
C�

�
♦

��
'
�
�!
23
��
/
'
� 
/
!1�

�'
�
�?

/
�
�/
%
-
'
��
'
 '

!-
'
�
�(

�
1�
!.
1'
��
'
2'
��
%
1+
�%
�
�
�+
'
'
4
��
�
��
22
'
��
 �

�
�%
 �
,�
+�

 /
�%
+�
%
�/
�
(
'
�-
!+
!�
�?

/
! 
/
�!
+�
'
%
+!
'
��
��
� 
�
(
.
13
�?

!�
/
�

♦

�
+�

�'
��
/
%
��
%
11�
(
!+
+'

�
�%
.
.
�
!�
�(

'
�
�+
�%
�'
�2
�
11�

?
'
�
��
.
��
�
*
�
+�
13
�

� �

Page 83



�
�
�

�

%
�
�
�
�


:
�)
�5
��
2
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
	�
�

Page 84



� �	

�

Narrative  Estimate Total to  Year End Variance 

2013/2014 Date Projection

  £ £ £ £

Partnership Funding:     

      

Children's Services 1,007,860 871,974 871,974 -135,886

Health (Staffing Contribution) 41,649 41,649 41,649 0

Education (Staffing Contribution) 33,000 33,000 33,000 0

Wales Probation Trust (Staffing Contribution) 140,134 140,134 140,134 0

South Wales Police (Staffing Contribution) 102,196 102,196 102,196 0

1,324,839 1,188,953 1,188,953 -135,886

    

Grants      

      

YJB Funded Projects:     

YOS Good Practice Funding 278,687 220,852 220,852 -57,835

ISSP 135,000 138,235 138,235 3,235

IRS 38,000 20,985 20,985 -17,015

Education/Training/Employment 186,000 186,000 186,000 0
Restorative Justice 
Development 900 900 900 0

Sub Total: 638,587 566,972 566,972 -71,615

    

South Wales Police Cash Contribution: 8,270 8,270 8,270 0

    

Police Crime Commissioner: 48,662 48,662 48,662 0

    

Wales Probation Trust Cash Contribution: 5,440 5,440 5,440 0

    

Arts Council Summer Arts Project: 2,070 2,070 2,070 0

    

Youth Crime Prevention Fund (WG):     

Neighbourhood Resolutions  90,000 68,476 68,476 -21,524

Psychology Services 25,000 2,000 2,000 -23,000

ASB Project 130,000 130,000 130,000 0

Victim Worker 35,000 29,603 29,603 -5,397

RA Training 6,353 6,353 6,353 0

Triage 200,000 180,000 180,000 -20,000

Stay Safe 30,000 30,000 30,000 0

    

Sub Total: 516,353 446,432 446,432 -69,921

    

      

Total Annual Budget 2,544,221   

      

�

%����
:�,�5���
�������	�������������������,/)-!,/)4�

Page 85



�
�


�

� � �

C
a

rd
if

f 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 B
a

s
e

d
 A

c
c

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 C
a

rd
 –

 F
ir

s
t 

T
im

e
 E

n
tr

a
n

ts
 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3

 t
o

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

W
h

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

d
a

ta
 d

o
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
?

 (
D

a
ta

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

d
a

)
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 u
n
d

e
r 

1
8

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

O
u

tc
o

m
e

S
a
fe

 a
n
d

 F
e
e

l 
S

a
fe

, 
F

u
ll 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l,
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 

W
h

a
t 

is
 t

h
e

 c
u

rv
e

 w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
u

rn
?

%
�
�
�
�


:
�-
�5
�'
�
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
�


�%
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�5
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��

Page 86



�
�
�
�

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
rv

e
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

, 
o

r 
a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
, 

a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
il.

 
T

h
e

 S
to

ry
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
C

a
rd

 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

•
 

F
T

E
’s

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 d

e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

te
a
d

ily
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
9
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 s
e

e
m

s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 e

v
e

n
e

d
 o

u
t 
in

 t
h
is

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  

1
,2

, 

•
 

T
h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 P

a
n
e
ls

 (
N

R
P

),
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

a
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a

u
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
re

-o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

4
 

•
 

S
ta

y
S

a
fe

 e
v
e
n
ts

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 r
e

g
u
la

rl
y
 w

h
e
n

 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

la
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

v
e
ry

 y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
n
g
re

g
a
te

 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 

w
h

ic
h
 r

e
lie

s
 o

n
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
, 

is
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
h
a
rm

 o
r 

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

to
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
e
m

 s
a
fe

 

3
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
h
a
t 

p
u
p
ils

 w
h
o

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 A
S

B
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

it
h

in
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

2
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

o
in

t
B

y
 W

h
o

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

O
u
t 

o
f 

C
o
u
rt

 d
is

p
o
s
a
ls

 (
T

ra
c
k
 c

o
h
o
rt

 r
e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
3
, 

6
, 

9
 

a
n
d
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

E
a
rl

y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 
M

a
n
a

g
e
r 

 
In

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

O
u
t 

o
f 

C
o
u
rt

 d
is

p
o
s
a

ls
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 N
R

P
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

  
E

a
rl

y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 
M

a
n
a

g
e
r/

 N
R

P
 C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

rs
. 

4
1
%

 (
5
6

/1
3

6
) 

o
f 

O
O

C
D

’s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e

d
 i
n
 a

 N
R

P
. 

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

F
T

E
’s

  
Y

O
S

 M
a
n

a
g
e
r/

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

S
e
e
 F

T
E

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

. 
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

T
ri
a
g
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
  
(T

ra
c
k
 c

o
h
o
rt

 r
e
-o

ff
e
n
d

in
g
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
3
, 

6
, 
9
 a

n
d
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

T
ri
a
g
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

S
e
e
 c

a
rd

 1
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

A
S

B
 f

ig
u
re

s
 (

T
ra

c
k
 c

o
h
o
rt

 r
e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
3
, 
6
, 

9
 a

n
d
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

A
S

B
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r 

 
S

e
e
 c

a
rd

 2
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

S
ta

y
S

a
fe

  
 

S
ta

y
S

a
fe

 L
e
a

d
s
  

S
e
e
 c

a
rd

 3
 

Page 87



�
�
�
�

� �

C
a

rd
if

f 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

 B
a

s
e

d
 A

c
c

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 C
a

rd
 –

 C
u

s
to

d
y
 a

n
d

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3

 t
o

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

W
h

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

d
a

ta
 d

o
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
?

 (
D

a
ta

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

d
a

)
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 u
n
d

e
r 

1
8

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

O
u

tc
o

m
e

S
a
fe

 a
n
d

 F
e
e

l 
S

a
fe

, 
F

u
ll 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l,
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 

W
h

a
t 

is
 t

h
e

 c
u

rv
e

 w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
u

rn
?

%
�
�
�
�


:
�4
�5
�'
�
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
�


�%
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�5
��
�
�
��


�
��
�


�2
��
�
�


�
�
�

Page 88



�
�

�

Page 89



�
�
�
�

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
rv

e
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

, 
o

r 
a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
, 

a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
il.

 
T

h
e

 S
to

ry
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 C
a

rd
 R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

•
 C

u
s
to

d
y
 f

ig
u

re
s
 a

re
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

 I
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 S

u
p
e

rv
is

io
n

 a
n
d

 S
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

 (
IS

S
) 

a
s
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

 b
u

t 
a

re
 

a
ls

o
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 ‘
k
n
o

c
k
-o

n
’ 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

F
T

E
’s

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n
 O

rd
e

rs
, 

in
 t

h
is

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 I

S
S

 (
1
2

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r)
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

d
y
. 

•
 T

h
e

 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 R
e

s
e

tt
le

m
e
n

t 
S

u
p
p

o
rt

 (
IR

S
) 

p
ro

je
c
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 l
e

a
v
in

g
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

re
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 

•
 C

e
rt

a
in

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 w

ill
 a

lw
a

y
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 c
u

s
to

d
y
 

•
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

) 
h
a

s
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 

6
 

•
 S

c
a

le
d

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 d

e
p

lo
y
s
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 

ri
s
k
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
s
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 F

o
ru

m
s
 (

C
P

F
) 

to
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
ri
s
k
. 
 

•
 W

e
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 o
v
e

rn
ig

h
t 

in
 p

o
lic

e
 c

e
lls

 a
n

d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 w

it
h

 p
o

lic
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o
n

s
 w

h
y
. 

In
 t

h
is

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

e
re

 r
e

m
a
n

d
e

d
 i
n

 c
u

s
to

d
y
. 

•
 9

2
%

 (
2
3

/2
5

) 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

s
k
e

d
 s

a
id

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 f

e
lt
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
ir
 f

u
tu

re
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

Y
O

S
. 

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

o
in

t
B

y
 W

h
o

P
ro

g
re

s
s
/C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 o
u

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 ‘
b
u

y
 i
n

’ 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

o
s
e

 w
it
h

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

Y
O

S
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e

 f
o

re
n

s
ic

 
p

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

a
t 

C
a

rd
if
f 

p
ri
s
o
n

, 
to

 w
h

e
re

 w
e

 a
re

 n
o

w
 

m
a

k
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
e

e
p

ly
 e

n
tr

e
n

c
h

e
d

 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
. 
E

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 s
o

 f
a

r 
s
u

g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o
n

c
e

rn
e
d

. 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 o
u

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 a

p
p
o

in
t 
a

 p
a

rt
 t

im
e

 
p

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
is

t 
Y

O
S

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 C
a

rd
if
f 

P
ri
s
o

n
 t
h

is
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
o

in
t 

is
 n

o
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
re

le
v
a

n
t.

  

� �

Page 90



� ��

�

�

Project description:
Triage works with young people aged 10-17 from Cardiff and the Vale who are arrested and brought 
to Cardiff Bay Police Station for offences that qualify for a Youth Restorative Disposal.  Restorative 
work is also undertaken with victims which invites them to be involved in a process with the aim of 
giving them closure and the ability to move on from the offence. 

How many did we do  

• 405 referrals (269 from Cardiff, 125 from 
Vale 11 from other areas). From the 269 
Cardiff cohort 212 were accepted 

• 84 YP required referrals into universal 
services 

• We assessed 82 young people arrested for 
shoplifting 

• 11 Shoplifting awareness sessions held. One 
of these was for young people for whom 
English is second language 

• 174 victims identified by the victim worker 

• 47 Young people and 3 parents referred to 
the MAC counselling service 

• 118 counselling sessions held  

• Provided an Appropriate Adult for 21 young 
people 

How well did we do it?  

• Of the 212 Cardiff young people assessed 
and then accepted, 98% (207) of these 
engaged.  

• 98% (82/84) young people that required 
referrals accepted the referral.  

• 100 % (82/82) young people attended and 
completed shoplifting awareness 
workshops  

• 83% (129/155) of  victims contacted 
engaged  

•  86% (89/103) of restorative interventions 
requested have been completed or are on 
going  

• 94% (44/47) of young people referred 
engaged in counselling 

• 96%(52/54) young people (who 
completed questionnaires) stated they got 
the help they needed  

Is anyone better off as a result?  

• 207 young people engaged with Triage and have been diverted away from the criminal justice 
system and  given support in addressing their offending behaviours 

• 89 victims took part in restorative interventions 

• From our cohort of 62 young people being tracked to measure re-offending 6 have re-offended 
at the end of this 12 month period  

• Feedback received states that (Triage had) “developed a sensitive, trusting relationship with our 
daughter and provided a level of support and interaction which could never have been provided 
as parents” another parent stating, (The Triage worker had) “helped my son with coping 
strategies and being a good role model for his little brother.” 

Created by: Sam Heatley�

Card 
Reference 

1 

Results Based Accountability Report Card  

Triage  

April 2013 to March 2014 

%����
:�8�5�'�������$���
�%������������!��	����

Page 91



� ��

%����
:�9�5�'�������$���
�%������������5�%�$������

Card 
Reference 

2 

Results Based Accountability Report Card  

DART ASB Team 

April 2013 – March 2014 

�

Project description:
To work with young people and their families to address the causes of anti-social behaviour and to reintegrate 
the young people into their own community in a more positive manner. To reduce the number of Acceptable 
Behaviour Contracts and Anti-Social Behaviour Orders that are issued to young people within the city and 
county of Cardiff. 

How many did we do?

• 188 referrals received: 164 male, 24 female, 177 
identified as White British, 4 as Asian and 7 as 
Mixed Race. 

• Of the 188 young people referred, 33 had 
received a stage 1 warning letter, 104 had 
received a stage 2 warning letter, 23 were at 
stage 3 (ABC), 3 were at stage 4 (ABC breach) 
and 25 were referred by social services and the 
police but had no recorded incidents of ASB. 

• 154 were accepted for intervention as 11 young 
people declined any contact, 14 were already 
engaged with the YOS or Triage, 8 referrals were 
not accepted as these young people had already 
been offered intervention recently and declined 
or had stopped engaging and 1 was over 18 and 
therefore outside the remit of the project. 

• 87 hours of Diversionary Activities were delivered 
in graffiti workshops, t-shirt printing, animation, 
rock climbing and ice skating with the Cardiff 
Devils. 

• 65 hours of ASB workshops were delivered at 
Glyn Derw High School, Greenhill Special 
School, North Ely Pupil Alternative Curriculum 
Centre and the Eastern High Inclusion Unit.

How well did we do it?  

• 66% (102/154) of those accepted attended 
an initial assessment. 

• 23% (35/154) declined the service after 
receiving initial appointment letter and did 
not attend an assessment. 

• 11% (17/154) had assessments pending at 
the end of quarter 4. 

• 71% (72/102) of young people who 
attended an initial assessment are actively 
engaged in support sessions as the other 
30/102 declined the service after initial 
assessment. 

• 100% of young people parents who 
engaged with the team felt that the support 
they received was positive. 

• 100% (5 team members) attended two days 
of Risk Assessment Training 

• 60% of staff (3 team members) attended 
the 3 day Peer Mediation Training which 
looks at giving young people the skills to 
manage conflict within their peer groups 
and 2 (40%) attended AIM 2 training which 
deals with young people displaying 
Sexually Harmful Behaviour. 

• One member of staff (20%) attended 
Understanding Suicide Training, one (20%) 
attended Understanding Eating Disorders 
and one (20%) attended Youth Justice 
Foundation Training. 

• 100% of staff at Greenhill Special School 
who were asked to provide feedback on a 
programme delivered in Q1stated that it 

Page 92



� ��

was very useful and that the interaction with 
the pupils was very good. 

Is anyone better off as a result?  

• 93% (67) young people who engaged in an intervention plan with the team have not gone on to offend. 

• 90% (65) young people who engaged with the team have not progressed further through the ASBO 
process

• 100% of young people who agreed to intervention completed sessions on ASB and Victim Awareness. 

Created by: Sarah Manley / Theo Charalampidis 
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 93



� ��

%����
:�0�5�'�������$���
�%������������!����������

�
Project description:
StaySafe is a joint project with Cardiff YOS and South Wales Police with the following aims:  reduce anti social 
behaviour, safeguard children, reduce first time entrants to the criminal justice system, develop a vibrant and safe 
night time economy, assist people and communities to feel safe and reduce damaging alcohol consumption. 

How many did we do?

• 69 StaySafe operations were run in the city centre, 
6 of which were Oceana Under 18’s discos, 1 which 
was part of the Mardi Gras festival 2 which were 
part of Operation Bang and 3 which were run to 
address particular ASB hotspots across the city. 

• 19 young people were taken to a place of safety. 
Only one needed further treatment at A&E and this 
was as a result of concerns about a possible 
pregnancy.  Ten of the young people reside outside 
of Cardiff. 

• StaySafe staff engaged with approximately 3832 
young people, 1419 male and 1426 female . 

• 168 bottles of water, 94 condoms and 66 pairs of 
flip flops were given to protect young people. First 
aid was administered on 5 occasions. One young 
person was also signed up to the C-Card scheme. 

• The team painted approximately 300 faces at the 
South Wales Police Eastern BCU and Specialist 
Operations Open Day at Cardiff Castle. 

• 1 young person who was spoken to by the team 
was referred to Children’s Services as a result of 
significant concerns about her welfare. 19 young 
people were referred to the School Nurse service 
as they were intoxicated when removed to the 
Place of Safety. 

How well did we do it?  

• 100% (52/52) of StaySafe operations were 
multi agency.  86% (60/69) worked from the 
Alcohol Treatment Centre in Cardiff. 

• 94% (16/17) of young people presenting with 
alcohol misuse were referred to the school 
nurse for follow on work. 

• The team engaged with 25 parents who were 
required to collect their children from the place 
of safety. 

• 2 awareness raising sessions were presented 
by StaySafe staff to British Transport Police 
and St John’s Ambulance. The team also 
participated in the LSCB Sexual Exploitation 
Conference. 

• The project leads met with the new Manager of 
Oceana and the Police Licencing Officer in 
order to review the Under 18’s safeguarding 
policy. 

• Staff were given the opportunity to showcase 
the work of the team to the Princess Royal as 
a result of a Butler Trust Award. 

• The project was shortlisted for a South Wales 
Police Partnership Award. 

• Staff have undertaken training on Human 
Trafficking and Missing Persons. 

Is anyone better off as a result?  

• 19 young people who were removed to the place of safety by police received intervention from the team. 

• 3 young males were assisted in finding transport home following their attendance at an under 18s event as 
they were experiencing difficulties with taxi drivers. 

• 1 young person who was assaulted received immediate treatment from medical staff at the ATC. 

• 1 young person who was identified as having substance misuse issues is now receiving ongoing support 
from Substance Misuse workers at the Youth Offending Service. 

• 1 young person who was being threatened by a group of older males was escorted safely home by the team. 

• Staff at Oceana Nightclub are now aware of the work of the team and are able to refer young people who 
attend the Under 18’s nights under the influence of alcohol. 

Created by: Sarah Manley 

Card 
Reference  

3 

Results Based Accountability Report Card 

StaySafe  

April 2013 – March 2014 

Page 94



� �	

%����
:�1�5�'�������$���
�%������������5�*������	���
�

'���������+������

�
How many did we do?

• 44 new referrals during this quarter. 

• 2 referrals were relating to incidents of anti-social behaviour 
(ASB), while 42 were Out of Court Disposals (OOCD).

• The 42 OOCD referrals were as a result of the following 51 
offences: 

o10 Common Assault 
o7 Possession of Cannabis 
o7 Theft from Shop 
o7 Criminal Damage 
o5 Public Order 
o3 Theft from Motor Vehicle 
o2 Interfering with a Motor Vehicle 
o2 Attempted Robbery 
o1 Arson 
o1 Assault occasioning ABH 
o1 Assault with intent to resist arrest 
o1 Assault on a Police Officer 
o1 Fraud 
o1 Public Order (Racially Aggravated) 
o1 Resisting Arrest 
o1 Sexual Assault 

• In total 19 NRP’s took place 9 of which related to cases 
which were referred in the previous quarter. All 19 were as 
a result of OOCD’s. 

How well did we do it?  

• Of the 19 NRP’s held: 
o 5 were attended by direct victims 
o 15 were attended by indirect 

victims 
o 13 used Victim Impact Statements 

(VIS) 
o 3 were attended by interpreters 

In some instances indirect victims 
attended and VIS’s were used as part of 
the same panel. 

• All 19 NRP’s were held at community 
venues throughout the city such as 
libraries, youth centres and leisure 
centres: 

o 2 were held in Cardiff North 
o 1 were held in Cardiff East 
o 4 were held in Cardiff South 

East 
o 4 were held in Cardiff South 

West 
o 8 were held in Cardiff West 

Is anyone better off as a result?  

• 7 (36%) NRP’s resulted in 10 letters of apology from the young person to the victim. 

• 6 (31%) NRP’s resulted in a verbal apology from the young person to the victim at the Panel. 

• 5 (26%) young people were subsequently referred to the YOS substance misuse worker. 

• 1 (5%) young person was subsequently referred to the YOS Nurse for anger management sessions. 

• 3 (15%) young people were subsequently referred to the YOS Careers Wales team. 

• 1 (5%) young person suggested fundraising for charity as a means of paying back and is actively engaging 
with their caseworker in doing this. 

• 19 new volunteers from within communities across Cardiff were recruited to become Facilitators and are 
currently undergoing training.

Created by: Sarah Manley/Declan Carey�

Card 
Reference 

4 

Results Based Accountability Report Card  

Neighbourhood Resolution Panels 

January – March 2014 

Project description:
A Neighbourhood Resolution Panel (NRP) is a form of restorative justice conferencing that can be facilitated 
by trained community volunteers, supported by agencies with a stake hold in local problem solving e.g. Youth 
Offending Services, ASB and housing teams, Police, and community cohesion leads. NRP’s can be used to 
problem solve with young people and adults, to address harmful behaviours that are not serious enough to 
prosecute, or that should be subject to more formal out of court disposal. This is a collaborative project 
between Cardiff and Vale of Glamorgan.  The figures in this card only relate to the Cardiff element of the 
project.

Page 95



� �


%����
:�3�5�'�������$���
�%������������5�'����	����

�
��	
�

'���	�����
8�
�

'�������$���
�%������������'���	����	
��
�

'����	�����
�

%�	��,/)-����#�	���,/)4�

�
�

+	�;����
���	����<�
���?��4�?!�/�3���&�.'�.1'�%����/'!��2%(!1!'+�?/��%�'��'2'��'��2�11�?!�&��/'!�������%++'++('������!(.��-!�&�
/'%1�/,�('��%1�/'%1�/,�+�*+�%� '�(!+�+',�%  �((��%�!���%����"��/'+'�%�'%+�%�'�!�'��!2!'��%+���!&&'�+��/%��
(%3�1'%������22'��!�&�*'/%-!������� ����!*��'�����/'���&�!�&� �!(!�%1�*'/%-!�����2�3���&�.'�.1'�������'�+�%��
�%��!22��	�"�
�

�

How many did we do  

• 92 substance misuse referrals  

• 110 health referrals  

• 5 referrals to forensic psychologist from 
Cardiff and 1 from the Vale of Glamorgan.   

• In Q4 our Inroads Substance Misuse worker 
received 12 referrals which break down as 8 
having cannabis and 2 having alcohol as the 
primary drug and 2 having alcohol as a 
secondary drug.  

• 18 females and 98 males partook in 
reparation activities this year 

• 90 of those were on Referral Orders, 25 on 
Youth Rehabilitation Orders and 1 on an 
other order. 

How well did we do it?  

• 67% (62/92) of the health referrals 
attended an assessment.  

• 1,596 hours of reparation have been 
completed this year 

• 5 young people received a level 3 entry 
level Agored Cymru OCN through the 
YOS.  

Is anyone better off as a result?  

Percentage of those requiring substance misuse assessment who 
commence it within 5 days (Q4) 

73% Taken 
from YOS 
KPI 

Percentage of those requiring substance misuse assessment who 
commence it within 10 days (Q4) 

100% 

Percentage difference in suitability of accommodation between start and 
end for all sentences (Q4) 

-4.7% Taken 
from YOS 
KPI 

Specialist health nurse has worked with 75 young people addressing issues such as sexual and 
emotional health and referring onwards to services such as CAMHS, the GP and SARC.  

Inroads worker worked with a young person in supporting him reduce his cannabis use, by taking him 
to the gym. This diversionary activity helps with his reduction as he is spending time away from his 
friends who smoke cannabis every day. He has since started going to the gym in his own time, and 
has reduced his cannabis use as a result.  

�	����
���<��/��?'���?%��+�

Page 96



� ��

%����
:�)/�5�'�������$���
�%������������5�=����.�	(�

Card 
Reference 

6  

Results Based Accountability Report Card  

Victim Work 

Oct 2013 to March 2014 
�

Project description:
The Youth Offending Service has had two victim officers in post since October 2013, who make initial 
contact with all victims of youth crime in Cardiff. The workers aim to engage victims with the criminal 
justice process to help repair the harm caused in a restorative manner. 

How many did we do  

• 80 YOS victim referrals via PSR process 

• 88 victim referrals via Referral Orders 

• 113 Victim referrals via Out Of Court 
Disposals 

• 5 other referrals  

•  188 victims were willing to engage 

• 129 Victim impact statements available 

• 81 Restorative conferences took place 

How well did we do it?  

• 86% (247/286) victim cases were 
offered to participate in an RJ process 
and/or were updated 

• 66% (188/286) victims engaged in 
contact with the worker 

• 45% (129/286) victim impact statements 
available 

• 28% (81/286) victims attended a 
restorative conference 

Is anyone better off as a result?  

• Victims were able to forgive young people and enabled to move on 

• Retailers were pleased to be offered feedback on what had happened with young person 

• Young person agreed to fundraise for victim/charity 

• Victim of sexual offence was pleased to have had the opportunity to talk about the incident 
and have her voice heard 

�

Created by: Rhonwen Edwards 
�
�
�
�
�

Page 97



� ��

%����
:�))�5�'�������$���
�%������������5���	��	��.�����

�

�

�

How many did we do?  

• 40 new referrals 

• The team is currently engaging with a total of 112 
clients 

For 16/17 year olds the breakdown of tiers is as follows: 

Tier 5 – 7 (0.2% 4586 Cardiff total) 
Tier 4 – 9 (4% of 222 Cardiff total) 
Tier 3 – 52(21% of 248 Cardiff total) 
Tier 2 – 16 (29% of 67 Cardiff total) 

22 young people were in Year 11 at point of referral. 

• 160 mentoring contacts were undertaken 
focussing on Career Management competencies 
including interview skills, job searching 
techniques and improving self-awareness. 

• 27 young people were offered WBL interviews. 

• 17 job applications were completed and 
submitted with young people.

How well did we do it?  

• 100% of referrals were responded to within 
5 days 

• The team has taken responsibility for 2 
clusters across Cardiff to work in a 
structured approached with the current 
Year 11 cohort in line with the Local 
Authority NEET agenda 

• 7 CPFs were attended during the period 

• 3 DTOs were attended during the period 

• Everyone in the team attended Risk 
Assessment training 

• 2 members of the team attended training in 
preparation of writing Learning and Skills 
plans for client leaving statutory education. 

• The team received a demonstration on the 
new “Common Application Process” to be 
introduced from September 2014 

• One member of the team has maintained 
links with HMP YOI Education wing at Parc 
to support young people from Cardiff in 
custody. 

Is anyone better off as a result?  

• 7 young people started a training course during the period. 

• 1 young person started a college course during the period. 

• 3 young people found employment during the period.

• 8 young people started the “Symud Ymlaen/Moving Forward” project and are attending 
Learning for Life as part of this. 

• 13 young people accessed the Careers’ drop-in service 

• 17 young people were supported to write a CV  

Created by: Debbie Powell�

Card 
Reference 

7 

Results Based Accountability Report Card  

Careers Wales (YOS Youth Gateway)  

January 2014 to March 2014 

Project description:
To ensure that Young People above school age who are working with the YOS are engaged in 
education, training or employment (ETE) to support a reduction in first time entrants, re-offending and 
the number of young people given custodial sentences and to support a reduction in the NEET (16-
18) population across Cardiff.  

Page 98



� �

%++�*>�?�),�5���$�+	�������:�	����,/),�
�
�

�!2�''��6��7� %+'+�?'�'� 1��4'��%�� !���'�%!1�%��� !�2��(%�!���?%+�%�%13+'��%+� ���%!�'��
*��/�!�� %+'�2!1'+�%�����������%++'++('��+"�
�

• 9�/%���' '!-'���/'!��2!�+�� %��!���%���/'�%&'��2����������
• ���/%���' '!-'���/'!��2!�+�� ��-! �!���*'2��'��/'!���0�/�*!��/�%3�
• ��/%��*''���'2'��'������� !%1��'�-! '+�%��+�('�.�!���
• <�?'�'� ���'�� %+� /%-!�&� �!+��&%�!+'��/�('� 1!2'� !� 1��!�&� 5�?/��?'�'� 1!-!�&�?!�/����������
4��?���22'��'�+�

• ��/%��'=.'�!'� '��2�%*�+'�%�����/%��?!��'++'��-!�1'� '�?!�/!��2%(!13� ���'=��
• ��/%��'=.'�!'� '��+!&�!2! %���*'�'%-'('������1�++�
• 	��� �2� ��� �2� +�%�����3� + /��1� %&'� ��?'�'� ��� 2!='�� �'�(� ��� .'�(%�'��� '= 1�+!���
2��(�+ /��1�

• ���'�?'�'�!��2�11��!('�?��4�
• ���/%�����% %�'(! �B�%1!2! %�!��+�
• ��/%���!22! �1�3�?!�/�*��/�1!�'�% 3�%�����('�% 3�
• ���%++� !%�'��?!�/�.�'��(!�%��13�.��: �!(!�%1�.''�+�
• ���%�(!��'�����%1 �/�1�%*�+'�
• �#�+(�4'��

• ����+'�� %��%*!+�
• #�?'�'�%++'++'���/%���22'��!�&�?%+����'��%4'������*�%!��(��'3�2���+�*+�%� '+�
• ��?'�'� %++'++'�� �/%�� � +�*+�%� '�(!+�+'�?%+� 1!�4'�� ��� �22'��!�&� 6'"&"� �22'��!�&�
?/!1+�����'���/'�!�21�'� '7�
• ��/%��%�./3+! %1�/'%1�/� ���!�!����/%��+!&�!2! %��13�%22' �'��'-'�3�%3�1!2'�

• ���?'�'�2!��!�&�!��/%������ �.'�?!�/��/'!�� ���'��� !� �(+�%� '+�6+��'++,�+%��'++,�
%�=!'�37�
• ��/%��2��(%1��!%&��+!+��2�('��%1�!11�'++�
• ��/%��+'12�/%�('��%�����/%��.�'-!��+13�%��'(.�'��+�! !�'�
• 9�?'�'�%++'++'��%+�-�1�'�%*1'�%+�%��'+�1���2��/'!���?��*'/%-!����6�!+4��%4!�&,����&+�
'� "7�
• ��  !�'�� �/'� *'/%-!���� �2� ��/'�+� %+� (%4!�&� �/'(� -�1�'�%*1'� 6%*�+',� *�113!�&,�
'=.1�!�%�!��7�
�
�/'�%*�-'�&!-'+�%��!��! %�!����2��/'��%�&'��2�+'�!��+��!22! �1�!'+��/'+'�3���&�.'�.1'�2% '�
%����/'� ��+'B�'��� /%11'�&'��/'3�.�+'�!��/'1.!�&��/'(����(%4'��/'� /%�&'+��' '++%�3�
����'2�%!��2��(��22'��!�&"����'B�'��13��/'!��.%+��'=.'�!'� '+�%���1% 4��2�!��'�-'��!���%���
+�..����(%4'+�!���!22! �1��2�������.%���'�+�!���/!1��'���'�-! '+,��'%1�/�%����� %�!������
.��-!�'��/'�+'�-! '+��' '++%�3����������/'!��1!-'+�%�����"�
�

�

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Central South Consortium - Annual Performance Report
	5 Estyn Monitoring Visit Action Plan - Progress Report
	6 Cardiff Youth Offending Service - Annual Plan

